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CORPORATE VISION

SembCorp Marine aims to be the world leader

in ship repair, ship conversion, rig building and

offshore engineering, providing innovative

solutions that exceed its customers' expectations.

While anchoring itself for future growth and

global expansion, the Group continues to commit

itself to fulfilling the changing needs and

aspirations of its employees.

INTEGRITY

We believe in and perform our duties with honesty,

dedication and responsibility. We value loyalty,

trustworthiness, reliability and openness as essential

personal attributes in our corporate culture.

HEALTH, SAFETY, SECURITY AND ENVIRONMENTAL

PRESERVATION

We are committed to continuously promote a safe and

healthy work environment for our customers,

employees, contractors and the community. We take

responsibility for our own safety, security and for others

both on and off the job.

INNOVATIVENESS

We believe that innovation and creativity are crucial to

stay ahead of the competition and bring about better

efficiency in the organisation. We secure industry

leadership through constant innovative technological

and engineering solutions and encouraging

entrepreneurship.

QUALITY

We constantly and consciously strive to achieve world-

class quality standards in everything we do for our

customers, to improve our quality of life and to add

value for our shareholders. We believe in continuous

improvement and enhancing our competencies to meet

rapid global changes.

PEOPLE-CENTREDNESS

We respect and value every individual regardless of his

or her position in our organisation. We provide equal

opportunities and a conducive environment for

employees to attain their full potential. We reward all

employees fairly, benchmarking their performance to

best practices. We believe in building a learning

organisation for our people to acquire knowledge and

skills to achieve professionalism.

TEAMWORK

We are committed to working together and having trust

on one another to achieve common organisational goals

and results. We believe in promoting closer relationships

and developing team spirit among our people to

encourage speedy and open communication and to care

for each other.

CUSTOMER SERVICE

Our customer is the key to our success. We continue to

provide innovative solutions that add value to our

customers and to build lasting relationships with our

customers based on trust and shared purpose.

COMMUNITY RESPONSIBILITY

We view our business as being an integral part of society.

We are committed to be a responsible corporate citizen,

both locally and globally contributing to community

improvements, and to create a caring organisation.

CORPORATE PR0FILE

SembCorp Marine is a leading global marine engineering group specialising in a full spectrum

of integrated solutions, ranging from ship repair, ship building, ship conversion, rig building to

offshore engineering. As one of the largest marine engineering leaders in Asia, the Group has

a global network spanning four strategic hubs – Singapore, China, Brazil and USA. SembCorp

Marine’s Singapore hub consists of Jurong Shipyard, Sembawang Shipyard, PPL Shipyard and

Jurong SML Shipyard, supported by Karimun Sembawang Shipyard in Indonesia. SembCorp

Marine strives to fulfil the needs and aspirations of its employees, by giving them opportunities

to learn and excel to their fullest potential. The Group believes in rewarding its employees fairly

by benchmarking their performances to best practices, and in providing a conducive environment

for growth and all-around development.

CORE VALUES
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$456.2 million in 2004 to $530.6 million in 2005,

marking a 16 per cent year-on-year growth. Average

value per vessel increased from $1.46 million in 2004

to $1.72 million in 2005. This improvement was

attributed to higher value repairs in particular, tanker

repairs, upgrading of floating production-storage-

offloading (FPSO) vessels and rig repairs and container

upgrading vessels and gas tankers.

SHIPBUILDING

The shipbuilding sector contributed $188.6 million, or

9 per cent, to total revenue in 2005. This was $107.5

million, or 133 per cent, more than the S$81.1 million

achieved in 2004. The increase was attributed to

progressive revenue recognition from four units of 2,600

TEU container vessels and two units of 4,950 dwt tankers

with deliveries from the first to the last quarters of 2006.

SHIP CONVERSION AND OFFSHORE

The ship conversion and offshore sector grew 44 per cent

and contributed $886.3 million, or 42 per cent of total

revenue in 2005. Projects completed include the FPSO

conversion for Modec Venture 11 and the Erha FPSO

topsides installation and commissioning for ExxonMobil.

Work-in-progress comprised the P-54 marine conversion,

topsides fabrication and the Heavy Lift Derrick Pipelay

barge.

RIG BUILDING

The rig building sector registered the highest increased

contribution, at 18 per cent of total revenue, or $381.3

million, in 2005.  This was $263.1 million, or 223 per

cent, higher than in 2004.  The improvement was due

to progressive recognition from three units of jack-up

rigs which achieved the 20 per cent threshold and one

unit of the lower hull of a semi-submersible rig for

Atlantia Offshore, due for completion in the second

quarter of 2006.

ASSOCIATES’ CONTRIBUTIONS

The Group’s 30 per cent investment in the enlarged

Cosco Shipyard Group in China took effect in January

2005.  Pre-tax contribution from the enlarged group,

comprising five shipyards, was $25.2 million as

compared with $7.0 million from one shipyard, the

Cosco Dalian Shipyard, the year before.

Strategy for Sustained Growth

To achieve sustained growth, the SembCorp Marine

Group will continue to leverage on its complementary

facilities between its global hubs in Singapore and China

and Brazil. In 2005, the Group acquired a 100 per cent

equity interest in Sabine Industries, Inc. and its

subsidiaries Sabine Offshore Services, Inc and Sabine

Shipyards, Inc and a 25 per cent equity interest in Sabine

Vessels, Inc for a total consideration of US$6.4 million.

This acquisition is in line with SembCorp Marine’s

strategy to establish a strategic hub to serve its

customers in the Gulf of Mexico region and to grow its

offshore business.

In its plan to grow its China hub, the Group will be injecting

a total of $45.4 million over a period of two years, from

2006 to 2007, into the Cosco Shipyard Group.  The

injection of capital will allow SembCorp Marine Group

to participate in the growing ship repair and ship

conversion market in China.  The amount will be funded

by dividend income and internally generated funds.

The Group will also seek to increase its market share

through ownership and continuous research and

development of proprietary designs for jack-up rigs and

container vessels. Since its launch of the Baker Marine

Pacific Class 375 deep drilling offshore jack-up rig

design it had so far secured 13 units of jack-up orders

to date, with an expectation of more orders in the

near future.

GLOBAL
STRATEGIC

HUB
Cosco (Dalian)

Shipyard (China) Cosco (Nantong)
Shipyard (China)

Cosco (Shanghai)
Shipyard (China)

Jurong SML Shipyard
(Singapore)

PPL Shipyard
(Singapore) Sembawang Shipyard

(Singapore)

Jurong Shipyard
(Singapore)

Brazil

China

Singapore

Sabine - PPL
Industries (USA)

USA

Cosco (Guangzhou)
Shipyard (China)

Cosco (Zhoushan)
Shipyard (China)Mau  Jurong Shipyard

(Brazil)

Karimun Sembawang Shipyard
(Indonesia)
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During the year, the Group continued to foster strategic

alliance partnerships with customers that provided a

steady and growing baseload to the shipyards. Resulting

from these efforts, ASP Shipmanagement became an

alliance partner. Alliance partners accounted for 39 per

cent of the Group’s total ship repair revenue for 2005,

an increase of 10 per cent from the previous year.

Together with our regular customers, they contributed

86 per cent of total ship repair revenues for the year.

Locally, SembCorp Marine will be looking to maximise

its Singapore-based shipyard capacity to grow

and capture the rig market share. Sembawang Shipyard,

which was reorganised during the year to build rigs, will

be taking on its first rig-building project in early 2006.

Outlook for 2006

In 2005, the Group secured a record order book of $4.2

billion, excluding ship repair, with deliveries and

completions until 2009. The increase was 102 per cent

from the $2.1 billion worth of contracts secured for

2004. Total outstanding order book, excluding ship

repair, stood at $5.9 billion at the end of February 2006.

Based on the scheduled completion of these projects,

the SembCorp Marine Group expects overall

performance in 2006 to be stronger than 2005.

The market outlook for the offshore and marine industry

is expected to be strong in 2006, benefiting from

strength in global freight rates as well as high oil prices.

Despite a competitive environment, the outlook for ship

repair is expected to be resilient due to favourable

freight rates, while ship building demand is projected

to remain healthy in the niche market for feeder

container vessels and offshore supply vessels. Rig

building demand is also expected to provide robust

demand due to high worldwide rig utilisation rates,

unprecedented high charter rates as well as an ageing

rig fleet worldwide. Market fundamentals for FPSO and

Site for
rig construction

Site for
rig construction
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floating storage-offloading (FSO) vessels are further

projected to remain strong driven mainly by high oil

prices and increased exploration and production

activities.

Board and Management

On behalf of the Board of Directors, we would like to

express our deepest appreciation to Mr Lua Cheng Eng,

who has vacated the office of Chairman and Director of

the company with effect from 14 February 2006. As

Chairman, Mr Lua’s selfless dedication, commitment,

vision and leadership at the helm has enabled SembCorp

Marine to achieve a year of outstanding growth.

Ms Low Sin Leng, a Board member since November

2002, stepped down on 21 April 2005. We would like to

thank her for her dedicated service and the contributions

to the Board.

The Board would also like to welcome Mr Tang Kin Fei

who was appointed on 1 May 2005. Mr Tang is the Group

President and CEO of SembCorp Industries.

Finally, on behalf of the Board, we would like to thank

all our valued clients and business associates for their

continuous support. Our appreciation also goes to our

employees whose hard work, dedication and loyalty

have contributed to our achievements in the past year.

We would also like to thank all our shareholders for

their continued interest and support for the SembCorp

Marine Group.

Goh Geok Ling Tan Kwi Kin

Chairman Group President & CEO

1 March 2006
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For the year (S$’000) 2005      2004    % Change

Group Profit & Loss Account

Revenue                               2,119,279 1,362,764 56

Profits

    EBITDA  162,614 130,450 25

    Operating Profit     124,549 92,933 34

    Profit Before Tax    159,855 113,089 41

    Attributable Profit     121,398 94,087 29

Group Balance Sheet

Total Assets                          2,326,137 1,859,365 25

Total Liabilities                     1,210,440 856,655 41

Net Tangible Assets                   1,061,944 959,147 11

Shareholders' funds                   1,065,545 968,900 10

Minority interests                       50,152 33,810 48

Capital Employed                      1,115,697 1,002,710 11

Cash and cash equivalent 531,457 469,484 13

Borrowings (149,720) (149,645) -

Net Cash                                    381,737 319,839 19

Financial Ratios

Earnings Per Share (EPS)

    EPS, before tax (cents)       11.13 7.96 40

    EPS, after tax (cents)       8.45 6.62 28

Dividend Per Share

    Net dividend (cents)       7.60 6.00 27

    Gross dividend (cents)       9.50 7.50 27

Net Assets Value per share (cents) 73.47 67.87 8

Net Tangible Assets per share (cents) 73.22 67.19 9

Return on Turnover (%) 5.73 6.90 (17)

Return on Total Assets (%) 6.30 5.62 12

Return on Equity (%) 11.93 9.92 20



AT A GLANCE
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2005 (S$'000) 1 Q 2 Q 3Q 4Q Total

Turnover 447,735 470,354 451,224 749,966 2,119,279

Operating Profit 23,570 32,577 35,283 33,119 124,549

EBITDA 31,780 41,049 44,510 45,275 162,614

Profit before Tax 30,510 44,601 41,861 42,883 159,855

Attributable Profit 23,813 34,585 32,735 30,265 121,398

Earnings per share (cents)-Year-to-date 1.67 4.08 6.35 8.45

Earnings per share (cents)-In-quarter 1.67 2.41 2.27 2.10 8.45

2004 (S$'000) 1 Q 2 Q 3Q 4Q Total

Turnover 245,005 330,833 389,981 396,945 1,362,764

Operating Profit 18,162 25,421 31,424 17,926 92,933

EBITDA 27,307 34,333 40,681 28,129 130,450

Profit before Tax 22,724 31,822 30,010 28,533 113,089

Attributable Profit 21,064 26,960 21,514 24,549 94,087

Earnings per share (cents)-Year-to-date 1.48 3.38 4.89 6.62

Earnings per share (cents)-In-quarter 1.48 1.90 1.51 1.73 6.62
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FINANCIAL CALENDAR
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CORPORATE DIRECTORY

2006 Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec

Feb 14

May 3

Aug 1

Nov 2

May 18

Apr 7

                       Mar 30

Apr 24

Financial Year

Announcements of
Results & Dividends

2005 Full Year

Quarter 1, 2006

Quarter 2, 2006

Quarter 3, 2006

2005 Final Dividend
Payment

Delivery of
Annual Report

Delivery of EGM Notice

Annual General
Meeting/ Extraordinary
Meeting

Financial Year 2006

Financial Year

Announcements of
Results & Dividends

2004 Full Year

Quarter 1, 2005

Quarter 2, 2005

Quarter 3, 2005

2005 Interim Dividend
Payment

2004 Final Dividend
Payment

Delivery of
Annual Report

Annual General
Meeting/ Extraordinary
Meeting

2005 Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec

Feb 7

Apr 27

Aug 1

Oct 27

Aug 31

May 18

Apr 6

Apr 21

Financial Year 2005

Registered Office

29 Tanjong Kling Road, Singapore 628054

Telephone : (65) 6265 1766

Fax : (65) 6265 0201/ (65) 6261 0738

Website : www.sembcorpmarine.com.sg

E-mail : corporate@sembcorpmarine.com.sg

Share Registrar

Kon Choon Kooi Pte Ltd

47 Hill Street, #06-02

Chinese Chamber of Commerce & Industry Building

Singapore 179365

Auditor

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants

Singapore

Audit Partner: Daniel Soh

(Appointed during financial year ended 31 December 2003)

Bankers

Bank of America NT & SA

Citibank Singapore Ltd

DBS Bank Ltd

Mizuho Corporate Bank Ltd

Oversea-Chinese Banking Corporation Limited

Standard Chartered Bank

Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corporation

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited

United Overseas Bank Limited

Share Listing

SembCorp Marine’s shares are listed on the Singapore

Exchange Securities Trading Limited

Company Secretary

Ms Kwong Sook May
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CORPORATE STRUCTURE

JPL Services Pte Ltd

70%

Jurong Machinery
and Automation Pte Ltd

100%

Jurong Integrated
Services Pte Ltd

100%

Jurong Marine
Contractors Pte Ltd

100%

Bulk Trade Pte Ltd

100%

Jurong Clavon Pte Ltd

55%

JPL Industries Pte Ltd

53.8%

Jurong Marine Services
Pte Ltd

50%

SembCorp Marine Ltd

Singapore Shipyards

Overseas Shipyards

Supporting Companies

Jurong Shipyard Pte Ltd

100%

Sembawang Shipyard Pte Ltd

100%

Jurong SML Pte Ltd

100%

PPL Shipyard Pte Ltd

85%

P.T. Karimun Sembawang
Shipyard (Indonesia)

100%

Cosco Shipyard Group (China)

30%

Mauá Jurong SA (Brazil)

35%

Sabine-PPL Industries
Inc (USA)

85%

AT A GLANCE

as at 15 March 2006
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Staff Support Group

Shipyards (Singapore)

Supporting CompaniesORGANISATION STRUCTURE
as at 15 March 2006

Human Resource

Wong Peng Kin, Director, Group HR
wongpk@sembcorpmarine.com.sg

Kevin Choong, Vice President

Koh Guat Siew, Vice President

Marketing

Chua Teck Lian
Senior Vice President
tlchua@sembcorpmarine.com.sg

Don Lee Fook Kang
Senior Vice President

Ong Tian Khiam
Senior Vice President

Sembawang Shipyard

Chairman : Tan Kwi Kin
Managing Director : Ong Poh Kwee
Executive Director : Wong Lee Lin
General Manager (Business) : K. K. Wee
General Manager (Operations) : Simon Kuik
Email: sembship@sembship.com

Engineering

Seow Tan Hong, Senior Vice President
thseow@sembcorpmarine.com.sg

Legal

Tan Yah Sze, Vice President
tanys@sembcorpmarine.com.sg

Internal Audit

Say Chiou Mei, Asst Vice President
saycm@sembcorpmarine.com.sg

Investor Relations & Communications

Judy Han, Senior Vice President
judy@sembcorpmarine.com.sg

Finance & Administration

Wee Sing Guan, Director, Group Finance
sgwee@sembcorpmarine.com.sg

Tan Cheng Tat, Chief Financial Officer

Low Siew Lian, Deputy CFO

Board of Directors

Group President & CEO : Tan Kwi Kin
President & COO : Wong Weng Sun
Deputy President : Ong Poh Kwee

Jurong Shipyard

Chairman : Tan Kwi Kin
Managing Director : Wong Weng Sun
Executive Director : Lee Yeok Hoon
Senior General Manager (Offshore) : Don Lee
Asst General Manager (Ship Repair) : Tey Chin Tiong
Email: corporate@jspl.com.sg
             os_eng@jspl.com.sg

Jurong SML

Chairman : Tan Kwi Kin
Alternate Chairman : Yu Ching Ong
Deputy Chairman : Ng Thiam Poh
Executive Director : Freddie Woo
Email: smlsmktg@sembcorp.com.sg

Mauá Jurong SA (Brazil)

Director & CEO : Chan Nai Eng
Email: commercial@mauajurong.com.br

Jurong Marine Cong Marine Contractors

Executive Director : Wong Peng Kin
Email: jmcl@pacific.net.sg

JPL Services

Director : Yu Ching Ong
Email: jpl_services@pacific.net.sg

Jurong Machinery & Automation

Executive Director : Chew Yam Poey
Email: admin@jmapl.com.sg

Jurong Integrated Services

Executive Director : Chang King
Email: kchang@jspl.com.sg

AT A GLANCE

Corporate Development

Wee Keng Hwee, Senior Vice President
khwee@sembcorpmarine.com.sg

Shipyards (Overseas)

Cosco Shipyard Group (China)

Deputy General Manager: Liu Chin Peng
Email: coscdyd@mail.dlptt.In.cn

P.T. Karimun Sembawang
Shipyard (Indonesia)

President Director : Ng Thiam Poh
Email : tpng@sembcorpmarine.com.sg

PPL Shipyard

Chairman : Tan Kwi Kin
Deputy Chairman : Benety Chang
Managing Director : Ong Tian Khiam
General Manager
(Engneering & Operations) : Royce Lim
General Manager
(Special Construction) : Cheong Kok Mun
Email: coporate@ppl.com.sg
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January

• Delivery of Modec Venture 11, an FPSO conversion

from 149,686 dwt VLCC M.T. Fairway for MODEC Inc.

by Jurong Shipyard

• Fund raising of $306,530 through contributions from

employees, friends and subcontractors for the

Singapore’s Red Cross’s aid for the tsunami victims.

February

• Award of US$134 million contract to PPL Shipyard

by PT Apexindo Pratama Duta Tbk for the construction

and delivery of one unit of Baker Marine Pacific

Class 375 Deep Drilling Offshore Jack-Up Rig.

• Announcement of full-year 2004 financial results.

• Award of US$120 million contract to PPL

Shipyard by Deep Drilling Invest Pte Ltd for

the construction and delivery of one unit of Baker

Marine Pacific Class 375 Deep Drilling Offshore Jack-

Up Rig.

• Award of Letter of Intent from ConocoPhillips China

Inc. to Sembawang Shipyard and SMOE Pte Ltd to

fabricate and integrate topside facilities for a

FPSO vessel.

• Co-hosting of the ‘Great Maritime Adventure’

by Sembawang Shipyard, organised by the

Singapore Maritime Foundation to promote the

industry and the career opportunities offered by

the industry.

• Award of US$50 million contract to Jurong Shipyard

by Houston-based Atlantia Offshore for the

fabrication of a lower hull of a submersible for the

Independence Hub gas-processing platform

in the ultra deep water of the Gulf of Mexico.

• Award of US$150 million contract to Sembawang

Shipyard in partnership with Huisman Special Lifting

Equipment B.V by SapuraCrest Pretroleum Berhad,

Malaysia for the design and construction of one unit

of Self-Propelled DP2 Heavy Lift Derrick Pipelay

Vessel.

March

• Participation in Choice Engineering @ Careers 2005

at Suntec City International Exhibition and

Convention Centre.

• Award of US$121 million contract to PPL Shipyard

by Awilco Offshore ASA  for the construction of one

unit of a Baker Marine Pacific Class 375 Deep Drilling

Offshore Jack-Up Rig.

• Participation in ‘Taking Stock of Offshore &

Marine Companies’ forum for retail investors,

organised by Singapore Stock Exchange and UOB

Kay Hian.

• Participation in Seatrade Cruise Shipping Convention

in Miami, USA, one of the world’s premier cruise

shows, by Sembawang Shipyard.

April

• Award of US$129 million contract to PPL

Shipyard by Seatankers Management Co. Ltd

for the construction of one unit of Baker

Marine Pacific Class 375 Deep Drilling Offshore

Jack-Up Rig.

• Official opening of De Anchor, an integrated facility

hub, by Petrobras President, Mr Jose Eduardo Dutra.

• Award of a series of US-flagged tankers to

Sembawang Shipyard from Polar Tankers, a

subsidiary of oil major ConocoPhilips.

• 42nd Annual General Meeting and Extraordinary

General Meeting.

• Award of US$127 million contract to Jurong Shipyard

by Petrojack AS for the construction of one unit of

Baker Marine Pacific Class 375 Deep Drilling Offshore

Jack-Up Rig.

• Announcement of first quarter 2005 financial results.

• Appointment of Mr Tang Kin Fei, President and CEO

of SembCorp Industries as a Director of SembCorp

Marine Board.

• Strike Steel Ceremony for Hull No. P2005 for PT

Apexindo Pratama Duta Tbk.

May

• Organisation of a week-long safety campaign ‘I CARE

– Working Towards Zero Incident’.

• Appointment of Mr Lua Cheng Eng as Chairman and

Director to the SembCorp Marine Board.

• Award of US$130 million contract to PPL Shipyard

by Japan Drilling Co. Ltd for the construction of one

unit of Baker Marine Pacific Class 375 Deep Drilling

Offshore Jack-Up Rig.

• Presentation of $24,050 in bursary awards to 30

students by Sembawang Shipyard.

June

• Signing of long-term Favoured Customer Contract

with ASP Ship Management Group ( UK ) by

Sembawang Shipyard.
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• Strike steel ceremony of Petrojack I, Jurong

Shipyard’s foray into rig building with its first

newbuild jack-up rig.

• Participation in premier trade show Nor-Shipping

2005 in Oslo, Norway.

• Award of US$780 million contract to Jurong Shipyard

by Seatankers Management Co. Ltd to build two

ultra-deepwater semi-submersible drilling rigs.

• Award of US$131 million rig building contract to

Jurong Shipyard by Petrojack ASA for the construction

of one unit of Baker Marine Pacific Class 375 Deep

Drilling Offshore Jack-Up Rig.

July

• Christening and delivery of Wan Hai 311, the largest and

most advanced container vessel designed and built in

Singapore, by Jurong Shipyard to Wan Hai Lines.

• Visit to Jurong Shipyard by officials from Maritime

and Port Authority of Singapore, Ministry of

Transport, Singapore Maritime Foundation and

Association of Singapore Marine Industries.

August

• Announcement of second quarter 2005 financial results.

• Signing of Letter of Intent between Jurong Shipyard

and  PetroMena AS to build a semi-submersible rig in

the region of US$400 million.

• Confirmation of option to build second unit of the sixth-

generation ultra deep water semi-submersible

drilling rig for SeaDrill Limited at a contract value of

US$404 million, with an option to build a third unit.

• National Day Observance with Mr Raymond Lim,

Minister in Prime Minister’s Office and Second Minister

for Finance and Foreign Affairs.

• Strike Steel Ceremony for Hull No. P2009 for Deep

Driller 4 Pte Ltd.

September

• Presentation of bursary awards to children of

Sembawang Shipyard’s employees.

• Sponsorship of LatinAsia Biz 2005, ‘Bridging

Partnerships’, a networking exhibition and forum

held in Singapore to affirm close ties with Brazil and

strategic presence in Latin-America.

• Joint completion of the topside facilities on ERHA FPSO,

one of the world’s largest FPSO vessels by SMOE and

Sembawang Shipyard.

• Visit to Mauá Jurong, Brazil, by Deputy Prime

Minister and Minister for Law, Prof S Jayakumar

and delegates.

• Delivery of Jurong Shipyard’s first 2,646 TEU Jubilee

Class containership, Wan Hai 311.

• Acquisition of Sabine Shipyard, located in Texas,

USA by PPL Shipyard.

• Book launching ceremony for ‘Ahead Of Its Time’,

the Chevron Shipping – Jurong Shipyard Alliance

Commemorative book.

• Strike Steel Ceremony for Hull No. P2009 for Awilco

Offshore ASA.

October

• Award of US$144 million rig building contract to PPL

Shipyard by Awilco Offshore ASA for the construction

of one unit of Baker Marine Pacific Class 375 Deep

Drilling Offshore Jack-Up Rig.

• Ceremonial launching of the first Baker Marine Class

375 jack-up rig by PPL Shipyard for Kristiansand

Drilling Pte Ltd.

• Completion of the acquisition of 100 per cent equity

interest in Sabine-PPL Industries, Inc in Texas, USA

by PPL Shipyard.

• Launch of the third edition of the ‘My HSE Diary’

by Sembawang Shipyard.

• Award of US$423 million contract to Jurong Shipyard

by Norway’s Larsen Oil & Gas for the construction

of a sixth generation semi-submersible rig.

November

• Naming ceremony of P-50 at Mauá Jurong, Brazil.

• Participation in the ‘Clean & Green Week’ Schools

Carnival 2005 by Sembawang Shipyard, organised

by the National Environment Agency.

December

• Presentation of SembCorp Marine’s School Book

Assistance Grant (SchoolBAG) Scheme to needy

families with schooling children.

• Presentation of Green Wave Environmental Care

Awards to winning school entries.

• Completion ceremony of P-54 Marine Hull Conversion

in Jurong Shipyard.

January 2006

• Award of US$175 million contract to PPL Shipyard by

Aban Loyd Chiles Offshore Ltd for the construction of

one unit of Baker Marine Pacific Class 375 Jack-up Rig.

February

• Appointment of Mr Goh Geok Ling as Chairman and

Director to the SembCorp Marine Board on 14

February 2006.

• Mr Lua Cheng Eng vacated office of Chairman and

Director of SembCorp Marine on 14 February 2006.

March

• SembCorp Marine’s 2004 Annual Report received

the Bronze Award for mainboard-listed companies

with market capitalisation of $500 million and above.

At the Singapore Corporate Awards presentation

event held on 7 March 2006. The award recognises

and honours SGX-listed companies as well as

individuals who, through their corporate practices,

have helped to raise Singapore’s corporate disclosure

standards and corporate governance. The

competition is jointly organised by the Institute of

Certified Public Accountants of Singapore, The

Singapore Exchange, Singapore Institute of Directors,

The Business Times, Securities Investors Association

Singapore and the Investment Management

Association of Singapore.
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Most Transparent Company
(Non-Electronics Manufacturing Catergory)

Runner-up : SembCorp Marine

SembCorp Marine was awarded Runner-up for Most

Transparent Company (Non-Electronics Manufacturing

Category) during the 6th Investors’ Choice Awards,

conferred by Securities Investors Association

(Singapore).

NTUC Plaque of Commendation
Sembawang Shipyard

Sembawang Shipyard was awarded the NTUC Plaque

of Commendation by the National Trade Union Congress

for its significant contributions and efforts in people

development and the promotion of good industrial

relations.

South West District Community
Safety and Security Programme
(CSSP) Awards
Silver Award: The Shipyard Security Watch Group

The Shipyard Security Watch Group – a joint effort by

Jurong Shipyard, Jurong West NPC and two other yards

– was awarded the Silver award. Singled out from 280

nominated projects in the South West District

Community Safety and Security Programme Awards

2005, the watch group was commended for its active

involvement of security and safety personnel and their

collective vigilance within the yard.

National Community, Safety and
Security Programme (CSSP) Award
National Award : The Shipyard Security Watch Group

The Shipyard Security Watch Group was awarded the

Silver award during the National Community Safety and

Security Programme Awards Ceremony, co-organised

by the Ministry of Home Affairs and the People’s

Association. The watch group was praised for its joint

patrols and evacuation exercises with police personnel

as part of proactive measures to safeguard the yard’s

security and safety.

Ministry of Manpower’s Annual
Safety and Performance Awards
2 Silver and 2 Merit Award: Jurong Shipyard

1 Silver and 8 Merit Award: Sembawang Shipyard

During the Ministry of Manpower’s Annual Safety

and Performance Awards, Jurong Shipyard was awarded

the Silver and Merit Award for its key projects that had

observed good safety performances. The FPSO

conversion of Baobab Ivoiren MV 10 and MODEC Venture

11 (Hull Conversion) won the Silver Award while the

FPSO upgrading of Nan Hai Fa Xian and turret fabrication

and installation of FMC SOFEC internal disconnectable

turret won the Merit Award.

Sembawang Shipyard received one Silver and eight

Merit Awards. In particular, good health, safety and

environment performance on FPSO Erha won the

Silver award and the other projects that won the merit

awards included the Arco Arjuna, Berge Sisar, Edco,

High Endurance, Jason 5, Caleomma, St Andrew and

W D Fairway.

Singapore’s H.E.A.L.T.H. Award
Gold Award: Jurong Shipyard

Gold Award: Jurong SML

Silver Award: Sembawang Shipyard

Jurong Shipyard and Jurong SML were conferred the

Gold Award in Singapore’s HEALTH (Helping Employees

Achieve Life-Time Health) Awards by the Health

Promotion Board. The award recognised organisations

with commendable Workplace Health Promotion

programmes conducted for the employees.

National Safety Innovation Teams
(SIT) Award
Silver Award: Jurong Shipyard

Silver and Bronze Award: Sembawang Shipyard

The National Safety Innovation Teams Convention

awarded Jurong Shipyard’s safety team the Silver

award for its ‘Emergency Signalling System’ project.

Under the same category, Sembawang Shipyard

claimed the Silver and Bronze award with its winning

and innovative project entitled ‘Cable Jacks’ and ‘Hull

Hooker’ respectively.

Innovate, Discover, Engineer and
Achieve (IDEA) Award
Gold Award : Jurong Shipyard

Merit Award: Jurong Shipyard

Organised by SembCorp Industries, the IDEA

Award recognised outstanding innovations that had

resulted in significant business performance

improvement. DOME team from Piping and Outfitting

Section bagged the grand award and the joint innovation

developed by the MIS and HR Departments, receive the

Merit Award.

Community Chest’s SHARE
Corporate Award
Platinum Award: Sembawang Shipyard

Singapore’s Community Chest’s SHARE Programme

conferred the platinum award to Sembawang Shipyard

for its active effort and contributions to the Community

Chest’s SHARE program. As a supportive organisation,

Sembawang Shipyard had also been recognised with

the SHARE Programme Gold Award for year 2003.

Occupational Health Best Practices
Award 2005
Ergonomics Solutions Category (Innovation Award):

Sembawang Shipyard

Sembawang Shipyard received the Ergonomic Solution

Award during the Occupational Health Best Practice

Award 2005. This award was a firm recognition of

Sembawang Shipyard’s commitment to make the

working environment a safe and healthy workplace for

its employees.

Singapore Innovation Class
In recognition of its commitment in applying

innovation to improve quality, productivity and

safety, Jurong Shipyard was awarded the Singapore

Innovation Class certification by SPRING Singapore on

23 January 2006.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE & TRANSPARENCY

Overview

The SembCorp Marine Group is committed to meeting

high standards of corporate governance. Its corporate

governance principles reflect its strong belief in

protecting and enhancing shareholder value in a

sustainable way. The Group firmly believes that the

professionalism, integrity and commitment of its Board

Members and employees, supported by a sound system

of policies, practices and internal controls are the

cornerstones that will enable it to preserve long-term

value and returns for its shareholders.

In line with its objective to instill and enhance strong

corporate governance practices across its group of

companies, SembCorp Marine has put in place a whistle-

blowing policy and procedures which provide employees

with well-defined and accessible channels within the

Group through which employees may in confidence,

raise concerns about possible improprieties in matters

of business activities, financial reporting or other matters.

The aim of this policy is to encourage the reporting of

such matters in good faith, with the confidence that

retaliatory action will not be taken against any employee

who has filed any complaint alleging possible

improprieties. (Details of the whistle blowing policy is

available on pages 39 to 40).

During the year in review, SembCorp Marine further

enhanced its corporate governance by forming a Risk

Committee to assist the Board of Directors in fulfilling

its oversight responsibilities of the Enterprise Risk

Management system, internal control processes and

procedures of the Group.

Such efforts in pursuit of good corporate governance

were recognised at the Securities Investors Association

of Singapore’s 2005 Investors’ Choice Awards where

SembCorp Marine was named one of Singapore’s

most transparent companies (Non-Electronics

Manufacturing Category) at the annual Securities

Investors Association of Singapore’s 2005 Investors’

Choice Awards.

SembCorp Marine endorses the principles of the Code

of Corporate Governance issued by the Singapore

Exchange Securities Trading Ltd. This report outlines

SembCorp Marine’s corporate governance processes

and activities for the financial year with reference to

the principles set out in the Code.

Board of Directors

Effective Board To Lead and Effect Controls (Principle 1)

The Board’s responsibility is to oversee the business,

affairs and performance of the SembCorp Marine Group

in the best interests of its shareholders. The Board

focuses its activities on the Group’s key requirements

such as:

• Providing entrepreneurial leadership and directions

of the Group

• Ensuring prudent and effect ive controls

• Setting values and standards to ensure obligations

to shareholders are met

• Overseeing the proper conduct of the Group’s business

The Board schedules four meetings a year to review and

discuss reports by management on the performance of

the Group, its plans and prospects. Additional Board

meetings are also held to deal with ad-hoc matters of

significance as well as immediate issues facing the

Group.  A total of four Board meetings were held in the

year, which achieved an average of 78 per cent Board

attendances in the year.

In addition, the Board has adopted a set of internal

controls which sets out approval limits for capital

expenditure, investments and divestments, bank

borrowings and cheque signatories’ arrangements at

Board level. Approval sub-limits are also provided at

Management levels to facilitate operational efficiency.

To ensure efficient discharge of its responsibilities and

to provide independent oversight of Management, the

Board has established a number of Board committees,

including the Audit Committee, Executive Resources &

Compensation Committee, Nominating Committee and

Risk Committee. These key committees are made up

of independent and/or non-executive directors.

Other ad-hoc committees can be formed from time to

time to look into specific areas when the need arises.

Membership in the different committees is carefully

managed to ensure that there is equitable distribution

of responsibilities among Board Members, to maximise

the effectiveness of the Board and foster active

participation and contribution. Diversity of experiences

and appropriate skills are also considered.

“Many studies and research have shown that investors are willing to pay
significant premiums for companies with effective corporate governance,
not just in form but also in substance. Some institutional investors in
emerging market companies are willing to pay as much as 30 percent
more for shares in companies with good governance, with companies
enjoying higher price multiples. Increasingly, investors are paying more
attention to the proper functioning of both boards and management, and
beyond the hard financial numbers. Ultimately, they are assessing how
much trust they should put into each investment candidate.”

Mrs Lim Hwee Hua

Minister of State for Finance and Transport

12 August 2005
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Name of Director Position held Date of first Date of last Nature of
on the Board appointment to re-election Appointment

the Board as Director

Lua Cheng Eng Chairman 22 March 2005 21 April 2005 Non-Executive/
(vacated office of Chairman and Non-Independent
director on 14 February 2006)

Tan Kwi Kin President & CEO 1 April 1990 17 April 2003 Executive/
 Non-Independent

Tan Pheng Hock Director 16 April 2001 28 April 2004 Non-Executive/
Non-Independent

Kiyotaka Matsuzawa Director 30 September 2001 21 April 2005 Non-Executive/
Independent

Tan Tew Han Director 17 April 2003 28 April 2004 Non-Executive/
Independent

Ajaib Haridass Director 31 October 2003 28 April 2004 Non-Executive/
Independent

Haruo Kubota Director 15 July 2004 21 April 2005 Non-Executive/
Independent

Tang Kin Fei Director 1 May 2005 Not applicable Non-Executive/
Non-Independent

Board Composition and Committees

Board Members Audit Executive Resource Nominating Risk Committee
Committee & Compensation Committee

Committee

Lua Cheng Eng1 Chairman Chairman

Tan Kwi Kin

Tan Pheng Hock

Kiyotaka Matsuzawa

Tan Tew Han Chairman Member Member Member2

Ajaib Haridass Member Member Member Chairman2

Haruo Kubota Member Member2

Tang Kin Fei3 Member Member

Strong and Independent Board exercising Objective Judgement (Principle 2)

Audit Committee (Principle 11)

The Board members for 2005 were:

Chaired by Mr Lua Cheng Eng, the Board has eight

directors of whom seven are non-executive directors.

Mr Lua Cheng Eng vacated his office of Chairman and

Director on 14 February 2006, to be replaced by Mr Goh

Geok Ling on that same day.  Mr Tan Kwi Kin who is the

President and CEO of SembCorp Marine is the sole

executive director.

The Board is composed favourably of a majority of non-

executive directors, independent of management and

independent in terms of character and judgement.  This

enables the Management to benefit from an external

and objective perspective on issues that are brought

before the Board.  The directors consider that the Board

is of the appropriate size and with the right mix of skills

and experience given the size of SembCorp Marine. The

Board members comprise business leaders, current or

retired CEOs, professionals with financial background

and a practising lawyer.  Profiles of the Directors are

found on pages 42 to 46 of this Annual Report.

Reflecting the focus of the Group’s business strategy to

strengthen itself in key emerging markets, one-quarter

of the Board today comprises directors who are non-

Singaporeans, namely Mr Kiyotaka Matsuzawa and

Mr Haruo Kubota.

Board Committees

SembCorp Marine has four Board committees:-

• Audit Committee

• Executive Resource & Compensation Committee

• Nominating Committee

• Risk Committee

The Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises three independent

directors: Mr Tan Tew Han as Chairman, Mr Ajaib Haridass

and Mr Haruo Kubota as members. During the year under

review, the Committee held four meetings, where all

members participated actively at all the meetings.

The main responsibility of the Audit Committee is to

review with the external auditor, internal auditor and

Management, the Group’s general policies and control

procedures, interested persons transactions, as well as

any matters or issues that affect the performance of the

Group. It reviews the quarterly, half-yearly and annual

results announcements as well as the financial statements

at Group and company levels before they are submitted

to the Board for approval. The Committee also

recommends the appointment of the external auditors.

In its role, the Audit Committee assists the Board of

Directors in fulfilling its fiduciary responsibilities relating

to corporate accounting and reporting practices of

the Group, and in respect of interested person

transactions, its responsibility to act in the interest of

the shareholders as a whole. The Committee meets

with the external and internal auditors, without the

presence of Management, at least once a year to review

the cooperation and assistance given by Management

to them.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the non-audit

services provided by its external auditors to the Group,

and is satisfied that the provision of non-audit services

by the external auditors did not impair their

independence as external auditors.

The Executive Resource & Compensation Committee

The Executive Resource & Compensation Committee

was chaired by Mr Lua Cheng Eng and includes Mr Tan

Tew Han, Mr Ajaib Haridass and Mr Tang Kin Fei

(appointed on 5 May 2005) as members.  Mr Goh Geok

Ling took over as Chairman from Mr Lua on 14 February

2006.

The Committee oversees executive compensation and

development with the aim of building capable and

committed senior management through focused

management and progressive policies which can attract,

motivate and retain talented executives to meet the

current and future needs of the Group. To this end, it

1 Appointed on 27 April 2005 and vacated office of Chairman and Director on 14 February 2006
2 Appointed on 27 April 2005
3 Appointed on 5 May 2005
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reviews and approves remuneration and promotion of

key executives as well as to decide on issues pertaining

to their development and succession. Hence, it also

establishes guidelines on share options and other long-

term incentives plans and approves the grant of such

incentives to key executives. The underlying philosophy

is to motivate executives to maximise operating and

financial performance and shareholder value.

On an annual basis, the Committee conducts a

succession planning review of the President, all his

direct reports, and selected key positions in SembCorp

Marine.  Potential internal and external candidates for

succession are reviewed for different time horizons of

immediate, medium-term and longer-term needs.

The Committee further reviews the remuneration of its

non-executive directors, executive director and senior

executives, as well as major human resource

management and compensation policies and practices

for the rest of the Group. While the Committee’s Chairman

is not regarded as independent within the context of

the definition of “independence” in the Code, he is a

non-executive director independent of Management

with a clear separation of his role from Management in

deliberations of the Committee.

The Committee also has access to expert professional

advice on human resource matters whenever there is

a need to consult externally. In its deliberations, it takes

into consideration industry practices and norms in

compensation. The President is not present during the

discussions relating to his own compensation, terms

and conditions of service, and the review of his

performance.

The Committee meets among its members without the

presence of Management, at least once a year.  For the

year in review, it held three meetings in the year and

achieved full attendance.

Nominating Committee

The Nominating Committee was chaired by Mr Lua Cheng

Eng and includes Mr Tan Tew Han, Mr Ajaib Haridass

and Mr Tang Kin Fei (appointed on 5 May 2005) as

members. Mr Goh Geok Ling took over as Chairman

from Mr Lua on 14 February 2006.

The primary purpose of this Committee is to support

and advise the SembCorp Marine, its unlisted

subsidiaries and, where applicable, unlisted associated

companies by nominating suitable candidates who are

best able to discharge their responsibilities as directors.

This means evaluating the balance of skills, knowledge

and experience of these boards and assessing the

candidates for their regard for the law and the high

standards of governance practised by the Group.

Appointments to these boards are made on merit

and against objective criteria. The Nominating

Committee ensures that appointees have enough time

available to devote to their directorship roles.  The

independence of each director is reviewed annually by

the Committee.

Risk Committee

The Risk Committee was formed in April 2005 as part

of SembCorp Marine’s effort to formalise and strengthen

its risk management framework and processes.  Prior

to its formation, its role and functions were carried out

by the Audit Committee.

Currently, the Risk Committee comprises four members,

namely Mr Ajaib Haridass as Chairman, Mr Tan Tew Han,

Mr Haruo Kubota and Mr Tang Kin Fei (appointed on

14 February 2006) as members.

The Committee’s primary role and functions is to assist

the Board of Directors in fulfilling its oversight

responsibilities in risk management by reviewing:-

• The adequacy and effectiveness of the risk

management plans, systems, processes and

procedures of the Group

• Group-wide risk policies, guidelines and limits

• The risk portfolio and risk levels including the

treatment of identified risks

During the year in review, the Risk Committee held two

meetings, and all members participated actively at all

the meetings.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer (Principle 3)

There is a clear separation of the roles and

responsibilities between the Chairman and the

President.  The President is neither related to the current

Chairman, Mr Goh Geok Ling, nor the preceding

Chairman, Mr Lua Cheng Eng.

The Chairman, who is non-executive, takes a leading

role in the SembCorp Marine Group’s drive to achieve

and maintain a high standard of corporate governance

with the full support of the directors, Company Secretary

and Management.

He is responsible for the leadership of the Board,

ensuring its effectiveness on all aspects of its role and

setting its agenda.  He acts independently in the best

interests of the Group and shareholders. Meanwhile,

the President is charged with the executive responsibility

of running the Group’s business. The Chairman facilitates

the contribution of non-executive directors in particular

and ensures constructive relations between executive

and non-executive directors.  He also ensures that the

members of the Board work together with the

Management in constructive debate on various matters,

including strategic issues and operational issues.

Formal Appointment and Re-Election of Directors

(Principle 4)

SembCorp Marine believes that all directors should be

submitted for re-election at regular intervals, subject

to continued satisfactory performance. The President,

while also a board member, is also subject to retirement

and re-election by shareholders as part of board renewal.

As nominations and election of Board members are the

prerogatives and proper rights of all shareholders, the

Board ensures the planned and progressive refreshing

of its members.

The Company’s Articles of Association require one-third

of directors to retire and subject themselves to re-

election by shareholders at every Annual General

Meeting (AGM) (“one-third rotation rule”). In other

words, no director stays in office for more than three

years without being re-elected by shareholders. At the

forthcoming AGM, Mr Tan Kwi Kin and Mr Tan Tew Han

will each submit themselves for retirement and re-

election by shareholders pursuant to the one-third

rotation rule.

In addition, a newly-appointed director will submit

himself for retirement and election at the AGM

immediately following his appointment. Thereafter, he

is subject to the one-third rotation rule. Mr Tang Kin Fei

and Mr Goh Geok Ling, who were appointed to

the Board on 1 May 2005 and 14 February 2006

respectively, will each submit themselves for

retirement and re-election by shareholders at the

forthcoming AGM.

The Board does not believe it is possible to compile a

list of criteria which are appropriate to characterise, in

all circumstances, whether a non-executive director is

independent.  It is the approach and attitude of each

non-executive director which is critical. The Board aims

for diversity of knowledge and experience among its

members in relation to the various businesses of the

Group and the international nature of the Group. The

Board, through the delegation of its authority to the

Nominating Committee, has used its best efforts to

ensure that directors appointed to the Board possess

the background, experience and knowledge in

technology, business, finance and management skills

critical to the Group’s businesses and that each director

brings to the Board an independent and objective

perspective to enable balanced and well-considered

decisions to be made.

Boards within the Group are periodically renewed to

ensure strong and sound leadership at the board level

to enable a refreshing of talent as well as encourage

dynamics of an independent and balanced board

composition.

Board performance and conduct of its affairs

Active Participation and Valuable Contributions are

key to Overall Effectiveness of the Board (Principle 5)

Newly-appointed directors are given briefings by the

Management. Facility visits to the premises are also



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE & TRANSPARENCY

S
em

bC
or

p 
M

ar
in

e 
Lt

d
A
nn

ua
l R

ep
or

t 
2

0
0

5
3
5

3
4

arranged to enable them to acquire an understanding

of the Group, its business activities and its strategic

directions.  Existing directors are also invited to such

facility visits and orientation programmes.

Changes to regulations and accounting standards are

monitored closely by Management. To keep pace with

regulatory changes, where these changes have

an important bearing on the Group’s or directors’

disclosure obligations, Directors are briefed either

during Board meetings, or at specially-convened

sessions, including at trainings and seminars conducted

by external professionals.  Where necessary, the Group

also sponsors its Directors to training, courses and

seminars such as new or changes in laws, regulations

and accounting standards, which are of relevance to

the Group.

Informal reviews of a Board’s performance are undertaken

on a continual basis by the Nominating Committee with

inputs from the other Board members and the President.

The Board is constantly reviewed to ensure strong,

independent and sound leadership for the continued

success of the Group’s business.  The Board recognises

the contribution of directors who over time have

developed deep insights into the Group’s businesses

and would exercise its discretion to retain the services of

such directors.

Full access to Information and Resources

Directors have Complete, Adequate and Timely

Information and Resources (Principle 6)

As a general rule, Board papers are sent to directors a

week before a board meeting so that they have the relevant

information for consideration and deliberation at the

meeting. Managers who can provide additional insight

into the matters at hand would be present at the relevant

time during the board meeting.

Management provides adequate and monthly management

and other financial statements to the Board on business

issues that require the Board’s decision as well as on-

going reports relating to the Group’s operational and

financial performance.  Where a physical Board meeting

is not possible, timely communication with members of

the Board is effected through electronic means which

include electronic mail, teleconferencing and

videoconferencing. Alternatively, Management will arrange

to meet and brief each director personally before seeking

the Board’s approval.

The Board has separate and independent access to the

President, members of senior management and the

Company Secretary at all times. Directors are also provided

with the names and contact details of senior management

and the Company Secretary to facilitate direct access to

them. Where necessary, independent professional advice

and consultations will be made available to directors to

ensure that full information and advice are available before

important decisions are made by the Board.  All issues are

actively debated by the Board and properly recorded.

Likewise, the Audit Committee must also meet the external

and internal auditors separately at least once a year,

without the presence of the President and other senior

management members, in order to have the free and

unfiltered access to information that it may require.

The Company Secretary assists the Chairman by preparing

meetings’ agenda, attending and preparing minutes of Board

proceedings, ensuring good information flows within the

Board and its committees. She assists the Board on

compliance with the Company’s Memorandum and Articles

of Association, laws and regulations, including requirements

of the Companies Act, Securities Futures Act, the Singapore

Exchange Securities Trading Ltd (SGX-ST), the Accounting

and Corporate Regulatory Authority and shareholders. The

Company Secretary assists the Board to upkeep and

implement good corporate governance and best practices

across the Group.

Competitive Remuneration Report
Remuneration of Directors Adequate and not Excessive

(Principle 7)

The President, as Executive Director, does not receive

director’s fees. He is a lead member of Management. His

compensation consists of his salary, allowances, bonuses,

performance share awards conditional upon his meeting

certain performance targets (details are available on page

145 of the Annual Report) and options.  Details on share

Type of appointment Remuneration
$

(i) Board of Directors
- Basic fee 25,000
- Chairman’s allowance 35,000
- Vice Chairman’s allowance 20,000

(ii) Audit Committee
- Chairman’s allowance 20,000
- Members’ allowance 10,000

(iii) Risk Committee
- Chairman’s allowance 15,000
- Members’ allowance 10,000

(iv) Executive Resource & 
Compensation Committee/
Nominating Committee
- Chairman’s allowance 15,000
- Members’ allowance 10,000

plans granted and its fair value are available on

pages 142 to 146 and page 209 of the Annual Report,

respectively.

Non-executive directors have remuneration packages

that consist of a directors’ fee component according to

SembCorp Marine’s Directors’ Fee Policy, an attendance

fee component and a share options component

according to SembCorp Marine’s Employee Share Option

Plan. SembCorp Marine does not have a retirement

plan for non-executive directors. The Directors’ Fee

Policy is based on a scale of fees divided into basic

retainer fees as director and additional fees for

attendance and service on Board committees (details

are available on page 31 of the Annual Report). Details

on share options granted and its fair value are available

on pages 142 to 146 and page 209 of the Annual

Report, respectively.

The basis of allocation of the number of share options

takes into account a director’s contributions and

additional responsibilities at board committees. The

report on directors’ remuneration is found on page 209

of the Annual Report.  SembCorp Marine believes that

Notes:
Mr Tan Kwi Kin, as an Executive Director, does not receive director’s fee

its directors are adequately compensated and in line

with market norms.

The directors’ remuneration for 2005 is $353,832 ($337,000

in 2004) and is derived using the following rates:
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Competitive Reward System to Ensure Highest

Performance and Retention of Best Talents and Key

Executives (Principle 8)

Disclosure on Remuneration (Principle 9)

SembCorp Marine adopts an incentive compensation

plan for key executives tied to the creation of economic

value add, as well as to attainment of individual

performance goals. An individual’s incentive

compensation is linked to the economic-value-add

created by SembCorp Marine Group and its subsidiaries.

A “bonus bank” is used to hold incentive compensation

credited in any year. Typically, one-third of the available

balance is paid out in cash each year, with the balance

being carried forward to the following year. Such carried-

forward balances may either be reduced or increased

in future, based on the yearly economic-value-add

performance of the SembCorp Marine Group and its

subsidiaries.

In 2005, the Executive Resource & Compensation

Committee, with advice and assistance from an

independent compensation consultant, redesigned its

approach to the share-based incentive awards, with

particular focus on establishing new standards for

share-based incentive grants. The redesigned share-

based incentive grants took into account evolving

practices at other major public-listed companies, as

well as SembCorp Marine’s objective of further

enhancing linkages between employee performance

and the creation of shareholder value. The redesign

was completed and implemented in 2005.

The Board has decided not to prepare a separate

remuneration report as most of the information is found

in the directors’ report. This Annual Report has indicated

where the information required to be disclosed can be

found.

To provide a macro perspective of the remuneration

patterns of key executives while maintaining

confidentiality, the following table shows the numbers

of key employees in remuneration bands of S$250,000

from S$100,000.

SembCorp Marine conducted a comprehensive risk

assessment on its group-wide business processes in

a systematic approach outlined in its Enterprise Risk

Management programme. These risks were

consolidated and categorised into a register of top

eight risks, to be reviewed annually, that would affect

the Group in achieving its strategic goals. The top three

risk categories were deemed to be:

• Project management risks

Inadequate control and monitoring of procurement,

construction schedules and variation orders

resulting in unprofitable projects

• Health, safety, security and environment risks

Inadequate health, safety, security and

environmental controls resulting in bodily harm

and property damages from fire and explosion

hazards, falling from height and pollution

of environment

• Financial risks

Risks associated with changes in foreign exchange

rates, provision of guarantees and interest rates

The Management’s development of the risk

treatment plans and the status of the top three

risk categories are reported at the Board Risk

Committee meetings.

With more and bigger projects entering the

business pipeline during the year, greater and

continuous emphasis was placed on project

management. This will allow the Group to deliver

according to its contract terms and manage costs amidst

fluctuating material costs and foreign exchange.

Periodic discussions and meetings were held at Group

level, to discuss ways to mitigate the risks or to turn

the risks into opportunities. With the avian flu growing

as a potential major risk, SembCorp Marine focused

on developing the Group’s business continuity plan

which would be activated, if the avian flu struck

Singapore. As health, safety, security and environment

issues continued to stay on the top risks list, Group

Enterprise Risk Management (Principle 12)

In 2005, Management of SembCorp Marine made its

Enterprise Risk Management presentation to the Board

of Directors. The presentation covered the Enterprise

Risk Management structure, reporting lines, framework,

overview of top risks and situation report with the

forward plans. The Board of Directors subsequently

approved the establishment of the Board Risk Committee

to be responsible for SembCorp Marine’s  good corporate

governance in risk management.

In a systematic development and reinforcement of the

programme, SembCorp Marine first rolled out its risk

management framework to its major shipyards in 2004.

Today, both Sembawang Shipyard and Jurong Shipyard

have completed the integration of the the Executive

Risk Management programme into their management

systems. Also progressing with the programme, PPL

Shipyard has completed identifying and assessing the

risks in their key processes and are in the process of

developing risk treatment measures for quality, human

resource and finance processes.

Concurrently, all business units, in response to the

changing environment, are continuously reviewing and

monitoring their risks. Through their internal control

processes, the business units are performing periodic

risk analysis, designing and embedding controls for

relevant risks and complying with the system of

monitoring and reporting. They are also committed to

transparency regarding the effectiveness of the risk

control system and measures.

In 2005, significant steps were taken to standardise

management and control procedures and the monitoring

and reporting systems across the business units in

SembCorp Marine. Through these efforts, SembCorp

Marine considers that its risk control system has become

increasingly effective.

collated and standardised safety practices in shipyards

to be adopted across the Group.

As new risks emerge and risk impacts change, SembCorp

Marine would continuously review its programme to

stay ahead in risk mitigation and prevention. At the same

time, the Enterprise Risk Management programme would

be seeking to turn risks into returns.

Internal Audit
Independent Internal Audit Function (Principle 13)

SembCorp Marine’s internal audit function is supported

by the Internal Audit Department which reports on audit

matters directly to the Audit Committee Chairman and

administratively to the President.  This department plans

its internal audit schedules in consultation with, but

independent of, Management. Its plan is submitted to

the Audit Committee for approval at the beginning of

each year.

To ensure that the internal audits continue to be

performed by competent professionals, Internal Audit

Department continues to recruit and employ suitably

qualified staff.  The internal audit function provided by

the department continues to meet with the standards

set by the Institute of Internal Auditors.

Communication with Shareholders
The Board is accountable to the shareholders (Principle 10)

Regular, Effective and Equal Treatment of Shareholders

(Principle 14)

SembCorp Marine strives to provide a fair and accurate

view on the affairs of the company on an ongoing basis.

As co-owners of SembCorp Marine, shareholders are

entitled to timely and complete information on financial

data, material developments as well as an understanding

of business directions and prospects.

All SembCorp Marine’s price-sensitive information is

disseminated to its shareholders via the SGXNET so as

to ensure all shareholders have access to material

information at the same time.  Disclosure is never done

on a selective basis.  Financial and other performance

data is given for the Group as well as by business unit

Remuneration Band for Key Executives

Remuneration Band No. of Employees

$750,000 to $999,999 2
$500,000 to $749,999 3
$250,000 to $499,999 2
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WHISTLE-BLOWING POLICY

Although the Code of Governance does not specify a

mandatory requirement for audit committees to facilitate

whistle-blowing, SembCorp Marine believes that in order

to evince the Group’s unyielding determination to constantly

raise the bar of good governance practice, it should readily

foster an environment conducive to responsible and

constructive whistle-blowing.

The Group thus adopts a constructive whistle-blowing culture

to detect and deter wrongdoing in preparing and

implementing accurate and complete financial policies,

reports and materials as well as the internal controls essential

to support its financial and accounting systems.

Demonstrating its pledge to good corporate governance,

the Group provides an avenue for employees to bring their

complaints and gripes responsibly up to higher levels without

fear of reprisal. The establishment of the whistle-blowing

structure also augments the Group’s ability to detect potential

fraud, providing another level of comfort and assurance to

foreign investors.

Details of SembCorp Marine Whistle-
blowing Policy

SembCorp Marine established its “Policies And Procedures

For Reporting Possible Improprieties In Matters Of

Financial Reporting Or Other Matters” in 2003, to ensure

that any employee of the Group may submit complaint in

good faith regarding accounting, internal controls or

auditing matters to the Management without fear of

dismissal or retaliation.

In order to facilitate the reporting of employee complaints,

SembCorp Marine adheres to the Code of Corporate

Governance adopted by the Singapore Exchange Securities

Trading Ltd.

It is the policy of SembCorp Marine to encourage all

employees within the Group to report any possible

improprieties in matters of financial reporting or other

matters that they may encounter to the Audit Committee or

any other committees established by the Audit Committee

for such purposes. “Possible improprieties” refers to any

activity or conduct or omission by an employee or officer of

SembCorp Marine or any auditing firm providing external

or internal auditing services to SembCorp Marine relating

to accounting, internal controls or internal accounting

controls that are questionable or not in accordance with

generally accepted accounting practices.

As SembCorp Marine does not condone any retaliatory

action taken against any employee that has filed a complaint,

it may institute disciplinary action against any person found

to have taken retaliatory action. “Retaliatory action” refers

to the use of, or any attempt to use, authority by any

employee or officer of the Group to influence or to interfere

with the right of another employee to report any possible

improprieties.

Any complaint alleging retaliatory action shall be received,

reviewed and investigated by SembCorp Marine in the same

manner as any complaint alleging possible improprieties.

A “complaint” therefore refers to any complaint alleging

either possible improprieties or retaliatory action.

An overview of the procedures for the receipt, retention and

treatment of any complaint are summarised in the following

sections and flow diagram.

Procedures

Submission of Complaint

Every employee of the Group has a right to file a complaint,

which can be submitted directly to the Internal Audit

department and marked the attention of Assistant Vice

President, Internal Audit.

Confidentiality of Identity

Employees are encouraged to disclose their identities when

submitting complaints. Once disclosed, however, the

identities of the employees will be kept confidential unless:

• the identity of the employee, in the opinion of the Audit

Committee, is material to any investigation

• it is required by law, order or direction

of any court, regulatory body or stock exchange

• the Audit Committee is of the opinion that it would be

in the best interests of the Group to disclose the identity
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or division where appropriate. This allows shareholders

to gain better insight into the earnings drivers within

SembCorp Marine.

During the release of earnings results, the

announcement is first released by SGXNET onto the

SGX-ST website. Thereafter a briefing or teleconference

by Management is held for the media and analysts.

All materials used at the briefing will be available

on SGXNET as well as the corporate website at

www.sembcorpmarine.com.sg.

Following any release of earnings or price-sensitive

developments, investor relations staff are available by

email or telephone to answer questions from

shareholders and the media as long as the information

requested does not conflict with the SGX-ST’s rules of

fair disclosure.

Greater Shareholder participation at General Meetings

(Principle 15)

SembCorp Marine recognises that good corporate

governance requires active participation of shareholders

in the decision-making at the general meetings of

shareholders. Shareholder participation is encouraged

at general meetings. Information on meetings of

shareholders are made through notices published in

the newspaper and reports or circulars sent to all

shareholders. All registered shareholders are invited

to participate in shareholder meetings.   If they do not

wish to attend in person, they can issue instructions to

accept, reject or abstain on each individual item on the

meeting agenda by giving instructions to their proxy.

He or she is allowed to appoint up to two proxies to

vote on his or her behalf at the meeting through proxy

forms sent in advance.

SembCorp Marine also allows CPF Investors to attend

General Meetings as observers.

The Chairman, President as well as the Chairman of the

Audit Committee will be present together with the Chief

Financial Officer, the Company Secretary and external

auditors to answer questions raised by shareholders.

Minutes of shareholder meetings are available on

request by registered shareholders.

For further details on SembCorp Marine communications

with its shareholders, see the “Investor Relations”

section of the Annual Report. 

Dealings in Securities

SembCorp Marine has adopted a Code of Compliance

on Dealing in Securities, which prohibit dealings in the

Company’s securities by its officers during the period

commencing two weeks prior to the announcement

of the Company’s quarterly results. Directors and

executives are also expected to observe insider trading

laws at all times even when dealing in securities within

the permitted trading period.

Interested person transactions

Shareholders have adopted a shareholders Mandate

(“Mandate”) relating to interested person transactions

of the Group. The Mandate sets out the levels and

procedures to obtain approval for such transactions.

Information regarding the Mandate is available on the

corporate website at www.sembcorpmarine.com.sg.

All strategic business units are required to be familiar

with the Mandate and report any such transactions to

the  Finance Department.  The Finance Department

keeps a register of the SembCorp Marine’s interested

person transactions. Information on interested person

transactions for 2005 is found in page 210.
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• engage relevant third parties to take remedial action, if

appropriate

• take any other action it deems in the best interests of

the Group

Abuse of the Policies and Procedures

Upon reviewing the facts of the complaint, the Audit

Committee may determine that an employee has made a

complaint frivolously, in bad faith, or in abuse of the policies

and procedures. With the Committee’s determination,

SembCorp Marine will reserve the right to take any action

against the employee.

REVIEW OF POLICY

The Legal Department reviews the whistle-blowing policy

on a regular basis and recommends any amendments to

the Audit Committee for its endorsement. Only with the

Committee’s written approval, can the amendments be

tabled to the Board for final approval.

PROCEDURES FOR RECEIPT, RETENTION
AND TREATMENT OF COMPLAINT

Employee files Complaint

Internal Audit(IA)

IA records Complaint and forwards
to the Audit Committee.

If IA is of opinion that other
resolution procedures are more
appropriate, it may forward
Complaint to relevant unit in charge.

Relevant unit in charge.
Investigates complaint and reports
findings per the relevant complaint
resolution procedures.

If IA is of opinion that it is
appropriate to do so IA will review
and investigate Complaint.

IA investigates Complaint.

IA report findings to AC along with
any recommendation as to any
remedial action to be taken.

AC may request further investigation.
If AC is satisfied with investigation
and/or recommendation by IA (when
Complaint is not against IA) remedial
action may be taken.

Receiving, Recording and Retention of Complaint

The Internal Audit department maintains a register to record

all complaints received, including the dates and natures of

the complaints. This register can be made available for

inspection upon any request approved by the Audit

Committee.

Publication and Maintenance of Avenues for Submission of

Complaints

The Group Human Resource takes all reasonable efforts to

notify all employees and officers of the Group of the existence

of these policies and procedures. The Internal Audit

department will also establish and maintain avenues for the

confidential submission and receipt of complaints.

Review and Investigation of Complaint

Upon receipt of a complaint, the Internal Audit department

reviews and investigates the complaint and reports its findings

to the Audit Committee and the Group President & CEO

together with any recommendation for remedial action. If

Internal Audit decides that the complaint may be better dealt

with under other existing resolution procedures within the

Group, it may forward the complaint to the relevant unit

responsible for the administration of such complaint resolution

procedures.

Notwithstanding these procedures, the Audit Committee may

still consider situations where the complaint is against or

involves Internal Audit directly or indirectly or other situations

where there is no appropriate complain resolution procedure

within the Group. At any stage of review or investigation, the

Committee may still forward the complaint directly to the

Chairman of the Audit Committee for determination.

Determination by the Audit Committee

Upon receipt of any complaint from Internal Audit, the Audit

Committee may:

• conduct its own investigation or review

• instruct Internal Audit to conduct further investigation or

review

• instruct the relevant management to take such remedial

action as it deems appropriate

• engage relevant third parties to review, commence or

conduct further investigations
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Mr Goh Geok Ling
Chairman and Non-Independent Director

Mr Lua Cheng Eng
Chairman and Non-Independent Director

(vacated office on 14 February 2006)

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Mr Tan Kwi Kin
Group President and Non-Independent Director

Mr Tan Pheng Hock
Non-Independent Director

Mr Lua Cheng Eng was appointed the Chairman and

Director of SembCorp Marine on 22 March 2005.

He vacated the office as the Chairman and Director

on the SembCorp Marine Board with effect from 14

February 2006. No stranger to the company, Mr Lua

served as the Chairman and Director of Jurong

Shipyard Ltd (now known as SembCorp Marine Ltd)

from January 1992 to May 1999.  He remained as

the Board’s Executive Corporate Advisor until his

appointment as the Chairman and Director of

SembCorp Marine Board in March 2005. A veteran

in the shipping industry, Mr Lua was the Chief

Executive Officer of Neptune Orient Lines for 20

years before retiring as its Chairman in 2002. His

past directorships in listed companies included

SembCorp Industries Ltd, Ayudhya International

Factors Co Ltd (Thailand), ECICS Holdings Ltd and

International Factors (Singapore) Ltd.

Mr Goh Geok Ling was appointed the Chairman and

Director of SembCorp Marine on 14 February 2006.

Mr Goh worked in the electronic industry for 29 years

before retiring from active business management in

October 1999.  He last worked as the Managing

Director of Micron Semiconductor Asia Pte Ltd.  Prior

to that, he was the Managing Director of Texas

Instruments Singapore Pte Ltd where he worked for

28 years. Currently, Mr Goh serves as a board member

of DBS Bank Ltd, DBS Bank Holdings Ltd, SembCorp

Industries Ltd, Venture Corporation Ltd, 02Micro

International Ltd and Plato Capital Ltd.  He is also a

Council Member of Nanyang Technological University.

His past directorships in listed companies included

Tuas Power Ltd, ASTI Holding Ltd and Singapore

Technologies Pte Ltd. Mr Goh graduated from Sydney

University with a Bachelor of Engineering Degree.

Mr Tan Kwi Kin, currently the Group President and

Chief Executive Officer of SembCorp Marine, has

been a Director of the Board since 1 April 1990. A

veteran in the marine industry in Singapore, Mr Tan

has 39 years of working experience in Jurong

Shipyard. He started his career with Jurong

Shipyard in 1966 as a Junior Engineer in the Design

Department. He was promoted to Manager in

charge of Production Control in 1977 and General

Manager in 1981. In 1990, he was appointed

Managing Director. When Sembawang Shipyard

merged with Jurong Shipyard in 1997, Mr Tan was

appointed President of the Jurong Shipyard group

of companies. Following a restructuring and a name

change in November 1999, Mr Tan became the

President and Chief Executive Officer of SembCorp

Marine and also the Chairman of Jurong Shipyard.

He also chairs the boards of Sembawang Shipyard,

PPL Shipyard, JPL Corporation, Jurong Integrated

Services and Jurong Machinery and Automation. Mr

Tan graduated from Tokyo University, Japan, in 1965

with a Bachelor of Engineering (Mechanical).

Mr Tan Pheng Hock is the President and CEO of

Singapore Technologies (ST) Engineering and an

Executive Director. He was appointed Director of

SembCorp Marine on 16 April 2001 and was last re-

elected as Director on 28 April 2004.  Mr Tan is

Chairman of the Nanyang Polytechnic Board of

Governors and also a member of the Temasek

Defence Systems Institute, the Singapore Training

and Development Association Advisory Council, the

Building and Construction Authority, the Singapore

Quality Award Governing Council and the Singapore

Workforce Development Agency.  Mr Tan began his

career with the Group as an engineer in ST Marine

in 1981. He later became Executive Vice President

of ST Marine, President of ST Kinetics, President

and Chief Operating Officer of ST Engineering and

ST Engineering Group President. His past

directorship in listed companies included Unicorn

International Pte Limited. Mr Tan holds a Bachelor

of Science (First Class Honours) in Marine

Engineering from the University of Surrey, UK, and

a Masters of Science in Management from Stanford

University, USA.
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Mr Ajaib Haridass
Independent Director

Mr Haruo Kubota
Independent Director

Kiyotaka Matsuzawa
Independent Director

Mr Richard Tan Tew Han
Independent Director

Mr Kiyotaka Matsuzawa was appointed Director of

SembCorp Marine on 30 September 2001. Mr

Matsuzawa has had a distinguished career in IHI. He

was the former General Manager of Ships & Offshore

Department of IHI.  He is presently the Director and

General Manager of IHI Marine United Inc. Japan prior

to his previous position as Managing Director of IHI

Marine Engineering (Singapore) since July 2001.  In

1978, he was assigned to IHI's Brazilian subsidiary

company ISHIBRAS as the General Manager for

eight years where he initiated and promoted ship

exports from Brazil to clients worldwide under the

Brazilian Government Promotion Program. His past

directorship in listed companies included IHI Marine

Engineering (S) Pte Ltd. Mr Matsuzawa graduated

from the Hitotsubashi University, Japan, in 1971 with

a Bachelor of Economics. He also holds a Diploma in

Business Administration from the Federal University

of Bahia, Brazil.

Mr Richard Tan was appointed Director of

SembCorp Marine on 17 April 2003.  He brought

with him an impressive 25 years of banking

experience.  He held several senior positions in

Citibank, Banque Paribas, Bank of America,

International Bank of Singapore and Overseas

Union Bank.  Prior to his retirement in 2001, he

was the Executive Vice President and Head of

Investment Banking and Corporate Finance

Division in OUB since 1993. His other board

appointments are at Sun Business Network Ltd,

ST Asset Management, Full Apex (Holdings)

Limited, Asia Water Technology Ltd, Lux King

Group Holdings Ltd and C&O Pharmaceutical

Technology (Holdings) Ltd. Mr Tan graduated

from the University of Singapore with a Bachelor

of Science (Honours) in 1970 and obtained an

MBA in 1978 from the University of British

Columbia, Canada.

Mr Ajaib Haridass was appointed a Director of SembCorp

Marine on 31 October 2003. He graduated from

the University of London in 1974 with a Bachelor of Law

(Honours) and was called to the English Bar at the

Middle Temple in 1975.  He was admitted as an Advocate

& Solicitor of the Supreme Court of Singapore in 1976.

He set up the legal firm, Haridass Ho & Partners, in 1985

where he is now the Managing Partner with more than

28 years of legal experience specialising in all admiralty

matters, both litigious and non-litigious.  These include

matters relating to ship sale and purchase, the financing

aspects of such transactions as well as marine insurance

and general commercial and banking litigation. Mr

Haridass is also an accredited mediator of the Singapore

Mediation Centre, a member of the Advisory Committee

of the Singapore Chamber of Maritime Arbitration,

Arbitrator of the Korean Commercial Arbitration Board,

President of the Maritime Law Association of Singapore,

member of the Singapore Maritime Arbitrators

Association, Board of Visiting Justices and Board of

Inspection (Prisons Department). He is also a member

of the Board of Visitors (Welfare Homes), Ministry of

Community Development, Youth & Sports, Vice Chairman

of Home Detention Advisory Committee, Ministry of

Home Affairs, Singapore, Mediator at Small Claims

Tribunal and Criminal Relational Disputes, Subordinate

Courts, Singapore and a Commissioner for Oaths, Notary

Public and Justice of Peace.

Mr Haruo Kubota was appointed a Director of

SembCorp Marine on 15 July 2004. He is currently

the Managing Director of IHI Marine Engineering (S)

Pte Ltd. Mr Kubota was formerly the General

Manager of IHI Marine Co. Ltd from 2002 to 2004,

with a portfolio covering the sales headquarters of

an affiliate company. Prior to this, he was the General

Manager of the Ship Design Department at Kure

Shipyard for five years since 1997, responsible for

all design activities.  Mr Kubota started his career

with Ishikawajima-Harima Heavy Industries Co. Ltd.

(IHI) in 1972. He graduated from Tohoku University

with a Bachelor of Mechanical Engineering in 1972.
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Mr Tang Kin Fei
Non-Independent Director

Mr Tang Kin Fei was appointed a Director of

SembCorp Marine on 1 May 2005.  He is Group

President and CEO of SembCorp Industries. Prior to

assuming this office in May 2005, he was the

President and CEO of SembCorp Utilities and the

key driver behind the evolution of SembCorp’s

integrated utilities and energy business into a global

leader in the market. Notably, he spearheaded the

development of Singapore’s first multi-utility facility

on Jurong Island, as well as the nation’s first privately

developed power plant.  Mr Tang also drove the

landmark West Natuna Gas Sales Agreement for

the import of natural gas into Singapore and forged

the expansion of SembCorp Utilities overseas.  He

serves as a director on the board of BIL International

Limited as well as major companies and overseas

associates of the SembCorp Group. His past

directorship in listed companies included Camerlin

Group Berhad. Mr Tang holds a First Class Honours

degree in Mechanical Engineering from the National

University of Singapore, and attended the Advanced

Management Programme at INSEAD.

Construction of lower hull of Semi-submersible for Atlantia offshore
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KEY MANAGEMENT PROFILE

Tan Kwi Kin
Mr Tan Kwi Kin is the Group President and CEO of

SembCorp Marine and a Director of SembCorp

Marine Board. (Mr Tan's profile can be found on

page 43).

Wong Weng Sun
Mr Wong Wen Sun is the President and COO of

SembCorp Marine. He has been the Deputy President

of SembCorp Marine since July 2004 and the

Managing Director of Jurong Shipyard.  From January

2000 to June 2004, he was Jurong Shipyard’s

Executive Director.  He joined the company in 1988

as an engineer and was later appointed General

Manager in charge of project management. Mr Wong

graduated from the University Technology of

Malaysia in 1986 with a Bachelor of Mechanical

Engineering (Marine). He also obtained a Master in

Business Administration degree from Oklahoma City

University in United States in 1994.

Ong Poh Kwee
Mr Ong is the Deputy President of SembCorp Marine.

He has been the Managing Director of Sembawang

Shipyard since July 2004. He formerly held the

positions of Executive Director of Sembawang

Shipyard and General Manager and Managing

Director of Karimun Sembawang Shipyard. He joined

the company in 1987 as an engineer, the same

year he graduated from the University of Newcastle-

Upon-Tyne, United Kingdom, with a Bachelor of

Marine Engineering. He also abtained a Masters of

Business Administration from the Sloan School of

Management, Massachusetts Institute of Technology,

United States in 2000.

Wee Sing Guan
Mr Wee is the Director of Group Finance. He has

been the Chief Financial Officer of SembCorp Marine

since February 2000. He first joined the company

as an accountant in 1974 and later held the position

of Financial Controller before assuming his current

appointment. Mr Wee graduated from Nanyang

University in 1972 with a Bachelor in Commerce.

Wong Peng Kin
Mr Wong has been a Director of Group Human Resource

at SembCorp Marine since July 2004.  From February

2000 to June 2004, he was the Senior Vice President

of Human Resources. He joined the company in 1970

as an officer in the Personnel Department.  Mr Wong

graduated from the University of Singapore with a

Bachelor of Business Administration (Honours) in 1970.

Lee Yeok Hoon
Mr Lee has been the Executive Director of Jurong Shipyard

since July 2004. From February 2000 to June 2004, he

was the General Manager in charge of production in Jurong

Shipyard.  He joined the company in 1970 as a design

engineer after graduating from Singapore Polytechnic

with a Diploma in Mechanical Engineering.

Wong Lee Lin
Ms Wong has been the Executive Director of

Sembawang Shipyard since July 2004. Prior to that,

she was the General Manager at Sembawang

Shipyard since January 2002.  Ms Wong graduated

from the University of Singapore with a Bachelor of

Social Sciences (Honours) in 1974 and joined the

company as an officer in 1975.

Ong Tian Khiam
Mr Ong has been the Managing Director of PPL

Shipyard since November 1997. Prior to that, he held

positions as Deputy Managing Director and

Managing Director in Sembawang Maritime and

Sembawang Bethlehem respectively. He was also

the Managing Director in charge of the development

of Karimun Shipyard. When Mr Ong graduated from

the University of Singapore with a Bachelor in

Mechanical Engineering in 1969, he joined

Sembawang Shipyard as a graduate management

trainee. He then moved to hold several positions at

Far East Levingston Shipbuilding between 1970 and

1979 and at Promet Private Limited between 1978

and 1989 before rejoining the Group.

Wee Sing Guan
Director,

Group Finance

Wong Peng Kin
Director,

Group Human Resource

Lee Yeok Hoon
Executive Director
Jurong Shipyard

Wong Lee Lin
Executive Director

Sembawang Shipyard

Ong Tian Khiam
Managing Director

PPL Shipyard

Tan Kwi Kin
Group President & CEO

Wong Weng Sun
President & COO

Managing Director, Jurong Shipyard

Ong Poh Kwee
Deputy President

Managing Director, Sembawang Shipyard
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INVESTOR RELATIONS

The investor relations programme continued to be

an important and integral part of SembCorp Marine’s

commitment to high standards of corporate

governance and transparency. The Investor Relations

and Communications Department organised a

comprehensive list of programmes to take a proactive

approach in communicating with investors, with a

commitment that often extended beyond regulatory

requirements.

In addition to the briefing and presentation meetings

held as part of the mandatory reporting cycle, regular

meetings were held at the requests of the analysts,

investors and fund managers, both local and foreign.

Senior management continued to play an active role

in these meetings, with the Group President,

Deputy President, Chief Financial Officer and the

Senior Vice President of Investor Relations often

in attendance.

In order to help the analysts and investors to get a

better understanding of the nature of the business,

SembCorp Marine organised periodic site tours of our

shipyard facilities. Analysts, press media and investors

were also invited to christening ceremonies for the

benefit of understanding the nature of the business,

touring the vessels, interacting with management

and listening to the customers’ views on the outlook of

the industry.

Shareholder Participation at
Company Meetings

Encouraging the full participation of shareholders at the

Annual General Meeting and Extraordinary General

Meeting SembCorp Marine arranged for buses to

transport shareholders from a convenient MRT station to

its registered office at 29 Tanjong Kling Road. The Group

has always preferred holding the meeting at its registered

office to offer shareholders the opportunity to visit the

shipyard and acquire hands-on knowledge of its

operations. At the same time, they would be able to

interact with the Chairman, the Board of Directors and

senior managers within the shipyard. With the

convenience of transportation, attendance to the

Annual General Meeting in 2005 saw an increase in

turnout as compared to that of 2004.

Communications with Shareholders

Release of Quarterly Financial Announcements

SembCorp Marine is committed to providing a high

standard of communications to its shareholders and

other investors all information reasonably required

making an informed analysis of the Group’s value and

outlook. During the year, the Group continued to provide

timely, accurate disclosures such as keeping the market

informed through releases like, quarterly financial

announcements, press releases detailing development

and production activities.

2005 Investor Relations Calendar

Date Event

7 February Full Year 2005 Results

Analysts and media briefing and presentation

15 February Post-results briefing and luncheon meeting with institutional funds organised by GK Goh

8 March Luncheon meeting organised by BNP Paribas

12 March Participation in SGX Retail Investors’ Forum organised by SGX and UOB Kay Hian

19 April Tour of PPL Shipyard and Jurong Shipyard by institutional funds organised by BNP Paribas

21 April Annual General Meeting & Extraordinary General Meeting for shareholders

27 April Announcement of 1Q 2005 Financial Results

11-13 May Road show in Hong Kong with Kim Eng Securities

21 June Participation in CLSA Oil & Gas Conference in Singapore

1 August 2Q 2005 Results

Analysts and media briefing and presentation

4 August Participation in BNP Paribas Conference in Singapore

12 August Luncheon meeting organised by UBS Securities

1-2 September Participation in Macquarie Corporate Day in London and Edinburgh

6 September Participation in DBS Vickers Corporate Day in Singapore

20 September Luncheon meeting organised by Macquarie Securities in Singapore

22 September Participation in Citigroup Corporate Day in Singapore

26-28 September Participation in JP Morgan 10th Annual Asia Pacific Conference in New York

29-30 September Road Show in New York and Boston with DBS Vickers Securities

27 October Announcement of 3Q 2005 Financial Results

29 October - 4 November Road Show with UOB Kay Hian in New York, Boston and San Francisco

29 November Visit by analysts and fund managers to PPL Shipyard and Jurong Shipyard

SembCorp Marine was ranked 16th in Singapore’s Top

100 Companies in 2005 with a market capitalisation of

S$4,235,170,000*. Its share price has chalked up

an impressive performance in 2005, appreciating by 103%

per cent to end of the year at $2.76. In terms of Best

One Year Total Return, it chalked up 120.4 per cent.  For

Best Five-Year Total Returns, it was 38.6 per cent.

The strong appreciation in SembCorp Marine’s share

price during the year is a reflection of rising investor

confidence and, in particular, the growing interest in the

offshore and gas sector.

Commitment to Enhancing
Shareholder Value

SembCorp Marine has always been committed to

creating and enhancing shareholder value. In its full-

year 2005 results announcement, it proposed a gross

final dividend of 7.0 cents per share less tax for the year

ended 31 December 2005.  Including the interim gross

dividend payment of 2.5 cents per share, gross dividend

for 2005 will be 9.5 cents per share. SembCorp Marine

has been raising its dividend payout to shareholders

from 5.0 cents per share in 2003 to 9.5 cents per share

in 2005.  Based on the average payout ratio for the past

nine years, SembCorp Marine has given a management

guideline of dividend payout of not lower than 75 per

cent in payout ratio.

* Source : Singapore Business Review March 2006
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Information Publicly Available,
Timely and Non-selective

The Group provides an annual report to

shareholders together with a sustainability

report addressing its environmental, social

and economic objectives. By seeking to fulfill

its obligation to provide continuous

disclosure, especially of material information,

to the market, the Group ensures that the

information is made publicly available on a

timely and non-selective basis to all

shareholders. Apart from media releases to

major news channels, it publishes all

presentation materials for analysts,

shareholders and investors at the company’s

website at www.sembcorpmarine.com.sg under the

Investor Relations subsection.

Top Management Representatives
accessible to Investor Community

One-on-one meetings with analysts and fund managers

Throughout the year, top management representatives

of SembCorp Marine were accessible to the investor

community. The Group holds meetings with analysts and

fund managers, both local and overseas, regularly.

Therefore, the Group’s senior management has always

played an active role in conducting regular meetings with

shareholders and investors. The Group President, Deputy

President, Chief Financial Officer and the Senior Vice

President of Investor Relations personally attended some

of these meetings to discuss issues and clarify concerns.

However, SembCorp Marine is fully mindful of, and

compliant with, the Singapore Stock Exchange’s

guidelines on fair disclosure when holding discussions

with individual parties.

Interaction with Shareholders
Annual General Meeting & Extraordinary General

Meeting

SembCorp Marine holds an Annual General Meeting

each year and an Extraordinary General Meeting if the

need arises. The date, time and venue of these meetings

are notified to the shareholders to encourage their full

participation. The Notice of Meeting is sent to the

shareholders with an explanatory memorandum

providing information to help in voting decisions on

each item of business. A full company of the Notice of

Meeting and Proxy Form is also available in the Group’s

Annual Report, written in a clear, concise and effective

manner.

Recognition for High Standard of
Disclosure
Accolade from Securities Investors Association

(Singapore)

SembCorp Marine was honoured that its efforts to

communicate with the capital market in a consistent,

timely and open manner, had been recognised. Due to

its high standards of corporate governance, SembCorp

Marine clinched the runner-up award in the Non-

Electronics Manufacturing category during the SIAS 6th

Investors’ Choice Award for the Most Transparent

Company Award, based on timeliness, substantiality

and clarity of news releases, degree of media access,

and frequency of corporate results as well as availability

of segmental information.

Participation at SGX Retail Investors’
Conference

SembCorp Marine participated in the ‘Taking Stock of

Offshore & Marine Companies’ forum organised by the

Singapore Stock Exchange and UOB Kay Hian in March

2005. The forum served as an effective outreach

platform, enabling SembCorp Marine to connect with

investors within the community.

SembCorp Marine joined five other listed companies

participating in the forum which aimed to give the retail

investor community a deeper understanding of the

offshore and marine industry. The investors were briefed

on the Group’s strategies for sustained growth and

shared the promising prospects of this “sunrise

industry” in view of the strong fundamentals in offshore

conversion and rig building, favourable freight rates

and expected strong demand for ship repair and niche

shipbuilding.

Yard Visits by the Investment
Community

SembCorp Marine welcomed a group of about 50 fund

managers, brokers and analysts who visited PPL

Shipyard and Jurong Shipyard in April 2005.  The visit,

organised by BNP Paribas Peregrine, sought to provide

the investment community with an enhanced

understanding of the Group’s rig-building operations.

The visitors gained insights about the rig construction

methodology and toured the yard’s workshop and

the steel fabrication facilities to learn more about the

various stages involved in the rig-building process. They

also had a rare chance of going onboard a jack-up rig

that was still in the initial stages of construction in

modular blocks.  The jack-up rig was built based on PPL

Shipyard’s proprietary Baker Marine Pacific Class 375

jack-up design.   The visitors also toured Jurong Shipyard

where they acquired a better understanding of the

complementary strengths and synergy within the Group.

Yard Tours for Analysts

To cultivate a deeper understanding of the SembCorp

Marine Group’s activities among the investment

community, the Investor Relations & Communications

Department organised yard tours for the analysts in

November 2005.  The analysts met up with top

management and production personnel from the Group’s

shipyards.  A walkthrough tour of a nearly completed

Baker Marine Pacific Class 375 jack-up rig was also

conducted for the analysts.

The analysts also toured Jurong Shipyard where they

were briefed on the P-54 floating production-storage-

offload (FPSO) conversion, the 2,646 TEU container

vessel and the breakthrough ‘Load-out and Mating-in-

Dock’ semi-submersible rig building method.



Distribution of Shareholdings

Size of No. of % No. of Shares %
Shareholdings Shareholders

1 - 999 82 0.94 31,822 0.00

1,000 - 10,000 6,881 78.86 33,240,482 2.29

10,001 - 1,000,000 1,743 19.97 75,422,215 5.19

1,000,001 and above 20 0.23 1,343,947,346 92.52

Total: 8,726 100.00 1,452,641,865 100.00

Location No. of % No. of Shares %
Shareholders

Singapore 8,478 97.16 1,426,443,915 98.20

Malaysia 112 1.28 1,693,700 0.12

Hong Kong 20 0.23 643,000 0.04

Japan 4 0.05 20,085,000 1.38

US 11 0.13 51,000 0.00

UK 7 0.08 250,000 0.02

Europe 1 0.01 2,000 0.00

Australia/New Zealand 37 0.42 575,000 0.04

Others 56 0.64 2,898,250 0.20

Total: 8,726 100.00 1,452,641,865 100.00

Shareholders Distribution By Location

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE & TRANSPARENCY
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SHAREHOLDERS’ INFORMATION

Statistics of Shareholdings as at 10 March 2006

Share Capital

Authorised Share Capital :  $500,000,000

Issued and Fully Paid-up Capital :  $145,264,186.50

Number of Shareholders :  8,726

Class of Shares :  Ordinary Shares

Voting Rights :  One vote per share

Shareholding Held in Hands of Public

Based on information available to the Company as at 10 March 2006, 38.03% of the issued ordinary shares of the
Company is held by the public and therefore, Rule 723 of the Listing Manual issued by SGX-ST is complied with.

Notes:
(1)   

Temasek Holdings (Private) Limited is deemed to be interested in the 900,231,261 Shares held by SembCorp Industries as well as the balance of 1,943,000 Shares held by its other subsidiaries.
(2)   

The Capital Group Companies, Inc. is deemed to be interested in the 74,047,000 Shares held by Raffles Nominees Pte Ltd and DBS Nominees Pte Ltd.

* till March 14, 2006.

Share Prices and Monthly Volumes
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List of 20 Largest Shareholders

No. Name No. of Shares %

1 SembCorp Industries Ltd 900,231,260 61.97

2 DBS Nominees Pte Ltd 142,150,028 9.79

3 DBSN Sevices Pte Ltd 105,422,780 7.26

4 Citibank Nominees Singapore Pte Ltd 34,766,390 2.39

5 Raffles Nominees Pte Ltd 33,601,530 2.31

6 HSBC (Singapore) Nominees Pte Ltd 32,234,029 2.22

7 United Overseas Bank Nominees Pte Ltd 21,106,440 1.45

8 IHI Marine United Inc 20,000,000 1.38

9 Morgan Stanley Asia (S'pore) Securities Pte Ltd 14,002,337 0.96

10 DB Nominees (S) Pte Ltd 11,914,100 0.82

11 UOB Kay Hian Pte Ltd 5,409,000 0.37

12 OCBC Securities Private Ltd 4,192,000 0.29

13 Macquarie Securities Singapore Pte Ltd 3,031,310 0.21

14 Merrill Lynch (Singapore) Pte Ltd 2,893,881 0.20

15 Tan Kwi Kin 2,787,200 0.19

16 OCBC Nominees Singapore Pte Ltd 2,781,300 0.19

17 Lee Seng Tee 2,500,000 0.17

18 Societe Generale Singapore Branch 2,146,011 0.15

19 Capital Intelligence Limited 1,515,000 0.10

20 Phillip Securities Pte Ltd 1,262,750 0.09

Total: 1,343,947,346 92.51

Substantial Shareholders

Direct Interest Deemed Interest

Substantial Shareholders Number of Shares % Number of Shares %

SembCorp Industries Ltd 900,231,260 61.97 - -
Temasek Holdings (Private) Limited - - 902,174,260 (1) 62.11
The Capital Group Companies, Inc. - - 74,047,000 (2) 5.10

J F M A M J J A S O N D
‘01

J F M A M J J A S O N D
‘02

J F M A M J J A S O N D
‘03

J F M A M J J A S O N D
‘04

J F M A M J J A S O N D
‘05

J F M*
‘06

Investor Data

2001 2002 2003 2004 2005

Earnings per share (cents) 5.89 6.54 5.55 6.68 8.45

Gross Dividend per share (cents) 6.50 6.50 5.00 7.50 9.50

Net Dividend per share (cents) 5.03 5.07 3.97 6.00 7.60

Share price ($)

     High 0.96 1.10 1.06 1.36 3.20

     Low 0.63 0.79 0.88 0.865 1.33

     Close 0.70 0.905 0.96 1.36 2.76

Turnover

     Volume (Million share) 326.20 782.53 346.20 278.1 1,227

     Value ($million) 266.80 731.90 338.21 285.2 3,118

Average P/E 14.10 16.40 14.50 17.80 27.80

Net Tangible Assets per share 64.41 65.65 64.60 67.20 73.22
(cents)
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GROUP FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

2001
Revenue increased by 12 per cent to $854.5 million due to an

improvement in ship-repair activities. Group PATMI improved by 3

per cent to $82.4 million due to an increase in ship-repair volume

and the maiden contributions from PPL Shipyard’s and the Group’s

associated companies in Singapore and Brazil.

2002
Group revenue hit a high of $1.012 billion, 18 per cent more than the

previous year.  The improvement was due mainly to increased revenue

from new-building and ship-conversion projects. Group pre-tax profit

rose to a record $116.3 million, with exceptional items contributing

$6.7 million and associated companies and joint venture contributing

$6.1 million.  Group PATMI including exceptional items grew by 12

per cent to $92.1 million.

2003
Despite the difficult operating environment, Group revenue reached

a record high of $1.068 billion, 6 per cent higher than 2002’s S$1.012

billion.  This was attributed mainly to volume increases in ship-

conversion and new-building projects. These increases more than

offset the decline in ship-repair revenue, which was affected by the

Severe Acute Respiratory Syndrome (SARS) outbreak in the region

as well as the postponement of vessel repairs as a result of high

freight rates.

Group PATMI including exceptional items declined 15 per cent to

$78.5 million due mainly to the subdued performance in ship repair

as well as lower exceptional gains of $1.3 million, compared to $6.7

million in 2002. If exceptional items and the effect of the prior year’s

tax over-provision were excluded, the Group’s PATMI would have

declined by just 8 per cent to $74.0 million in 2003.

2004
Another record year was achieved with Group turnover rising to a

record of $1.36 billion, a growth of 28 per cent driven mainly by

increased revenue from both the ship-conversion and ship-repair

sectors.  The ship-building and rig-building sectors recorded declines

as most of the projects were pending take-up or in the early stages

of production as at end of 2004.

Group operating profit increased  by 25 per cent to $92.9 million,

while pre-tax profit rose 19 per cent to $113.1 million.  These increases

were attributed to improvements in the ship-conversion and ship-

repair sectors as well as from higher contributions from a joint venture

and associated companies. Net profit for 2004 reached a record high

of $94.1 million, an increase of 20 per cent.

2005
Group turnover registered a record high at $2.12 billion, an increase

of 56 per cent attributable to growth across all business segments,

in particular the offshore conversion and the rig-building segments.

Group operating profits increased by 34 per cent to $124.5 million,

while Group pre-tax profits grew by 41 per cent to $159.9 million.

The increase was due mainly to better operating profits and

contribution from the associated company acquired during the year.

Group tax charge in 2005 was higher than the previous year mainly

resulting from a $4.2 million write-back of prior year’s tax over-

provision, arising from a 2 per cent reduction in corporate income

tax rate in 2004. Excluding the prior year’s tax under/(over) provision,

Group attributable profits actually increased 36 per cent from $89.9

million in 2004 from $122.0 million in 2005.

GROUP FIVE-YEAR PERFORMANCE

2005 PERFORMANCE

The SembCorp Marine Group achieved another record-high in turnover and profits in 2005.

Group turnover recorded a compounded annual growth of 25 per cent from $0.85 billion in 2001 to $2.12 billion

in 2005.  Group profit after tax and minority items (PATMI) reached a record-high of $121.4 million while ROE

improved by 20 per cent to 12 per cent.

Economic value-added (EVA) attributable to shareholders was $63.4 million, a 462 per cent improvement from

2004.

The Board of SembCorp Marine is proposing a final and gross dividend of 7.0 cents per share (less income tax),

making a total annual dividend of 9.5 cents per share (less income tax).  This significant dividend payout ratio

at 91 per cent for the second consecutive year shows our commitment to shareholder value.

For the year 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005
($’000) ($’000) ($’000) ($’000) ($’000)

Turnover 854,461 1,011,512 1,067,986 1,362,764 2,119,279

Operating Profit 84,496 89,883 74,308 92,933 124,549

Profit Before Tax 103,392 116,291 95,186 113,089 159,855

PATMI 82,419 92,098 78,540 94,087 121,398

Dividend – Interim 15,917 16,507 16,584 17,067 28,880

Dividend – Final 54,963 55,159 39,814 69,157 81,220

Dividend – Total 70,880 71,666 56,398 86,224 110,100

Group Balance Sheet

Fixed Assets 429,914 447,886 452,720 460,020 579,584

Associated Companies & JV 104,627 101,778 58,700 67,487 123,645

Other Investments 98,992 92,759 71,776 23,666 77,931

Other Long Term Assets 168,273 203,913 172,254 88,258 51,863

Current Assets 633,293 642,219 769,665 1,219,934 1,493,114

Current Liabilities (446,859) (492,123) (531,173) (651,692) (982,871)

Long Term Liabilities (56,977) (46,128) (52,069) (204,963) (227,569)

931,263 950,304 941,873 1,002,710 1,115,697

Issued Capital 140,614 141,432 142,005 142,761 145,036

Capital, Foreign Currency

   Translation & Other Reserves 263,332 257,049 236,741 240,772 318,271

Retained Profits 517,299 541,527 548,381 585,367 602,238

Minority Interests 10,018 10,296 14,746 33,810 50,152

931,263 950,304 941,873 1,002,710 1,115,697

Per Share Data (cents)

EPS – Before Tax 7.39 8.26 6.72 7.96 11.13

EPS – After Tax 5.89 6.54 5.55 6.62 8.45

Net Tangible Assets 64.41 65.65 64.60 67.19 73.22

Net Asset Value 65.52 66.46 65.29 67.87 73.47

Financial Ratios

Return on Equity (%) 9.10 9.90 8.41 9.92 11.93

Return on Total Assets (%) 5.97 6.30 5.21 5.62 6.30

Operating Margin (%) 9.89 8.89 6.96 6.82 5.88

Operating Profit/Equity (%) 9.33 9.66 7.96 9.80 12.24

Current Ratio 1.42 1.30 1.45 1.87 1.52

Gearing Ratio (%) 2.83 2.95 10.90 15.44 14.05

Dividend Cover 1.16 1.29 1.39 1.10 1.10
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Shareholders’ Returns
Return on Equity, EVA, Dividends and Earnings per

Shares

The Group’s return on equity (ROE) grew by 20 per cent

to 12 per cent in 2005 as a result of the record profit

achieved for the year.  Economic value-added (EVA)

attributable to shareholders was $63 million, an

outstanding 462 per cent improvement from 2004.

The Board of Directors is proposing a final and gross

dividend of 7.0 cents per share (less income tax), making

a total annual dividend of 9.5 cents per share (less

income tax). This significant dividend payout ratio of 91

per cent for the second consecutive year shows its

commitment to shareholder value.

The recommended dividend for 2005 took into

consideration the Group’s present cash flow position,

positive cash flow generated from operations and

projected capital requirement. Payment of the final

proposed dividend is subject to the approval of

shareholders of SembCorp Marine at the forthcoming

Annual General Meeting.

To maximise shareholder value, SembCorp Marine will

continue its policy of paying high levels of final dividends

to return excess cash generated from its operations

where possible, as long as the cash is not required for

investments in the future. Some cash resources will be

required for the set up of new facilities and capabilities

to expand existing operations and for any potential

mergers and acquisitions.
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Operating Activities

During the year, the Group continued to generate healthy

cash flow from its operations. This amounted to $164

million before changes in working capital. Working

capital increased by $143 million mainly due to increased

activities in the core businesses of ship repair,

shipbuilding, rig building and ship conversion.

After accounting for interest and income tax payments,

net cash from operating activities amounted to $303

million.

Investing Activities

Net cash used in investing activities amounted to $173

million.  During the year, SembCorp Marine acquired

a 30 per cent equity stake in the enlarged capital of

COSCO Shipyard Group Co. Ltd to grow its marine

business in China.  On 13 October 2005, subsidiary PPL

Shipyard acquired a 100% interest in Sabine-PPL

Industries, Inc.  The Group also purchased additional

fixed assets of $140 million, comprising mainly of the

$98 million Kristiansand show rig and additional facilities,

cranes and machineries to execute the existing order

book more efficiently.

Dividend Paid

Dividends paid to SembCorp Marine shareholders

amounted to $98 million or 8.5 cents per share in 2005.

This included the final and special dividend of 6.0 cents

per share in respect of the financial year ended 2004

and an interim dividend of 2.5 cents per share for 2005.

The Directors are recommending a final dividend of 7.0

cents per share in respect of the financial year ended

2005 and an interim dividend of 2.5 cents per share for

2005. The total dividend for the financial year ended

2005 will be a record 9.5 cents per share. The Group's

significant payout ratio of 91 per cent for the second

consecutive year shows its commitment to shareholder

value.

CASH FLOW

2005 2004

$'million $'million

Cash flow from operating activities

Operating profit 125 93

Depreciation, amortisation and non-cash items 39 31

Operating income before reinvestment in working capital 164 124

Working capital changes 143 96

Net interest received and payment of income tax (4) (2)

Net cash provided by operating activities 303 218

Cash flow from investing activities (173) 39

Dividend paid (99) (57)

Cash flow from other financing activities 31 121

Cash flow from financing activities (68) 64

Net increase in cash flow 62 321
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Financial Position

The financial position of the Group continued to be

strong.  The change in financial position between the

two years reflected the Group’s efforts in divesting its

non-core assets and investing in its core business of

ship and rig repair, building and conversion. For

example, the acquisition of a 30 per cent equity stake

in the enlarged capital of COSCO Shipyard Group Co.

Ltd was in line with SembCorp Marine’s strategy to

establish a China Hub to grow its ship repair and marine

business in China.

Working capital of the Group increased in line with the

higher activities in its core business.  Total assets of

the Group increased by 25 per cent from $1.86 billion

to $2.33 billion.

Capital Employed

Total capital employed as at 31 December 2005 was

$1.1 billion, comprising shareholders’ funds of $1,066

million and minority interests of $50 million. The Group’s

shareholders’ funds increased by 11 per cent during the

year.

Minority interests of the Group were increased from

$34 million to $50 million in 2005.  This was principally

due to new equity shares issued to the minority interest

of Kristiansand Drilling Pte Ltd, the Group’s 82 per cent

subsidiary company owning the first Baker Marine Pacific

Class 375 Deep Drilling Offshore Jack-up Rig.

Borrowings

Gross debts of the Group as at 31 December 2005

comprised a five-year 3 per cent fixed-rate medium-

term note amounting to $150 million. After deducting

cash and cash-equivalent of $531 million, the Group

was in a net cash position of $382 million at the end of

the financial year.

Financial Resources

The Group maintained sufficient cash and cash-

equivalents, internal-generated cash flow and the

availability of funding resources through an adequate

amount of committed credit facilities. A mixture of short-

term money market borrowings and medium term loans

was obtained to fund working capital requirements,

capital expenditure and investments. Due to the dynamic

nature of the business, the Group maintained flexibility

in funding by ensuring that ample working capital lines

were available at any one time.

1200

1000

800

600

400

200

0

$'m

Issued Capital
Capital, Foreign Currency Translation & Other Reserves
Retained Profits
Minority Interest
Return on Equity

12

11

10

9

8

7

6

5

4

3

2

1

0

%

S
ha

re
ho

ld
er

s 
Fu

nd

9.1

9.9

8.4

9.9

11.9

2005

2004

2003

2002

2001

318.3

145.0

602.2

50.2

10.0

517.3

263.3

140.6

10.3
541.5

257.0

141.4

14.7
548.4

236.7

142.0

33.8
585.4

240.8

142.8

90

80

70

60

50

40

30

20

10

0

cents

Net Assets Value
Net Tangible Assets

N
et

 A
ss

et
 V

al
ue

 a
nd

 N
et

 T
an

g
ib

le
 A

ss
et

s 
P

er
 S

ha
re

2005
2004

2003
2002

2001

67.19

67.87

64.60

65.29
65.65

66.46

64.41

65.52

73.47
73.22

2400

2200

2000

1800

1600

1400

1200

1000

800

600

400

200

0

$'m

Current Assets
Other Long Term Assets
Other Investments
Associated Companies & JV
Fixed Assets

A
ss

et
s

633.3

168.3

99.0

104.6

429.9

642.2

203.9

92.8
101.8

447.9

769.7

172.3

71.8
58.7
452.7

1,219.9

88.3
23.7
67.5
460.0

579.6

123.6

77.9
51.9

1,493.1

2005
2004

2003
2002

2001

1200

1100

1000

900

800

700

600

500

400

300

200

100

0

$'m

Current Liabilities
Long Term Liabilities

Li
ab

ili
ti

es
 -

 T
o

ta
l L

ia
b

ili
ti

es

2005
2004

2003
2002

2001

57.0

52.1

205.0

446.9

531.2

651.7

46.1
492.1

227.6

982.9



2001 2002 2003 2004 2005

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Turnover 854,461 1,011,512 1,067,986 1,362,764 2,119,279

Less: Bought In Materials (594,907) (731,489) (802,765) (1,062,339) (1,734,961)

Gross Value Added From Operation 259,554 280,023 265,221 300,425 384,318

Investment, Interest & Other Income 40,031 54,604 38,936 49,654 42,917

Share Of Associated Companies' Results (1,707) 5,819 7,930 12,208 12,313

Share Of Joint Ventures' Results (30) 243 73 1,070 1,011

Other Non-Operating Expenses (4,049) (21,490) (5,327) (14,307) (12,409)

293,799 319,199 306,833 349,050 428,150

Distribution:

To Employees : Salaries, Wages & Benefits 151,822 157,048 165,360 180,833 216,533

To Government : Income & Other Taxes 27,090 27,418 21,836 21,844 41,888

To Providers of Capital : -

Interest Paid on Borrowings 291 822 2,663 2,822 4,785

Dividends 60,356 71,470 71,842 56,881 98,036

Retained in Business :

Depreciation and Amortisation 29,117 33,462 35,294 37,497 37,766

Retained Profits 22,389 20,627 6,699 38,121 23,362

Minority Interests (1,892) 1,110 (316) 3,017 4,186

Non-Production Costs 4,626 7,242 3,455 8,035 1,594

Total Distribution 293,799 319,199 306,833 349,050 428,150

Average Number of Employees 4,737 5,272 5,302 5,572 6,241

Employment Costs 151,822 157,048 165,360 180,833 216,533

Value added per Employee 54.79 53.12 50.02 53.92 61.58

Employment Cost Per Employee 32.05 29.79 31.19 32.45 34.70

Value Added Per Employment Costs 1.71 1.78 1.60 1.66 1.77

Value Added Per Dollar Investment

in Fixed Assets 0.60 0.63 0.59 0.65 0.66

Value Added Per Dollar Sales 0.30 0.28 0.25 0.22 0.18

FINANCIAL REVIEW

VALUE ADDED STATEMENT
& PRODUCTIVITY RATIOS
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STATEMENT OF COMPUTATION
OF ECONOMIC VALUE ADDED

2005 2004

S$'000  S$'000

Net Profit before Tax 146,531 99,811

Adjust for:

Share of Associated and Joint Ventures Companies' Results 13,324 13,278

Interest Expense 7,778 6,871

Others 6,764 (7,653)

Adjusted Profit Before Interest and Tax 174,397 112,307

Cash Operating Taxes (Note 1) (29,067) (18,775)

NOPAT 145,330 93,532

Average Capital Employed (Note 2) 1,339,437 1,300,373

Weighted Average Cost of Capital  (Note 3) 5.3% 6.2%

Capital Charge 70,990 80,623

Group EVA 74,340 12,909

Less: Minority Share of EVA 1,746 1,196

Group EVA Attributable to Ordinary Shareholders 72,594 11,713

Unusual Items (UI) Gains (Note 4) 9,214 434

Group EVA Attributable to Shareholders (exclude UI) 63,380 11,279

Note 1 : The reported current tax is adjusted for the statutory tax impact of interest expense.

Note 2: Monthly average total assets less non-interest bearing liabilities plus timing provision, goodwill written off /
amortised / impaired and present value of operating leases.

Note 3: The Weighted Average Cost of Capital is calculated in accordance with SembCorp Industries Ltd Group EVA Policy
as follows:

i) Cost of Equity using Capital Asset Pricing Model with market risk premium at 6.0% (2004: 6.0%)
ii) Risk-free rate of 2.62% (2004: 3.78%) based on yield-to-maturity of Singapore Government 10 years Bonds;
iii)Ungeared beta 0.5 (2004: 0.5) based on SembCorp Industries risk categorisation; and
iv) Cost of Debt rate at 3.03% (2004: 3.70%) using 5-year Singapore Dollar Swap Offered rate plus 75 basis point.

(2004: 5-year Singapore Dollar Swap Offered rate plus 75 basis point)

Note 4: Unusual Items (UI) refer to divestment of subsidiaries and associates, long-term investments and disposal of major
fixed assets.
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SENSITIVITY ANALYSIS
1. Operational Risk

The Group operated in 10 countries with assets and

activities spreading across Asia Pacific and Brazil. Senior

managers were posted overseas to oversee and manage

the Group’s operational risk in these countries.

As part of its plan to grow its business internationally, the

Group would continue to focus on increasing its operating

activities and presence in Brazil, Greater China and Middle

East.  As part of this business strategy, the Group would

expect the percentage of its overseas-sourced assets and

customers to increase in the future, thereby achieving the

effects of greater geographical diversification. Likewise,

a broader base of significant customers would reduce the

risk of customer concentration.

2. Investment Risk

The Group had been seeking to grow its business on

three fronts:

• Organic growth of its existing capabilities

• Development of new capabilities

• Acquisition of business entities or operating assets

Investment activities, ranging from the identification of

targets to the conducts of due diligence exercises, were

supported by a dedicated team of experienced managers

and augmented by external professionals for specialised

services. The business proposals were guided by a given

set of internal investment criteria, evaluated by senior

management before seeking final Board of Directors’

approval.

3. Treasury & Financial Risk

The Group had in place an established treasury policy

and guidelines for managing treasury and financial

risks. The treasury policy sought to optimise the Group’s

cost of capital, minimise the adverse effects of

fluctuations in currency and interest rates on income

and ensure sufficient funds would be available to meet

financial obligations and operational needs.

The Group’s treasury activities were centrally managed

in Singapore. As a policy, the Group would not undertake

speculative positions for trading purposes.

4. Interest Rate Risk

The Group’s policy had been to maintain an efficient

optimal interest cost structure using a mix of fixed and

variable rates debts where working capital would be

financed by variable rate loans while long-term

investments would be financed by fixed rate loans.

Surplus funds, if any, would be placed with reputable

banks and/or investment in bonds.

The Group obtained additional funding through bank

borrowings and leasing arrangements. The Group’s

policy would be to obtain the most favorable interest

rate available without increasing its foreign currency

exposure.

5. Foreign Exchange Risk

The Group incurred foreign exchange risk on purchases

that were denominated in various currencies other than

Singapore dollars, primarily the US dollar and Japanese

yen. To minimise exposures on foreign currency risks,

the Group would usually arrange for natural hedging

by matching costs in the same currency as sales

collections.

6. Derivative Financial Instrument Risk

The Group also utilised forward exchange contracts

with maturities of less than 12 months to hedge

foreign currency denominated financial assets,

liabilities and firm commitments. Under this

arrangement, increases or decreases in the Group’s

foreign-currency-denominated financial assets, liabilities

and firm commitments would partially offset gains

and losses on the hedging instruments. The Group

would only use foreign-currency forward contracts for

hedging purposes.

1. Interest Rate

The Group’s cash and cash-equivalents were largely invested

in fixed deposits. Movement in interest rates would have

had significant impacts on the interest and investment

income for the Group. Based on the cash and cash-

equivalents for the Group of $532 million at the end of 2005,

a one percentage point movement in effective fixed deposit

interest rate was estimated to result in an annual $5.32

million change in interest income for the Group.

2. Gross Profit Margin

Based on the turnover of $2.12 billion in 2005, a one

percentage point movement in the gross profit margin of

the Group would lead to a $21.2 million change in gross

profit for the Group. There were many different programmes

undertaken across the Group to smoothen out specific

project fluctuations.

3. Others

As other risk factors that would have an impact on turnover

and net profits tend to be sector-specific, it would not be

practical to perform sensitivity analysis in such an instance.

7. Liquidity Risk

To measure liquidity risks, the Group monitored its

net operating cash flow, maintained a level of cash and

cash equivalents and secured committed funding

facilities from financial institutions. In assessing the

adequacy of these facilities, management reviewed

working capital requirements so as to mitigate the

effects of fluctuations in cash flows. Short-term funding

was obtained from overdraft facilities and bank loans.

8. Credit Risk

The Group had no significant concentration of credit

risk with any single counter party and monitored its

exposure to credit risks arising from sales to customers

on an on-going basis where credit evaluations were

done on customers that required credit. The Group only

dealt with pre-approved counterparties with good credit

rating and imposed a cap on the amount to be transacted

with any counterparty so as to reduce the concentration

of risk. Cash terms, advance payments and letters of

credit or bank guarantees would be required for

customers of lower credit standing.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The Group’s significant accounting policies are presented

in Note 2 in the Notes to the Financial Statements (pages

158 to 172). The Group has applied the same accounting

policies and methods of computation in the financial

statements for the current reporting year compared with

the audited financial statements as at 31 December 2004,

except for the adoption, with effect from financial year 2005,

of the following new Singapore Financial Reporting

Standards (FRS) issued by the Council on Corporate

Disclosures and Governance (CCDG) that are mandatory for

the financial years beginning on or after 1 January 2005:

FRS 39 Financial instruments: recognition

and measurement

FRS 102 Share-based payment

Apart from the above, the Group adopted various revisions

in FRS, applicable from 1 January 2005. These do not have

a financial impact on the Group.
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A Strong World Economy in 2005

The global economy in 2005 was resilient despite economic

uncertainties caused by successive increases in US interest

rates and the sharply higher oil prices.  Recent estimates

of 4.5 per cent growth were significantly higher than the

underlying long-term trend of 3.8 per cent. The US economy

had stayed buoyant.  Economic growth in Japan had

recovered and in Europe there were signs that domestic

demand was picking up again.  Outside the OECD area,

economic growth was well-maintained, with 10 per cent

growth in China and 7.5 per cent growth in India.  Stimulated

by higher oil prices there had also been strong economic

growth in the Middle East.

Optimistic Views for Global Economy
in 2006

For 2006, world economic growth is expected to be 4.3

per cent, a slight decline from 4.5 percent in 2005.

Compared with the underlying 10-year trend of 3.8 per

cent, the predicted 4.3 per cent growth is still considered

to be relatively strong. Consensus forecasts point to

somewhat higher growth than in 2005 in Europe and in

several Asian countries. The US economy is expected

to run at 3.4 per cent in 2006, driven by continued strong

growth in private consumption and business investment.

In the European Union, economic growth is expected

to show some vigour, driven by a cautious upturn in

domestic demand and increased exports. The upturn in

Japan is now not only based on the export sector but

also on increased investment and private consumption.

The Risks

However, unexpected events may still emerge as risks

to change predicted outcomes. Possible risks are found

in the bird flu pandemic that could affect world trade

and an embargo towards Iran on nuclear weapons that

could lead to high energy prices. Despite the permanent

existence of certain risks, the world economy has been

surprisingly robust for some years, and even the impact

of higher oil prices on the global economy has been

unexpected weak so far. While previous energy crises

had been driven by disruptions in oil supply, this time,

the surge in oil prices has been demand-driven in a

period with strong economic growth. Also, the rise in

energy prices this time has been more gradual, resulting

in increased tolerance by consumers. In addition, re-

investments by oil exporters were already under way

during the price rise period.

Singapore Economy & Outlook

The Singapore economy grew by a healthy 6.4 per cent

in 2005 after a strong 8.7 per cent growth in the previous

year. The strong momentum in 2005 was mainly boosted

by the better-than-expected growth in manufacturing

activity, which registered a high 27 per cent share of

the GDP growth.

All major economic sectors, apart from construction

sector, registered stronger levels of activity compared

to 2004.  In the manufacturing sector, transport

engineering posted strong gains of 35 per cent,

supported by marine and offshore engineering.

The strong GDP growth in 2005, which bettered the

government’s preliminary estimate of 6 per cent,

prompted an upward revision of the growth target for

2006 to be between 4 to 6 per cent. This was up by one

percentage point from 3 and 5 per cent.

The Singapore Marine Industry

The Singapore marine industry is expected to turn in

a sterling performance of more than $7 billion in 2005.

Its total turnover of $5.3 billion in 2004 was a new high

and a major milestone achievement for the industry.
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Ship Repair & Conversion Offshore Shipbuilding
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7.4 b*

39,000*

Percentage Change Over Corresponding Period of Previous Year

Sector 2004 2005 1Q 04 2Q 04 3Q 04 4Q 04 1Q 05 2Q 05 3Q 05 4Q 05

Total 8.7 6.4 8.5 12.3 7.4 6.9 3.4 5.7 7.6 8.7

Manufacturing 13.9 9.3 10.3 20.0 11.1 14.3 3.2 5.9 13.1 14.2

Construction -6.1 -1.1 0.6 -7.0 -10.1 -7.6 -1.1 -1.1 -1.4 -0.8

Wholesale & Retail 15.6 10.5 17.1 17.6 15.5 12.7 8.7 10.2 10.7 12.1

Hotels & Restaurants 11.5 4.6 3.4 39.5 8.5 2.5 1.9 5.4 4.7 6.2

Transport & Communications 8.5 4.5 3.3 17.5 8.3 5.7 4.5 4.1 4.3 5.1

Financial Services 5.4 6.5 15.4 5.5 2.4 -0.1 2.2 7.9 8.5 7.4

Business Services 2.8 4.9 3.1 4.1 1.8 2.4 2.7 3.9 6.6 6.3

Source: Department of Statistics

Annual Growth in Real GDP

(Percentage change from previous year)

2004 2005 2006(E)

USA 4.2 3.6 3.4
Japan 2.3 2.5 2.3
EU 2.3 1.6 2.1
C. and Europe 6.5 4.3 4.6
Russia 7.2 5.5 5.3
Africa 4.5 5.9 5.5
China 10.1 9.8 8.7
India 6.9 7.6 7.1
Other Asia 6.0 5.7 5.7
Middle East 5.5 5.4 5.0
Latin America 5.8 4.3 3.9
World 5.1 4.5 4.3

Source : Platou Report (different sources)

Source : Association of Marine Industries

Source : Ministry of Manpower *Estimated

*EDB Data
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The Singapore marine industry will continue to position

itself as a global centre for ship repair, ship conversion,

offshore construction and specialised shipbuilding. The

industry will leverage on Singapore's good infrastructure

and strategic business alliances already built up by the

shipyards and supporting companies to further entrench

its position as a global leader.

Comparative Strengths and
Advantages of the Singapore Marine
Industry

Singapore has remained as one of the undisputed global

leaders in marine engineering sector; specifically ship

repairing, ship building and rig building because of her

resilience against intense external competition in the

region and the foresight to invest in technology and

manpower in order to create a sustainable advantage

in the competitive industry.

The emergence of regional low-cost shipyards and their

rapid expansion in a bid to secure larger market share

have remain a challenging reality to the Singapore

yards. Singapore’s advantage over its regional

competitors lies with the long-standing experience

gained from its head-start in marine repair, conversion

and construction. Local yards are now scaling up the

value chain through process improvements and

innovation, therefore resulting in the shipyards’ fast

turnaround time in ship repair, shipbuilding jobs and

the yards’ ability to increase capacity utilisation on the

rig-building. These strengths have enabled local yards

to clinch more contracts.

Singapore yards have stayed focused even when the

pickings were slow when the marine engineering sector’s

investment trickled after the late 1970s’ boom. This

enabled the yards to move up the technological curve

to take the lead in shallow-water jack-up rigs and

surviving a lull in offshore drilling by clinching orders

in the bigger and higher-end ship-repair market.

In the face of rising low-cost competition, Singapore

shipyards have also made the calculated move into

more specialised repair work as well as conversions

and rig building. This has allowed Singapore to further

its foothold in the global marine engineering market

amid growing competitive pressure from low cost

shipyards in the region.
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Average value per vessel increased
by 18% to $1.72 million.

Rig Building registered
strongest growth at 223% as

compared with 2004.
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SEMBCORP MARINE:

The SembCorp Marine Group’s revenue for 2005 was

derived mainly from the four main sectors of ship repair,

shipbuilding, ship conversion and offshore and rig

building.

Group revenue increased from $1,363 million to $2,119

million in 2005, marking an increase of 55.5 per cent.

The increase was attributable to growth across all

business segments.  Ship repair revenue increased 16.3

per cent from $456.2 million to $530.6 million, while

shipbuilding revenue registered a 132.6 per cent increase

from $81.1 million to $188.6 million in 2005. The ship

conversion and offshore sector enjoyed an improvement

of 44.1 per cent from $615.0 million to $886.3 million

in 2005. The rig building sector saw the most significant

increase of 222.6 per cent, from $118.2 million to $381.3

million in 2005.  Other businesses, comprising bulk

volume purchases, recorded a 43.6 per cent rise from

$92.3 million to $132.5 million in 2005.

Tu

rn
ove

r by Segments 2004

Ship Conversion/Offshore
Ship Repair

Rig Building
Shipbuilding

Others

45%

33%

7%

9%

6%

Ship Conversion/Offshore
Ship Repair

Rig Building
Shipbuilding

Others

Tu
rn

ove
r by Segments 2005

42%

9%

18%

6%

25%

SHIP REPAIR SECTOR

By sector contributions, ship repair accounted for 25

per cent of the Group’s total revenue, at $530.6 million,

in 2005 as compared with $456.2 million in 2004. The

ship repair sector continued to register strong growth

in 2005, attributed mainly to increased volume and

higher-value repairs, particularly on tanker repairs,

FPSO upgradings, offshore upgradings, container

vessels and LNG gas tankers. Strong freight rates across

vessel types fuelled migration of vessels to Singapore

as reliable and quick turnaround time had become a

more critical factor.

Although the number of vessels repaired in 2005 declined

from 313 to 309 in 2004, average value per vessel

increased from $1.46 million to $1.72 million in 2005.

Vessel Types 2004

Tanker
Container
Bulk Carrier

LPG/LNG
Cargo

Navy
Others

Dredger
FPSO Upgrading

37%

8%

24%

8%

2%

3%

6%

3%
9%

By vessel types, tanker repairs and FPSO and offshore

upgradings accounted for 52 per cent in 2005, as

compared with 46 per cent in 2004.  Significant increases

were registered in container vessels at 17 per cent and

LNG/LPG tankers at 10 per cent in 2005.  Bulk carriers

and navy vessels accounted for 3 per cent each, followed

by passenger vessels at 2 per cent.  Dredger and cargo

vessels each accounted for 0.5 per cent, and others at

12 per cent.

Tankers & FPSO/FSO & Offshore
Upgradings accounted for 52% of
ship repair as compared with 46%

in 2004. Significant increase in
container & LPG/LNG repairs.

Sector FY2005 FY2004 +/( ) +/( )
$’m $’m $’m %

Ship Repair 530.6 456.2 74.4 16.3

Shipbuilding 188.6 81.1 107.5 132.6

Ship conversion 886.3 615.0 271.3 44.1
/offshore

Rig Building 381.3 118.2 263.1 222.6

Others 132.5 92.3 40.2 43.6

Total 2,119.3 1,362.8 756.5 55.5

Description FY2005 FY2004 % to change
Revenue

530.6 456.2 16.3contributions
No. of vessels 309 313 (1.3)
Average value

1.72 1.46 17.8per vessel ($m)

Year

Vessel Types 2005

Tanker
Container
Bulk Carrier

LPG/LNG
Cargo

Navy
Others

Dredger
FPSO Upgrading

Passenger
Offshore Upgrading

46%

17%3%

10%

0.5%

12%

2%

3%
3%

3%
0.5%
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The Group maintained its efforts to foster strategic

alliances with customers for sustainable growth in the

ship repair sector. Huge emphasis was placed on

expanding the pool of alliance partners who would provide

a stream of resilient and recurring repair work. Such long-

term strategic alliances with customers continued to

Market Outlook for
Ship Repair Sector
The ship repair market showed robust growth in the

past year, with its prospects expected to remain good

in the medium to long-term future. As seaborne and oil

trades played important roles in the world economic

growth, it was projected that new cargo carrying vessels

and offshore rigs and other oil exploration related vessels

and floaters would be added to the fleet every year. This

increase in the number of vessels worldwide would also

translate to continuous growth in the repair markets as

the fleet aged over time. The demand for dock capacity

would thus grow increasingly, especially in Asia.

provide a steady and growing base-load, which in 2005

accounted for 39 per cent of the Group’s ship repair

revenue. Moving ahead, the Group will continue to place

emphasis on quality, safety and on-schedule delivery,

which are key criteria used by customers in the selection

of a shipyard as their alliance partner.

In June 2005, Sembawang Shipyard signed a long-term

Favoured Customer Contract with ASP Ship Management

Group (UK), who committed the retrofitting and

drydocking of its fleet of owned/operated/managed

vessels to the yard for the foreseeable future. With

offices in the United Kingdom, Australia, India and

Singapore, ASP Ship Management Group has a large

fleet of more than 120 vessels. With the signing of this

contract, an estimated eight to ten vessels would be

expected to drydock in Sembawang Shipyard annually.

Since the signing of the contract, the first ASP vessel

to dock was Scottish Wizard, a 40,525 dwt chemical

tanker in June 2005.

* We continue to foster Strategic
Alliance Partners.

* Continuous support with steady
& growing baseload.

* Emphasis on quality, safety &
delivery on schedule.

Strategic Alliances with Customers

Continuous support from alliance customers

Type 2005 2004

Alliance Partners 39% 29%

Regulars 47% 54%
Sub-total 86% 83%
Others 14% 17%
Total 100% 100%

Chevron Shipping
Kumiai Senpaku
NOL Shipping
P.T. Humpuss Intermoda
Shell International Shipping
BP Shipping
BHP Billiton
JO Tankers
TESMA (Norway)
Alaska Tanker Co (USA)
V Ships (Monaco)
Taiwan Marine Transport
TECTO B.V. (Belgium)
North West Shelf (Australia)
ASP Shipmanagement

Year Effective 1989 1998 1999 2000 2002 2003 2004 2005
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SHIPBUILDING SECTOR

Increasing shipbuilding contributions
with more vessels in work-in-

progress stages.

Shipbuilding contributed $188.6 million or 9 per cent

of the Group’s total revenue in 2005, an increase of

132.6 per cent from $81.1 million in 2004.  A total of

three vessels, comprising two fast boats and one 2,600

TEU container vessel were delivered in 2005.   Work-in-

progress for shipbuilding comprised three units of 2,646

TEU container vessels for Wan Hai Lines, one unit of

2,646 TEU for Reederei F Laeisz and two units of 4,950

dwt tankers for Kuwait Oil Tanker.

The three units of the 2,600 TEU container vessels in

the early stages of production were scheduled for

deliveries between the first quarter of 2007 to the third

quarter of 2007.

Market Outlook for the
Shipbuilding Sector
Singapore yards continued to enjoy a niche market

position for shipbuilding of customised and specialised

vessels. These included as barges, tugs, supply vessels,

pleasure craft and yachts, and to a lesser extent,

container ships, offshore supply vessels, cable-laying

ships and tankers. Buoyed by the robust market

fundamentals, strong demand is expected for new builds

of offshore supply vessels as well as feeder container

vessels in the future.

SHIP CONVERSION AND OFFSHORE  SECTOR

The Group’s ship conversion and offshore sector

accounted for $886.3 million, or 42 per cent, of total

revenue in 2005. A total of two projects were completed

during the year, namely the Modec Venture 11 FPSO

conversion project and the Erha FPSO Topsides

installation.

Ship conversion/offshore expected
to be strong in 2006.

Ship conversion & offshore
activities expected to be strong

in 2006.

Shipbuilding activities will remain
strong in 2006.

SEMBCORP MARINE: SEMBCORP MARINE:

Description FY2005 FY2004 % changed

No. of vessels
3(2)* 4(3)* (25)

delivered

No. of vessels
6 6 -

(WIP)

In early stages 3 6 (50)

Percentage
188.6 81.1 132.6

completion ($m)

Year

WIP – work in progress          * - Fast Boat/tugs

Projects completed & delivered in 2005

Project Name/Type Customer Delivery schedule

1st unit 2,600 TEU container Wan Hai Lines 3Q 2005

Projects in WIP Stages

2nd unit 2,600 TEU container Wan Hai Lines 1Q 2006

3rd & 4th 2,600 TEU container Wan Hai Lines 3Q & 4Q 2006

1st unit 2,600 TEU container Reederei F Laeisz 3Q 2006

2 units 4,950 dwt tanker Kuwait Oil Tanker 4Q 2006

Projects in Early Stages of Production

5th & 6th 2,600 TEU container Wan Hai Lines 2Q & 3Q 2007

2nd unit 2,600 TEU container Reederei F Laeisz 1Q 2007

Description FY2005 FY2004 % changed

No. of vessels
2 1 100

completed

No. of vessels
5 6 (17)

(WIP)

Projects
5 1 400

In early stages

Percentage
886.3 615.0 44.1

completion ($m)

Year

WIP – work in progress

Projects completed & delivered in 2005

Project Name/Type Customer Delivery schedule

Modec Venture 11 FPSO conversion Modec 1Q 2005

Erha FPSO Topsides installation Bouygues Offshore 3Q 2005

Projects in WIP Stages

P-50 Topsides installation Petrobras 1Q 2006

P-54 marine conversion Petrobras 1Q 2006

P-54 Topsides fabrication Petrobras 1Q 2006

P-54 Compressor modules Petrobras 1Q 2006

Heavy Lift Derrick Pipelay Sapura Crest 1Q 2007

Projects in Early Stages of Production

P-54 integration & commissioning Petrobras 3Q 2007

ConocoPhillips topsides ConocoPhillips 2Q 2008

PRA-1 FPSO conversion Modec 1Q 2007

RJS FSO conversion Modec 4Q 2006

Newly secured project

WS Enterprise FPSO conversion Bergesen 4Q 2006
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continues to be robust, energy supply remains tight and the

futures market is bullish on oil and gas prices. Exploration

and production spending is increasing, rig utilisation is high

and rig rates are at unprecedented highs.

• Global oil demand continues to grow

In its latest Oil Market Report, the IEA sees demand for

oil growing by 2.1 percent in 2006. The growth is largely

attributable to increasing oil demand in China, which in

2006 is expected to grow by 5.8 per cent.   OPEC analysts

see world oil demand growing 1.9 per cent in 2006, with

oil demand growth in China comprising about one-quarter

of the total oil demand growth. China has been singled

out as the major locomotive for future demand growth.

As the Chinese economy is expanding at a rate of almost

10 percent annually, China will continue to grow in energy

intensity as the country further industrialises.  Oil will

remain as the world’s most important energy source, and

oil consumption is projected to grow by 2.2 per cent per

year up to 2010.

• World oil supply remains tight

Political instability continues to overhang the worldwide

energy supply, keeping oil prices in the US$60 range.

About 20 per cent of Nigeria’s oil production has already

been shut-in due to attacks by a militant group on assets

in the Niger Delta. Continued turmoil in Iraq has caused

production to decrease to 1.5 million b/d in January from

an average of 1.8 million b/d in 2005 and 2.0 million b/d

in 2004.  Controversy over nuclear power development

and threat of sanctions has created concern over the

future supply of Iranian crude. The terrorists attack on

the Abqaiq oil complex in Saudi Arabia in February 2006

also impacted supply as this facility removes water, gas,

sulphur and other impurities from crude before export

and processes 6 to 7 million barrels of crude per day.

• Oil and natural gas prices near record levels

Oil and gas prices worldwide increased significantly

through 2004, which continued through 2005 with oil

prices reaching more than US$65 per barrel. The 12-

month moving average for Brent was over US$50 per

barrel by end of 2005, up by almost US$15 per barrel in

one year. Demand for energy is predicted to grow

significantly, driven by the industrialisation of emerging

economies.

Work in progress at the end of 2005 included:

• Topsides modules’ integration and commissioning works

on the P-50 in Mauá Jurong in Brazil.  The floating

production-storage-offloading (FPSO) vessel was

delivered in February 2006.

• The marine conversion of a very large crude carrier (VLCC)

Barao De Mauá into an FPSO P-54 for Petrobras

Netherlands BV. Work on the FPSO conversion

commenced in August 2004, with the marine conversion

in Jurong Shipyard scheduled for completion in April

2006.

• Fabrication of topsides and compressor modules in

Mauá Jurong in Brazil with completion due in the first

quarter of 2006.

• Design and construction of a self-propelled DP2 Heavylift

Derrick Pipelay Vessel for SapuraCrest Petroleum Berhad,

Malaysia.

Projects that were still in the early stages of production

included:

• Fabrication and integration of topsides for a new build

FPSO vessel for a major oil development in Bohai Bay

for ConocoPhillips China, Inc.  The project is undertaken

by Sembawang Shipyard in partnership with SMOE Pte

Ltd.

• Conversion of PRA-1 to a FPSO vessel for Modec

International.

• Conversion of RJS to a floating storage-offloading (FSO)

vessel for Modec International.

• Integration and commissioning of P-54 topsides modules.

New projects secured in early 2006 to date included:

• An S$88 million contract for Sembawang Shipyard to

convert an ultra-large crude carrier (ULCC) WS Enterprise

into an FPSO for Bergesen Worldwide Offshore.

Scheduled for completion in the fourth quarter of 2006,

the FPSO will be deployed in the Gulf of Mexico under

a 15-year term agreement with Pemex, a Mexican state-

owned oil and gas company.

Market Outlook for the Ship
Conversion and Offshore Sector
The underlying market drivers for the floating production

sector remain very strong. Global demand for energy

• Exploration and production activity expanding at

a robust pace

Lehman Bros in its recent annual survey of 325 energy

companies found that respondents on the average plan

to increase exploration and production expenditures by

14.7 per cent over 2005, indicating plans to commit

US$238 billion in such activities in 2006. These responses

are backed by recent announcements of capital

expenditure budgets for 2006. Chevron says it plans to

increase capital and exploration spending to US$14.8

billion, a 35 per cent increase over 2005. ConocoPhillips

says it will spend US$6.7 billion for exploration and

production expenditures in 2006, up 31 per cent from

US$5.1 billion the budget announced last year.

ExxonMobil expects to spend US$20 billion annually on

capital expenditures over the next five years, up from

the current level of US$18 billion, with roughly three-

quarters of these expenditures for exploration and

production. A February survey by Bank of America tested

sentiment in the industry concerning plans for new

drilling activity in light of the recent drop in US natural

gas spot prices.  The results generally confirms the

industry is taking a longer view and remains bullish.

• Floating Production Units Planned or Under Study

There are now 179 floating production systems in

operation or available worldwide. Floating production-

storage-offloading (FPSO) vessels comprise 61 per cent

of the current total, production semis 21 per cent, tension

leg platform 10 per cent and production spars 8 per cent.

An IMA report dated March 2006 identified a total of 97

projects currently in the bidding, design or planning

stage that would potentially require floating production

or storage systems. If all these materialised, they would

generate a requirement for 91 additional production

floaters and at least eight floating storage units. West

Africa leads with a potential requirement for 24

production floaters. Southeast Asia is second with 17

floaters. The Gulf of Mexico is third with 16 floaters,

followed by Brazil with 12, Northern Europe 10,

Australia/New Zealand five, China two and other locations

five. Six of the floating storage-offloading (FSO) vessels

are for Southeast Asia, and two are for West Africa.
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RIG-BUILDING SECTOR
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The rig-building sector registered the highest growth

at $381.3 million, a phenomenal increase of 222.6 per

cent from $118.2 million in 2004. Two units of the

semi-submersible rigs were delivered in the first quarter

of 2005.

Rig building still in early stages
of production in 2005.

We expect 2006 to be strong.

Jack-Up Rigs

Work in progress at the end of 2005 included:

PPL Shipyard:

• Construction of one unit of Baker Marine Pacific Class

(BMC) 375 Deep Drilling Offshore Jack-Up Rig for

Kristiansand Drilling, a joint venture company

between Skeie Group AS and Sembawang Shipyard

(S) Pte Ltd.  The jack-up rig is due for delivery at the

end of the first quarter of 2006.

• Construction of a BMC 375 deep Deep Drilling

Offshore Jack-Up Rig for Awilco Offshore ASA of

Norway. The jack-up rig is scheduled for delivery in

the second quarter of 2006.

• Construction of a BMC 375 Deep Drilling Offshore

Jack-Up Rig for PT Apexindo Pratama Duta Tbk, the

largest Indonesian oil and gas drilling company.  The

jack-up rig is scheduled for delivery in the fourth

quarter of 2006.

Projects that were still in the early stages of production

included:

PPL Shipyard:

• A US$119.6 million contract for the construction of

a BMC 375 Deep Drilling Offshore Jack-Up Rig for

Deep Drilling Invest Pte Ltd, a wholly owned

subsidiary of Sinvest ASA of Norway.  Construction

commenced in second quarter of 2005 with

completion scheduled in the second quarter of 2007.

• A US$121 million contract for the construction of a

BMC 375 Deep Drilling Offshore Jack-Up Rig for

WilSuperior Ltd, a subsidiary of Awilco Offshore ASA.

 As an option granted to Awilco Offshore, construction

commenced in third quarter 2005 with delivery

scheduled in the second quarter 2007.

• A US$129 million contract for the construction of a

BMC 375 Deep Drilling Offshore Jack-Up Rig for

Seatankers Management Co. Ltd. Construction

commenced in second quarter 2005 with delivery

scheduled in the fourth quarter 2007.

• A US$130 million contract for the construction of a

BMC 375 Deep Drilling Offshore Jack-Up Rig for Japan

Drilling Co. Ltd.  Construction commenced in the third

quarter of 2005 with completion due in the first

quarter of 2008.

Jurong Shipyard:

• A US$131 million contract for the construction of

a BMC 375 Deep Drilling Offshore Jack-Up Rig for

Petrojack AS, a company formed by Norwegian

Berge Gerdt Larsen. Construction commenced in

the first quarter 2005 with delivery scheduled in

the first quarter 2007.

• A US$127.1 million contract for the construction of

a BMC 375 Deep Drilling Offshore Jack-Up Rig for

Petrojack AS. As an option granted to Petrojack,

construction commenced in third quarter 2005 with

delivery scheduled in the first quarter of 2008.

• A US$131 million contract for the construction of

a BMC 375 Deep Drilling Offshore Jack-Up Rig for

Petrojack AS. As an option granted to Petrojack,

construction commenced in the fourth quarter 2005

with delivery scheduled in the fourth quarter of

2008.

New projects secured in early 2006 to date included:

Sembawang Shipyard:

• A US$175 million contract to construct a BMC 375

Deep Drilling Offshore Jack-Up Rig for Aban

Singapore Pte Ltd, a subsidiary of Aban Loyd Chiles

Offshore Ltd of India. Construction is scheduled in

the first quarter of 2006 with completion due in

mid-2008. The jack-up rig will be customised to

meet operational requirements in the Indian Ocean

enabling it to drill high pressure and high

temperature wells at 30,000 feet whilst operating

in 375 feet of water.

PPL Shipyard:

• A US$141.1 million contract to construct a BMC 375

Deep Drilling Offshore Jack-Up Rig for Deep Drilling

Invest Pte Ltd, a wholly owned subsidiary of Sinvest

ASA of Norway.  As an option granted by PPL

Shipyard to Deep Drilling Invest, construction is

expected to commence in first quarter 2006 with

delivery scheduled in the third quarter 2008.

SEMBCORP MARINE:

FY FY %

2005 2004 change

No. of Rigs delivered - JU - 1(1) n.m.
- Semi 2 - n.m.

No. of Rigs (WIP) - JU 4(1)* 1(1)* 300
- Semi 1 2 (50)

No. in engineering - JU 9 3 200
& early production - Semi 3 1 200
stage

Percentage completion ($m) 381.3 118.2 222.6

Year

WIP – work in progress
( ) PPL Shipyard
( )* 1 unit JV Jack-up

Description

Jack-Up Rig building activities expected to increase substantially in 2006

Project Name/Type Customer Delivery schedule

1st unit Jack-Up Kristiansand Drilling 1Q 2006

2nd unit Jack-Up Wilpower 2Q 2006

3rd unit Jack-Up Petrojack I 2Q 2007

4th unit Jack-Up Apexindo 4Q 2006

Projects in Engineering & Early Stages

5th unit Jack-Up Deep Drilling Invest 3Q 2007

6th unit Jack-Up WilSuperior 3Q 2007

7th unit Jack-Up Seatankers 4Q 2007

8th unit Jack-Up Petrojack II 1Q 2008

9th unit Jack-Up Japan Drilling 1Q 2008

10th unit Jack-Up Petrojack III 4Q 2008

11th unit Jack-Up Awilco 4Q 2007

Newly secured projects

12th unit Jack-Up Aban Lloyd 2Q 2008

13th unit Jack-Up Sinvest 4Q 2008

JU – Jack-up
Semi – Semi-submersible
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Semi-Submersible Rigs

Work in progress at the end of 2005 included:

Jurong Shipyard

• Fabrication of Atlantia Offshore’s new deep draft

semi-submersible lower hull for the Independence

Hub gas-processing platform in the ultra-deep waters

of the Gulf of Mexico.  Measuring 232 feet in length

and width and 160 feet in height, it is scheduled for

delivery in the first quarter of 2006

Projects that were still in the early stages of

production included:

Jurong Shipyard

• A US$390 million EPC contract to construct the first

unit of sixth-generation ultra-deepwater semi-

submersible drilling rig based on the Friede &

Goldman Ex-D design for SeaDrill Ltd. The design

allows for operation in challenging deep waters –

in particular the Gulf of Mexico, offshore Brazil and

West Africa – and in dynamic positioning mode in

water depths up to 10,000 feet. Construction

commenced in the second quarter 2005 with delivery

scheduled in the first quarter 2008.

• A US$404 million EPC contract to construct the

second unit of sixth-generation ultra-deepwater

semi-submersible drilling rig based on the Friede

& Goldman Ex-D design for SeaDrill Ltd. Construction

commenced in the third quarter of 2005 with delivery

scheduled in the fourth quarter of 2008. An

additional option was awarded to build a third unit

based on the same design and at comparable terms.

• A US$422 million contract to construct one unit of

sixth-generation ultra-deepwater semi-submersible

drilling rig based on the Friede & Goldman Ex-D

design for PetroMena AS, a wholly owned subsidiary

of Larsen Oil & Gas.  Construction commenced in

the third quarter of 2005 with delivery scheduled

in the fourth quarter of 2009.

Market Outlook for Rigs
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Semi-submersible rig building
activities also expected to

increase in 2006. Ordering momentum picks up
from 2004 onwards and is

expected to continue.

Semi-submersible market is
expected to be strong & ordering

momentum to continue.

Rigs on order

Rigs on order

Rigs on order

Projects in Engineering & Early Stages

1st unit Semi-submersible SeaDrill 3Q 2008

2nd unit Semi-submersible SeaDrill 4Q 2008

3rd unit Semi-submersible PetroMena 4Q 2009

Drillship Semi-submersible Jack-up
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Projects in WIP Stages

Project Name/Type Customer Delivery
schedule

Lower Hull Atlantia Offshore 1Q 2006

Source : ODS-Petrodata

Overall, the rig market is
expected to be strong.
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Market Outlook

The offshore oil industry had an exciting and busy year

in 2005. Not since the late 1970s had the oilfield services

industry been so buoyant.  The recovery in the rig market

which began towards the end of 2004, continued

steadily and concurrently, confidence grew that the

industry had at last entered a boom period.  Surging

demand for hydrocarbons, particularly from large

developing countries, put pressure on the world’s

dwindling reserves with the result that energy prices

shot up. The average oil price increased by around 40

per cent from US$38 in 2004 to about US$53 in 2005.

Hovering about the US$60 mark at the start of 2006,

the price was expected to remain well above US$40 for

years to come.

The increase in energy use was predominantly driven

by robust economic growth in China and India. In an

attempt to keep up with the world’s expanding energy

needs, oil companies realised they needed to replenish

their rapidly depleting stocks. As a result, they increased

their investments in exploration and development

projects to record levels in order to meet the soaring

costs of finding new sources of oil and replacing existing

reserves. Most forecasts were optimistic that the oil

price would not drop below US$40 per barrel in the

future as China’s and India’s expanding economies

would demand more energy. As refining capacity was

squeezed, geopolitical events only added to price spikes.

Subsequently, many more projects than before were

being given the green light, precipitating an increase in

demand for mobile offshore drilling units.

The high-end, high-specification premium jack-ups and

the high-specification deepwater floaters were the first

units to benefit from this boost in demand. All these

rigs were being signed up for long-term development

work in areas like the Middle East, West Africa and Latin

America as the downward pressure on lower-

specification units increased with utilisation levels

reaching full capacity in most regions. Drilling rig

contractors were in command as rig supply, rather than

rig demand, started to drive chartering activity.  As many

rigs started to accumulate a sizeable backlog of work,

oil companies in the US Gulf of Mexico had to rethink

their chartering strategies, moving away from the

traditional “spot market” way of doing business to more

long-term planning.

Hurricanes Katrina and Rita damaged 32 MODUs in the

US Gulf of Mexico – with eight jack-ups deemed to be

total losses – putting added pressure on an already

tight market.  With demand easily outstripping supply

in many rig markets, day rates in all rig categories

escalated to unprecedented highs.

SUMMARY OF ORDER BOOK
SEMBCORP MARINE:

Record high contracts secured in
2005

In 2005, the Group secured record contracts worth a

total of S$4.2 billion with deliveries and completion till

2009.  The increase was a significant 102 per cent from

the S$2.1 billion worth of contracts secured in 2004.

Total outstanding order book, excluding ship repair,

stood at S$5.9 billion at the end of 2005.

Based on the scheduled completion of projects, the

Group expects the current year’s overall performance

to be stronger than 2005.

Order Book remains strong at
a record high at $5.9 billion,

including new contracts secured
as at 14 February 2006.

Sector

Total Order Book (exclude ship repair)

Contract Value carried forward
S$m from 3Q 2005 plus new contracts Percentage of

secured as at 14 February 2006 Taken 4Q 2005 Balance Total Order Book

Shipbuilding 341 43 298 5%

Ship Conversion 1,446 366 1,080 18%
& Offshore

Rig Building 4,748 181 4,567 77%

Total 6,535 590 5,945 100%

Record Contracts Secured in 2005

Month Value (S$m) Details

January 217 1 unit Baker Marine Pacific Class 375 Jack-up rig for Apexindo

February 161 Fabrication & integration of topsides production modules for newbuild FPSO for 
ConocoPhillips China

123 Design & construction of a Self-Propelled DP2 Heavy Lift Pipelay vessel for 
SapuraCrest Petroleum Berhad

82 Fabrication of a deep draft semi-submersible hull for Atlantia Offshore

194 1 unit Baker Marine Pacific Class 375 Jack-up rig for Deep Drilling Invest

March 196 1 unit Baker Marine Pacific Class 375 Jack-up rig for Wilsuperior, a subsidiary of
(US$605) ($973) Awilco Offshore ASA

April 212 1 unit Baker Marine Pacific Class 375 Jack-up rig for Seatankers

209 1 unit Baker Marine Pacific Class 375 Jack-up rig for Petrojack II

215 1 unit Baker Marine Pacific Class 375 Jack-up rig for Japan Drilling

June 1,310 2 units of Friede &Goldman Ex-D designed semi-submersible rigs for SeaDrill

(US$1,311) ($2,162) 216 1 unit Baker Marine Pacific Class 375 Jack-up rig for Petrojack III

July 127 1 unit FPSO & 1 unit FSO conversions

August 697 1 unit of Friede & Goldman Ex-D designed semi-submersible for PetroMena

October 238 1 unit Baker Marine Pacific Class 375 Jack-up rig for Awilco
(US$642) ($1,062)

Total  (US$2,558) 4,197
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A record of $4.2 billion worth
of contracts were secured in
2005. Contracts to-date  stand

at $604 million with more
expected to come.

Break down of contracts (2005)
Jack-ups 41%
Semi-submersible 49%
Others 10%

Total 100%

Contracts
secured to-date

stand at
S$604 million.

We expect
more.

Jack-up rigs under construction in PPL Shipyard

Contracts Secured in 2006 (as at 14 February 2006)

Value

Month US$m S$m Details

January $ 175 $ 288 1 unit Baker Marine Pacific Class 375 
Jack-up rig for Aban Lloyd Chiles, India

January $ 53 $ 88 1 FPSO conversion – WS Enterprise

Total $ 228 $ 376

February $ 141 $ 228 1 unit of Baker Marine Pacific Class 375
Jack-up rig for Sinvest ASA

Total to-date $ 369 $ 604
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Shipbuilding Rig building Conversion/offshore

244

700 657 757

2,055
(16%)

(30%)

(54%)

4,197

3,786
(90%)

411
(10%)

604
516

(85%)
88(15%)

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010

Shipbuilding
1st unit 2,600 TEU container (Wan Hai Lines)
2nd unit 2,600 TEU container (Wan Hai Lines)
3rd unit 2,600 TEU container (Wan Hai Lines)
4th unit 2,600 TEU container (Wan Hai Lines)
5th unit 2,646 TEU container (Wan Hai Lines)
6th unit 2,646 TEU container (Wan Hai Lines)
1st unit 2,600 TEU container (R F Laeisz)
2nd unit 2,600 TEU container (R F Laeisz)
1st unit 4,950 dwt tanker (Kuwait Tanker)
2nd unit 4,950 dwt tanker (Kuwait Tanker)

Completion 1 6 3

Ship Conversion & Offshore
P-50 integration & commissioning
P-54 marine conversion
P-54 Topside Fabrication
P-54 Compressor Modules
P54 Integration and Commissioning
ConocoPhillips Topsides
Heavy Lift Derrick Pipelay Vessel
PRA-1 FPSO conversion
RJSFSO conversion
WS Enterprise FPSO conversion

Completion 6 3 1

Jack-up
1st Jack-up (Kristiansand Drilling)
2nd Jack-up (Wilpower)
3rd Jack-up (Petrojack I)
4th Jack-up (Apexindo)
5th Jack-up (Deep Drilling Invest)
6th Jack-up (Wilsuperior)
7th Jack-up (Seatanker)
8th Jack-up (Petrojack II)
9th Jack-up (Japan Drilling)
10th Jack-up (Petrojack III)
11th Jack-up (Awilco)
12th Jack-up (Aban)
13th Jack-up (Sinvest)

Completion (13 jack-ups on order) (0) (3) (5) (5)

Semi-submersible
Lower semi-submersible hull (Atlantia)
1st Semi-submersible (SeaDrill)
2nd Semi-submersible (SeaDrill)
3rd Semi-submersible (PetroMena)

Completion (4 units) (0) (1) (0) (2) (1)

Total (17) 0 4 5 7 1

Schedule of Delivery & Completion (exclusive of ship repair)

YearProjects
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The SembCorp Marine Group has a comprehensive set

of technical capabilities to support its corporate vision.

The Group’s capabilities are based on its investments

in research and technology in a commitment to provide

competitive, high quality, safe and on-time results to

customers. Living up to its core value of ‘Innovativeness’,

the Group promotes innovation through various different

platforms like the IDEA Award, Safety Innovation Teams

Award in order to ensure continuous improvement

and to stay relevant and ahead in this fast pace

competitive global arena.

IDEA Awards for Group Innovations

Two teams from Jurong Shipyard were honoured at the

IDEA (Innovate, Discover, Engineer and Achieve) Awards

in 2005.

The DOME team from the Piping and Outfitting Section

bagged grand honours for its ‘Portable Valve Grinding

Machine’. In the past, most valves had to be overhauled

by machines in the workshop as manual filing using

grinding paste and sand paper was too laborious and

time-consuming. The process of transporting the valves

from vessel to shore via cranes also posed safety hazards

to workers. With the user-friendly portable valve grinding

device, workers had the flexibility of performing

overhauling on the spot onboard the vessel without

having to remove valves from the pipeline. Only three

to five minutes were needed to complete one-side

grinding with greater precision and with fewer safety

hazards. These advantages resulted in a significant

reduction of process down-time and substantial cost-

savings of about 70 per cent.

Also recognised at the Awards, the ‘iTrack System’

jointly developed by Management Information Systems

and Human Resource, receive the merit award.

The system, which worked via

handheld devices, enabled

effective access control and

tracking of manpower, leading to

improved productivity and

manpower savings. It comprised

a SMART Check System for faster

security clearance of workers

boarding vessels, saving 4.5 hours

a day in the process and annual

manpower costs of about $43,

200. It also included a Guard

Patrol System for data speed and

accuracy from security personnel

on patrols and a SMART Time Plus

System for the efficient recording

and transmission of employee

attendance details on the central

database server.

RESEARCH, INNOVATION & TECHNOLOGY

“For we are living in exciting times in Asia. The economic centre of

gravity is shifting from West to East. This could be Asia's Century.

No doubt there are serious challenges. But I believe if we are innovative,

realistic and skilful, we can overcome them. And together ride the

Asian wave to prosperity.”

Mr Goh Chok Tong

Senior Minister

29 November 2005

Portable valve grinding machine Viewing of exhibits
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The Gen-2 team from Sembawang Shipyard's Pipe and

Boiler Department was the Grand Winner at IDEA Awards

2005. Their submission, 'Handy Safe Device', offers a

quick, efficient and safe way to lift and align a wide

range of pipes and flanges. This simple device eliminates

hand and foot injuries due to lifting and shifting of pipes,

and improves the overall safety condition in the

workplace.

The IDEA Awards were organised by SembCorp Marine’s

parent company SembCorp Industries. Each year, the

Award recognises outstanding innovations in the Group’s

businesses that have applied creativity and innovation

for significant business performance improvement.

SIT Silver for Emergency Signalling
System

The National Safety Innovation Teams (SIT)

Convention conferred the Silver award to Jurong

Shipyard’s S.T.E.P. team for its ‘Emergency Signalling

System’. The Convention was organised by the Ministry

of Manpower and the National Trade Union Congress

to recognise new and creative solutions that kept

workers safe and healthy at work or that generated cost

savings for the company.

The emergency signalling system addressed the

problem of personnel working in tanks or confined

spaces who had limited ability to hear and respond to

emergency sirens located above deck. They also had

difficulty alerting safety personnel should an incident

occur in their remote locations. The system placed alert

switches and sirens in the remote locations, which were

wirelessly connected to a portable receiver. Safety

personnel would thus be able to pinpoint the incident

location accurately. As a result, the new system could

accelerate emergency and evacuation procedures and

speed up response time by up to 50 per cent, thus

improving safety within the yard.

Most notable among its achievements, Jurong Shipyard

had developed the Innovation Management System

Flow to ensure that excellent innovative ideas generated

from a variety of sources would be passed through a

systematic step-by-step process for evaluation, design,

prototyping, testing and implementation. The system

was holistic in creating the conditions, culture,

competencies and connectivity for sustaining innovation

from diverse ideas which could come from management,

employees, suppliers and stakeholders.

Since its implementation, the system had seen innovative

ideas such as the ‘Load-Out and Mating-in-Dock’ method

of assembling fifth-generation semi-submersibles, which

is in the process of being patented. Other ideas included

a dust purifier that minimised the spread of dust during

tank blasting, a wireless working lamp that eliminated

electrocution hazards, as well as the latest emergency

signalling system.

Innovation Exchange Platforms

Several supporting initiatives were established to

help promote innovation ideas and creativity

among employees. For example, the Group’s Local

Industries Upgrading Programme team would meet

regularly to discuss issues related to the marine industry’s

development. Members of the team would brainstorm

innovative solutions to improve the industries’ efficiency,

reliability and international competitiveness.

Jurong Shipyard also developed an innovation IT portal

as an interactive system for staff to gather and share

information on innovation via the intranet. Besides

serving as an informative tool on innovation, the portal

would be refined in the future to provide a platform for

the continuous and vibrant exchange of ideas and views

among employees.

Emergency signalling systemHandy safe device

Innovative tube cutterVersatile flaring device

Employees explaining
the exhibits on display
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CORPORATE ENHANCEMENT & COMMUNITY CARE

“Companies frequently have a well-defined focus for their corporate

social responsibility initiatives. What we want to achieve through this

change is for more donors to come forward to support sport, the arts,

the environment, the needy or any other charitable cause they feel

passionate about and to build lasting relationships with the beneficiaries

they have lent their names to.”

Mrs Lim Hwee Hua

Minister of State for Finance

2 March 2005

SembCorp Marine Group conducts a wide range

of community and philanthropic activities

throughout Singapore in its aim to become a

corporate citizen respected by society. Its activities

span the major areas of industry promotion,

education, culture and the arts, the environment,

international exchange and local communities.

Industry Promotion

In industry promotion, the Group organised or

participated in a rewarding number of networking

exhibitions and corporate events to boost both

the public and private sector’s confidence in the

local industry during the year. Apart from nurturing

communication and forging closer alliances, the

Group aimed to shape public perceptions to the

local marine industry, promoting lifelong careers

for the young, enthusiastic and talented individuals.

Nor-Shipping 2005

The SembCorp Marine Group was part of the 15-

exhibitor-strong delegation forming the Singapore

pavilion at Nor-Shipping 2005, a premier trade show

for the global shipping industry, which took place from

7 to 10  June in Oslo, Norway. Mrs Lim Hwee Hua, Minister

of State for Finance and Transport, led the Singapore

delegates to promote Singapore as a gateway to Asia.

At the pavilion, Jurong Shipyard, Sembawang Shipyard

and PPL Shipyard showcased the Group’s integrated

expertise and capabilities. The event provided many

opportunities to strengthen and expand the Group’s

current network of partnerships as well as to build new

relationships. Working together, the three sister yards

also explored new ways of collaboration in enabling

the Group to synergise its strengths and offer more

value to customers.

Choice Engineering @ Careers 2005

For the second consecutive year the Group participated

actively for in Choice Engineering @ Careers 2005 held

at Suntec City from 3 to 6 March. This career fair was

organised by the Economic Development Board and

officiated by Mr Chan Soo Sen, Minister

of State for Education. Reaching out to

the crowd of 435,800 school leavers, job

seekers and working adults, the Group

sought to fill a wide variety of job

vacancies, ranging from management,

support, technical and non-technical

positions within its group of shipyards.

Representatives from the Group were

readily available to provide advice to job

seekers interested in the marine industry.

The response from the exhibition was a

huge success, with 1,300 applications

received at the end of four days.

Joint Career Transition Programme by

ASMI and RSN

The Group also participated in the

Association of Singapore Marine

Industries-Republic of the Singapore Navy

Servicemen Career Transition Scheme.

This career transition programme allowed

outgoing specialist servicemen from the Navy to join

the marine industry. Signifying its support to recruit

specialists under this programme, the Group signed a

memorandum of understanding at the Navy’s

headquarters in  April 2005.
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Great Maritime Adventure

Sembawang Shipyard co-hosted and assisted in the

‘Great Maritime Adventure’, organised by the Singapore

Maritime Foundation on 26 February 2005. The yard

was one of the maritime stops where participants could

learn about the shiprepair and ship conversion business.

The event was Sembawang Shipyard’s first public

outreach effort to promote the industry and the career

opportunities offered by the industry.

Marine Industry Recruitment

The Group continued to support the local marine

industry’s full range of initiatives to enhance the skills

and competencies of its workforce at all levels to lead

the next phase of the industry’s growth. These included

the Marine Re-skilling for Employment and the NexGen

programmes that targeted graduating secondary school

leavers and local tradesmen. The ASMI Super V Scheme

was another programme that recruited candidates as

trainee supervisors. In addition, the Group continued

to endorse the Nanyang Technological University’s

undergraduate specialisation in marine and offshore

programme to boost the global competitiveness of the

local industry. Other channels of inspiring and attracting

young talents were through school excursions to

shipyards, inter-school marine-themed competitions,

career exhibitions and road shows about the industry.

Education

SchoolBAG Scheme

Since 2001, the Group had been committed to the

Community Care & Responsibility Programme. This

year, the Group contributed about $250,000 under its

School Book Assistance Grant (SchoolBAG) Scheme to

provide financial assistance to needy families with

schooling children from 75 participating schools located

in close proximity to Jurong Shipyard and Sembawang

Shipyard. Beneficiaries received grants of varying value

depending on their level of education.

Sembawang Shipyard Annual Bursary Award

Sembawang Shipyard presented 30 bursaries worth

$24,050 at its Annual Bursary Award on 28 May 2005.

The recipients of these bursary awards were selected

based on the children’s performance in school,

employee’s work performance and the family’s financial

standing. The bursary scheme was a reflection of

Sembawang Shipyard’s commitment to ensure that

needy students had equal opportunities to pursue

education that would enable them to realise their

dreams to succeed in the community.

Future Scholarship Programmes

In order to nurture young talents for careers in the

marine industry, the Group had been offering

scholarships for promising polytechnic and university

students pursuing related engineering courses. In the

future, the Group would be looking at offering

scholarships to students from low-income families with

good academic and extra-curricular performances to

study marine-related courses in tertiary institutes.

Culture and the Arts

Brazilian Jazz and Samba Sensation

SembCorp Marine showed its avid support for music

and the arts by proudly sponsoring the Brazilian jazz

and samba sensation, Bebel Gilberto’s one-night-only

concert, at the Esplanade on 31 March. The renowned

Brazilian singer and musician charmed the audience

with her husky vocals as she sang both classics and

self-composed pieces. Bebel Gilberto, the daughter of

Joao Gilberto, was famous for the creation of the bossa

nova, a new beat blending the best of American Jazz

and Brazilian samba. Representatives from SembCorp

Marine, business partners and guests were able to

foster closer relationships through this entertaining

and successful event.

International Exchange

LatinAsia Biz 2005

To reaffirm its close ties with Brazil and strategic

presence in Latin-America, the Group sponsored

‘LatinAsia Biz 2005’, a networking exhibition and forum
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held from 7 to 8 September in Singapore. With the

theme, ‘Bridging Partnerships’, the exhibition and forum

provided the 250 business and government delegates

from 10 countries in Asia and Latin-America with the

platform to explore business opportunities and to share

experiences and insights into developing successful

Latin-Asia partnerships.

Deputy Prime Minister Visit to Mauá Jurong

Mauá Jurong, the Group’s yard in Brazil, played host to

a Singapore delegation led by Prof S Jayakumar, Deputy

Prime Minister, on 20 September. The delegation, which

was on an official visit to Brazil, comprised more than

20 officials from the Ministry of Foreign Affairs,

International Enterprise Singapore, the Singapore

Business Federation and representatives from

Singapore-based companies. The Minister and his

delegation were given an overview of the key business

operations in a presentation by the yard’s senior

management, followed by a yard tour, a boat ride and

a reception for Singapore-linked companies in Brazil.

The occasion provided an excellent opportunity for

interaction and networking, further reinforcing the close

relationship between Singapore and Brazil.

Learning Visit by Overseas Students

On 27 May, the Group welcomed a group of 30 overseas

students from the Senior Executive Masters Programme

of University of Tennessee, USA, for a learning visit. The

interactive session had senior management from

SembCorp Marine and Jurong Shipyard deliver a series

of presentations on the Group’s operations and expertise

in ship repair, shipbuilding, ship conversion, rig building

and offshore engineering. The discussion was enriched

with the exchange of engaging ideas and the sharing

of knowledge with one another.

Local Communities

Tsunami Relief Efforts

To help to ease the suffering of tsunami disaster victims,

SembCorp Marine and its subsidiaries put compassion

into action by raising $306,530.40 towards the tsunami

relief efforts. Responding to the call, employees and

subcontractors together with the Jurong Shipyard

employees’ union, rallied together and donated

generously towards the cause. All donations were

forwarded to the Red Cross International’s Tidal Wave

Asia Relief Fund.

Jurong Shipyard and its subcontractors further extended

help and support to 78 foreign workers whose families

had been affected by the tsunami in India by presenting

each with return air tickets, leave of absence and about

$300 in cash.

Christmas Party

In collaboration with Student Care Services from Yishun

Branch, Sembawang Shipyard organised a special

Christmas party for the children aged between 7 to 15

years old from the centre and from the yard’s employees.

The objective of the project was to allow the children

to share their talents and celebrate Christmas in a fun-

filled way, as well as to promote the spirit of

volunteerism in employees. The party featured magic

performances, games, a sing-a-long session and a

talent competition.
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The SembCorp Marine Group upheld its belief that a

talented, dedicated and respected workforce would ensure

its success in the global market. Its team of engaged,

efficient and flexible personnel had been the cornerstone

of its achievements over the years, despite intensified

competition, globalisation and growing expectations in

the marine industry. Developing these strengths further,

the Group continued to provide a nurturing environment

for employees to learn, grow and develop so as to meet

the business challenges ahead.

Super V Recruitment

The SembCorp Marine Group actively supported the

Super V Scheme, a new recruitment initiative launched

on 24 November. Under the scheme, Jurong Shipyard

and Sembawang Shipyard would offer locals better

entry pay, structured training and a well-defined career

path to encourage them to build enriching careers

within the marine and offshore industry.

Open to all physically fit Singaporeans and permanent

residents with at least secondary school education,

the scheme would provide a two-year nationally

recognised structured training programme with

specific certification courses. Upon completion of the

programme, graduates would enjoy progressive salary

increments and career progression to supervisors,

technical engineers or even higher advancements.

The scheme was developed under the Job Re-Creation

Programme for the Marine Industry by the Association

of Singapore Marine Industries, the National Trades

Union Congress and the Workforce Development

Agency. It would also be an enhancement to the existing

Trainee Chargehand Scheme at Jurong Shipyard.

HUMAN RESOURCES

“The Government is committed to funding and providing best-of-class

training providers. But employers, human resource practitioners and

supervisors must also help. They should take it upon themselves to

groom and grow talent. They should not see training as a one-off activity

or a target to fulfil, but a strategy that would map the workers' job

aspirations to corporate goals.”

Dr Ng Eng Hen

Minister for Manpower and Second Minister for Defence

28 November 2005

Manpower Strength Breakdown

Category No. of Employee Percentage

Management 1,845 27.3

Support Staff 492 7.3

Production Workers 4,428 65.4

Total 6,765 100
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Overseas Attachment Programme

During the year, the Group sent 31 employees overseas for

attachment programmes to inculcate the exchange of ideas,

learning and cultural experience in different countries such

as Brazil, China and Indonesia. Such invaluable exposure

benefited both the Group and the employees with a

cross-sharing of ideas and experiences to propel the Group

ahead to meet future challenges.

Long Service Recognition

For their years of loyal and dedicated service to the

company, 124 employees were recognised during the

Long Service Awards ceremony held in January 2005.

As a token of appreciation, these employees who had

served the company for 10, 15, 20, 25, 30, 35 and 40

years.

Management-Union Partnership

SembCorp Marine Group’s management continued to enjoy

a harmonious relationship with the Union, based on respect,

mutual trust, understanding and cooperation. As a result,

the Group had been able to achieve better job productivity

and satisfaction for its union members.

Mr CV Nathan – currently the Vice President and Branch

Secretary of Shipbuilding and Marine Engineering

Employees’ Union – was awarded the Comrade of Labour

Award in May 2005. The award was conferred to him by

the National Trade Union to SMEEU, Jurong Shipyard

Branch to recognise his significant contributions to

strong union-management synergy and active

involvement within the yard since 1971. Mr Nathan

received the award from Mr Lim Boon Heng, NTUC’s

Secretary General and Minister, Prime Minister’s Office.

Recognition Awarded to Employees
and Subcontractors

Employees and subcontractor companies that

contributed innovative ideas for productivity and safety

enhancements were acknowledged at the National Day

Ceremony held on 18 August at Jurong Shipyard. This

year, the Innovation Award under the Jurong Shipyard

category went to the Piping and Outfitting Section for

developing the ‘Laser-Based Method for Container

Fitting’. This new method had resulted in greater

productivity and safety, along with estimated cost

savings of $85,000 per new containership. Jurong

Machinery and Automation was also recognised for

developing the ‘Automated Duct Bender’, a device to

fabricate ventilation and air-conditioning ducts with

greater ease and efficiency and safety, resulting in

estimated cost savings of $200,000 per year.

Training Programmes

Several programmes and initiatives were undertaken

to align employee development to the Group’s business

expansion into new markets. Management staff in all

yards continued to undergo a focused initiative to

develop all-rounded individuals that would enhance

quality, safety and reliability in customer solutions.

Employees were also exposed systematically to different

areas of work to ensure a familiarity with projects in

different markets and scope, hence developing a more

motivated quality workforce.

To support its emphasis on higher value-add projects

and new markets, the Group continued to build its in-

house engineering design capabilities through

recruitment and development of promising engineers

who would pave the way for operational and product

progress. In addition, the Group recruited and developed

competent and skilled tradesmen throughout its yard

operations and equipped them with all the necessary

skills competencies for their jobs.

Employee Rejuvenation
Programmes

The SembCorp Marine Group continued to build on its

belief that only a cheerful, self-motivated, self-

disciplined and unified workforce would be able to

produce positive business results. Throughout the year,

the Group organised many employee rejuvenating

programmes to ensure a workforce that is positive,

enthusiastic, trained and equipped to meet the ever-

changing world. At the National Runway Cycling 2005

event, employees and their families had the rare

opportunity of getting up close with the Republic of

Singapore Air Force’s latest stable of aircrafts and

weaponry systems. In May 2005, Jurong Shipyard’s ‘JSL

Auto Adventure’ fostered more bonding among

employees, families and friends on a sight-seeing and

adventure trip to Kuantan in Malaysia.

Skills training

Trainees under the Super V scheme
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pioneer campaign at Jurong Shipyard. The trail took

employees on an excursion to the supermarket and

food centres led by representatives from the Health

Promotion Board who shared tips on healthy dietary

habits. Both entertaining and practical, the trail allowed

employees to apply the useful tips to their daily lives.

The increased number of participants during this second

food trail was testimony to the growing awareness and

interest among employees to eat more healthily.

Smoking Cessation

A three-month ‘Quit Now!’ programme at Jurong Shipyard

provided professional help for smokers to stub out

their smoking habit over six sessions. Held between

August and September, the programme enlisted

professionals to monitor the progress of employees

through the smoking cessation period. Employees who

persevered to the end were presented with special

awards in recognition of their commitment towards a

smoke-free lifestyle.

Physical Activities

Two new exercise workshops – Cardio Mix and Line

Dancing – were introduced to Jurong Shipyard in March

2005 to boost the existing line up of workplace fitness

activities. The new activities drew high participation

rates from receptive employees.

HEALTH, SAFETY, SECURITY & ENVIRONMENT

The SembCorp Marine Group continued to engage

in its comprehensive list of initiatives to promote a

healthy work environment for customers, employees,

contractors and the community. Throughout the year,

47 activities were held to promote the well-being of

employees in the areas of healthy eating, smoking

cessation, physical activities, stress management,

risk factor management and other initiatives.

Programmes initiated ranged from food trails, sports

tournaments, aerobics, dance

workshops and awareness

programmes to  insp i re

employees to live more healthy

lifestyles. Due to the Group’s

concerted effort in helping

the employees, lead healthy

and vibrant lives, Jurong

Shipyard scored a Gold Award

in the Singapore HEALTH

(Helping Employees Achieve

Life-Time Health) Awards for

three consecutive years.

Healthy Eating

The second ‘Health Food Trail’

was held on 15 November

following the success of the

Healthy eating Workplace fitness
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HEALTH, SAFETY, SECURITY & ENVIRONMENT

Stress Management

In order to combat the hectic demands of modern life,

the ‘Path to Mindfulness’ meditation course offered

employees inner peace and relaxation to overcome

stress. The course was conducted over four sessions

by a qualified meditation trainer from Singapore General

Hospital in September. It imparted breathing meditation

techniques to make the mind calmer and more focused

for stress reduction and balance.

Risk Factor Management

Under the ‘My Health Check@ Jurong’ initiative, the

Group brought health screening to the workplace to

raise employees’ awareness of their health status and

facilitate the early detection of any chronic medical

conditions. The Group believed that a healthy workforce

would be a key to a productive workforce.

Other Initiatives

In order to inspire team synergy for maximise

performance among employees, a two-day teambuilding

workshop was organised for a group of employees at

Sentosa. The participants enjoyed an interactive and

hands-on learning experience as they acquired a deeper

understanding of personal and team effectiveness

through a series of games and activities in leadership,

trust, cooperation and communication.
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The Group continued to place high importance in safety

among employees and subcontractors by adopting its ‘Safety

First’ policy at all times.  The safety practices and measures

taken by the SembCorp Marine shipyards are consistent

with and in compliance with the present requirements of the

Workplace Safety and Health Act that was recently passed

in Parliament, some even exceeding these requirements

and in conformance with international requirements.

This year in review, the SembCorp Marine Group

conducted numerous enriching workshops, forums and

exhibitions to ensure safety measures were maintained at

the highest levels.

International Certification

Internationally recognised certified systems have been well

implemented throughout SembCorp Marine’s shipyards.

When possible, the yards integrate environmental, quality

and safety measurement systems by achieving certification

under the ISO 9001, ISO 14001 and the Occupational Health

& Safety OHSAS 18001.
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Shipyards ISO 14001 ISO 9001 OHSAS 18001
Certification Certification Certification/Others

Jurong Shipyard - ISO9001:2000 OHSAS 18001:1999
ABS Quality Evaluations Inc. ABS Quality Evaluations Inc.
2004 Recertification 2005 Recertification

Sembawang ISO 14001:2004 ISO9001:2000 ISO9001:2000
Shipyard Environment Det Norske Veritas International Safety Rating System

Management 2005 Recertification by Det Norske Veritas
System  Maintained Level 9
2005 Recertification OHSAS 18001:1999

by Det Norske Veritas
2005 Certification

PPL - ISO9001:2000 -
Shipyard ABS Quality Evaluations Inc.

2005 Certification

Jurong ISO9001:2000
SML - Det Norske Veritas -

2005 Recertification
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Applicable to subcontractor
companies to encourage safety
 work practice

Working towards zero-incident
 I-CARE safety campaign

The implementation of the ‘I-Care’ Safety Campaign in

May 2005 and the ‘STAR’ Safety Programme for

contractors between the period of July and August 2005

saw a significant reduction in the accident frequency

rate. Before their implementation, the Overall Accident

Frequency Rate stood at 5.4 accidents per million man

hours worked in the month of May 2005, based on the

recordable cases in Jurong Shipyard. This decreased

steadily to a lower frequency rate of 3.1 at the end of

November 2005. By the end of December 2005, Jurong

Shipyard recorded an overall frequency rate of 2.9

accidents per million man hours worked. The Pulau

Samulun site, in particular, achieved the frequency rate

target of 2.8, set by the Advisory Committee in Accident

Prevention in Shipbuilding & Ship-Repairing Industries

by the Ministry of Manpower. Such significant reduction

in rates had been attributed to the successful execution

of the two safety programmes.

Subcontractor Safety Scheme

Jurong Shipyard launched two new initiatives – the

Safety Merit Point Programme and the Star Safety

Programme – in June 2005 to encourage greater

involvement by sub-contractor partners in maintaining

high safety standards during operations.

Safety Merit Point Programme & Star Safety Programme

The Safety Merit Point Programme rewarded sub-

contractor partners for achieving good safety

performance. Depending on the risk level of their work

and the number of employees, sub-contractor

companies who had successfully maintained zero injury

time would be awarded merit points. At the end of every

quarter, accumulated merit points would be converted

to cash rewards. In addition, sub-contractors that

remained incident-free over a continuous period of

time would be presented commendation certificates,

including the ‘Million Man-hour Gold Award’ for

1,000,000 man-hours without lost injury time. As

a counteractive measure, sub-contractor groups

that incurred lost-time injuries were required to

participate in the ‘STAR’ Safety programme. This

scheme would discourage further incidents from

occurring by supporting sub-contractors in the drive

towards zero incidents

‘I CARE’ Safety Campaign

A week-long ‘I Care’ safety campaign was organised in

May to enhance safety awareness in the Group’s effort

to achieve a zero-incident rate. The campaign aimed to

further encourage personnel to adopt a proactive

attitude towards safety by exercising CARE

(Commitment, Awareness, Recognition and Evaluation)

in preventing incidents at work. At the launch,

employees, subcontractors and customer partners

participated in a pledge-taking and signing ceremony

led by Jurong Shipyard’s senior management.
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Safety training

Safety tags on display for head count accountability when working on board vessel
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Safety Milestone for
P-54 conversion

Jurong Shipyard attained 3.5 million man-hours without

loss-time injuries for the Petrobras-54 floating

production-storage-offloading (FPSO) conversion project

in September 2005.  To mark this safety milestone, a

commendation plaque was presented to the shipyard

by the project team from Petrobras Netherlands BV in

October 2005.

Emergency Response

SembCorp Marine’s subsidiary shipyards conducted fire

and evacuation drills throughout the whole year on

board vessels as well as at workshops and offices. Such

exercises were aimed at familiarising both employees

and sub-contractors with the emergency preparedness

procedures. Some of the drills were also conducted at

different sites and covered varying scenarios to allow

wider coverage of participation from production workers

and higher emergency responsiveness.

Jurong Shipyard’s Safety and Fire Section held 32

fire and evacuation drills on board vessels and at

workshops and offices in both Pulau Samulun and

Tanjong Kling in order to fine tune its fire-fighting and

evacuation system. PPL Shipyard, which had in place a comprehensive fire-prevention procedure and support,

carried out three emergency evacuation drills during

the year, including two on-board Hulls No P2006 and

P2007. Sembawang Shipyard carried out a total of (x)

emergency exercises, including a joint exercise with the

Singapore Civil Defence Force on-board ERHA FPSO.

Safety Workshops

Safety workshops and campaigns continued to establish

best practices and accelerate improvement in standards

and regulations to reduce any incidents, injuries and

economic impact. Workshops held throughout the year

covered a range of safety topics in shipbuilding, ship-

repair, ship-conversion and rig-building operations.

Among the many workshops, Jurong Shipyard organised

a forum on 28 February that involved experts from the

Maritime & Port Authority

to share best practices on

hot-work and welding

operations. Personnel from

the Group’s shipyards also

participated in the ‘Falling

Hazards & Electrocution’

safety workshop held in July

2005. During the session,

participants discussed real-

life case studies and shared

effective approaches in

preventing the occurrence

of falling and electrocution

incidents.

Third Edition of
‘My HSE Diary’

Sembawang Shipyard

launched the third edition of ‘My HSE Diary’ on 26

October under its behavioural-based safety programme

launched in 2001. Since its first edition, the diary had

undergone several reviews and refinement; the latest

edition incorporating several new tools to assist

supervisors in performing their work more diligently

and safely. A new set of behavioural-based safety

posters were also unveiled with the launch of the diary’s

new edition.

Safety
Performance

Bond

Safety Briefing by
Sub-contractor Boss

Individual
Rehabilitation

Programme

Temporary
suspension from

Safety Merit
Points & Awards

Close
Monitoring

 by Yard
Safety

Annual Safety Performance
Awards 2005

During the Annual Safety Performance Awards

organised by the Ministry of Manpower Exhibition,

Jurong Shipyard was accorded four accolades for its

sound management system and good safety

performance when it bagged two Silver and two Merit

Awards. These awards were for projects with at least

100,000 accident free man-hours over a period of not

less than 60 consecutive days, without any fatal or

permanent disablement cases, no accident to any

employee with one or more days of medical certificate

and no industrial diseases.

Fire fighting training for employees and sub-contractors

Safety briefing

Top management commitments to safety

Silver

Baobab Ivoirien MV 10

Project: FPSO conversion

Accident free record: 2,541,874 man-hours

MODEC Venture 11 (Hull)

Project: FPSO conversion

Accident free record: 1,417,676 man-hours

Merit

Nan Hai Fa Xian

Project: FPSO upgrading

Accident free record: 764,777 man-hours

FMC SOFEC Internal

Disconnectable Turret

Project: Turret fabrication & installation

Number of Evacuation Drills
Shipyards held in 2005

Jurong Shipyard 43

Sembawang Shipyard 53

PPL Shipyard 3
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HEALTH, SAFETY, SECURITY & ENVIRONMENT

In the security arena, the SembCorp Marine Group

adopts a set of stringent framework and procedures to

comply with the IMO’s International Code for the Security

of Ships and Port Facilities within its group of shipyards.

International Code for the Security
of Ships and Port Facilities

Jurong Shipyard, Sembawang Shipyard and Jurong SML

met the IMO’s International Code for the Security of

Ships and Port Facilities in 2004. This certification which

would be liable for renewal every five years, maintained

that the certified shipyards would undergo the ISPS

Code Compliance Audit every 18 months.

In April 2005, the Maritime Port Authority graded Jurong

Shipyard for its above-average compliance during a

compliance audit.

Emergency and Evacuation Plan

A joint exercise with the Safety and Fire personnel was

conducted in April 2005, to allow employees and

subcontractors to familiarise themselves with the

Emergency and Evacuation Plan. During the exercise,

the local Police, Singapore Civil Defence Force and the

Maritime Port of Singapore Authority were invited as

observers.

Security Training and Development

In support of the Port Facility Security Plan, the Group

continued to develop and upgrade its security personnel

with necessary skills and knowledge.  Employees had

to undergo the National Skills Recognition System

course conducted by a recognised security organisation

assessed by POLWEL, Workforce Development Agency,

so as to expand their security knowledge and increase

job enhancement to carry out tasks efficiently.

Nationwide Recognition for the
Shipyard Security Watch Group

After its Silver win at the district level, the Shipyard

Security Watch Group initiative received nationwide

recognition during the National CSSP Awards

Ceremony organised by the Ministry of Home Affairs

and the People’s Association on 21 July. The Shipyard

Security Watch Group was initiated by Jurong Shipyard,

Jurong West NPC, and two other shipyards to conduct

joint patrols and evacuation exercises with police

personnel. As a proactive measure to safeguard yard

security and safety, the project had been fostering

closer cooperation and information sharing among the

yards and the Jurong West NPC.

Security check Emergency & evacuation drill

Briefing by SCDF

Shipyard Recognised Security Organisation Date of Award of Certification

Jurong SML Control Risk Group February 26, 2004

Jurong SML (Shipyard RD) Control Risk Group February 26, 2004

Sembawang Shipyard CISCO Singapore February 27, 2004

Jurong Shipyard CISCO Singapore March 12, 2004
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Green Wave Environmental
Care Project
Sembawang Shipyard’s annual Green Wave

Environmental Care Competition for schools continued

to attract enthusiastic student participation since its

launch in early 2003. The competition aimed to

inculcate awareness and motivate students to gain a

sense of personal responsibility for the environment

and to promote creative thinking for environmental

improvement.

This year drew 257 submitted entries compared to 121

entries in 2004. The number of participants had

also increased two-folds from 503 in 2004 to 1,012

students in 2005. The winners were announced in

December 2005 at an award ceremony officiated by Dr

Vivian Balakrishnan, Minister for Community

Development, Youth and Sports. Winners at the junior

college up to the tertiary institution levels would enjoy

month-long development attachments at sponsoring

companies, Sembawang Shipyard, Shell Trading and

BP Singapore.

In 2005, the Green Wave Advisory Board was formed

to guide the competition to another level of

development, including possible expansion beyond

Singapore to benefit youths and students of

neighbouring countries. The Board comprised

prominent members of society who shared the

commitment towards preserving and improving the

environment.

Copper Slag Recycling
Since the establishment of subsidiary JPL Industries,

the Group had continually collected and recycled used

copper slag throughout its Singapore yards to the extent

that it no longer posed an environmental hazard. Every

year, some 300,000 tonnes of copper slag would be

used for abrasive blasting in shipyards, resulting in the

copper slag grit being contaminated with rusts and

paints during the blasting process. The Group remained

committed in pioneering the recycling of copper slag,

which was long considered the biggest source of waste

generated from shipyards in Singapore.

Reaching out to
our student
population,
encouraging
them to develop
a keen interest in
environmental
care & protection
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Clean & Green Week Schools
Carnival 2005
As part of its environmental outreach programme, the

Group continued its support of the Clean & Green Week

initiative, organised by the National Environment Agency,

at schools. In 2005, the Group participated in the schools

carnival, which featured innovative environment-related

projects from the various schools, junior colleges and

institutes in addition to stage performances, games,

discovery activities and fashion shows. Selected winning

projects from the Green Wave Environmental Care

Competition were also showcased at the carnival. The

carnival was launched by Mr Yaacob Ibrahim, the

Minister for the Environment and Water Resources.

Energy Conservation & Clean Air
Sembawang Shipyard achieved its goal of phasing out

all ozone-depleting substances from its fire-fighting

systems in 2005 by using hydroflorocarbon-based

systems instead of the more destructive halon-based

fire extinguishers.

Waste Management Programme
Sembawang Shipyard achieved a cost recovery of almost

$3.8 mil l ion from its  Waste

Management Programme. It secured

a contract on the proper disposal of

waste wood at a cost savings of $40

per metric tonne and continued to

reduce, reuse and recycle all general

waste generated within the operations

Ant i -Dengue Fever
Campaign
During the year, the Group formed an

anti-dengue committee focused on

driving and coordinating dengue

prevention init iat ives at  the

workplace. Training sessions, in

collaboration with the Environment

Agency’s South West Regional

Office, were organised for employees

and management to learn about

mosquito breeding prevention.

Banners and flyers were also

distributed to reinforce the message.

An anti-dengue awareness day was further organised

for Jurong Shipyard’s 5,000 strong staff and

subcontractors, at its Jalan Samulun and Tanjong Kling

worksites. On that day, exhibits, multimedia shows,

entertaining games and quizzes were also conducted

to make the event a fun-filled one. These efforts –

coupled with regular audits, monitoring and effective

housekeeping regulations – have helped to keep the

dengue menace at bay.

Bird Flu Vigilance
As part of its pandemic influenza preparedness plans,

the Group undertook a comprehensive prevention

and control plan that could be put to immediate

implementation. These measures were organised to

inform and educate employees to help prevent the

spread of the influenza, to guard against the import of

the influenza through foreign workers and to prevent

its outbreak at the workplace. Finally, measures were

also considered on isolating, ring-fencing and containing

the infection in the event of such outbreak at the

workplace.

Hydro-jet blasting, an environmentally
friendly blasting & cleaning option



A rousing evening of revelry

and celebration marked the

successful  marine hull

conversion completion of the

Petrobras P-54 FPSO in

December 2005. Jurong

Shipyard had been working

in close partnership with

Petrobras since 1997 when it

first converted the P-37 FPSO.

This was followed by P-38

FSO conversion, P-40 FPU

conversion, P-43 FPSO

conversion, P-50 FPSO

conversion and currently the

P-54 FPSO conversion.

The bonds of friendship,

which were painstakingly

built up over the years, had

resulted in the forging of a stronger commitment.  That evening, key officials from Brazil, including the Brazilian

Ambassador to Singapore, Mr Joao Gualberto Marques-Porto joined senior officials from Petrobras and Jurong

Shipyard to celebrate. Praising Jurong Shipyard for its high standards of quality and commitment to safety, Petrobras’

Director, Mr Renato Duque acknowledged the great achievements in jointly managing and executing the project.

He added that achieving 5 million manhours without loss-time was an achievement and testimony to the yard’s

commitment to safety, environmental and health issues.

Partnership from P-37 to P-54

THE WAY AHEAD ...

Ship conversion: Completion of
World’s Largest FPSO

Sembawang Shipyard and SMOE recorded a milestone achievement in offshore conversion with the successful

completion of the world’s largest floating production-storage-offloading (FPSO) vessel, Erha FPSO for Saipem

S.A. The sail-away ceremony was held in Sembawang Shipyard in September 2005.

The Erha FPSO project team also achieved Sembawang Shipyard’s best safety

record for FPSO projects, with more than 10 million man-hours worked

without any loss-time injury. The contract called for the fabrication,

integration, pre-commissioning and commissioning assistance

of 11 modules of FPSO topside facilities

weighing 14,500 metric tonnes and

the integration of 15 modules

fabricated by others in Nigeria and

Malaysia. The total integrated

weight was approximately 30,000 metric tonnes and the

flare structure towers at 115 meters high. Designed for

the separation of oil, gas and water, Erha FPSO had a

storage capacity of 2.2 million barrels of oil and

accommodation space for up to 100 personnel.

The vessel hull, which was constructed in Korea,

measured 285 meters in length, 63 meters

in width and 33 meters in depth.

The Erha FPSO would begin operations in the first

half of 2006 at the Erha Field in offshore Nigeria.

The unit would be operated by Esso Exploration and

Production Nigeria Limited, an affiliate of ExxonMobil

Corporation.
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Petrobras 37

Petrobras 40

Petrobras 54

Petrobras 50

Petrobras 38 Petrobras 43

FPSO solutions



The LNG K Freesia from the KSS Line would be

remembered as the first LNG carrier to be repaired

outside South Korea. From this milestone achievement,

Sembawang Shipyard scored further successes by

repairing a total of 10 LNG carriers during the year –

the highest number of LNG carriers to be repaired in

LNG Repairs:
   First LNG Repair Outside South Korea

LNG CarriersLNG Carriers Clients

Northwest Seaeagle

Northwest Sandpiper Northwest Shelf Shipping, Australia

Northwest Snipe

LNG Jamal NYK Line, Japan

K Freesia KSS Line, South Korea

Galea
Shelf International Trading and

Gallina
Shipping Company Ltd, UK

Galeomma

Hanjin Ras Laffan
Hanjin Shipping South Korea

Hanjin Pyeong Taek

one year. These significant accomplishments would

pave the way for Singapore and the SembCorp Marine

Group to be a major global player in the niche LNG

sector, ready to take on an increasing number of LNG

projects in the future.

1
2
3

1
2
2

Brazil-Singapore
Collaboration in P-50
In November 2005, Maua Jurong in Brazil witnessed the

milestone naming of Petrobras P-50 FPSO platform, a

project that involved the SembCorp Marine Group’s

integrated yard capabilities in Singapore and Brazil.

Bearing testimony to this landmark event were Brazil’s

President Mr Luiz Inacio Lula de Silva, Energy Minister

Mr Silas Rondeau and Petrobras’ President Mr Jose

Sergio Gabrielli. Brazil’s President affirmed the strong

Brazil-Singapore ties behind the collaboration and

explained the importance of the P-50 to Brazil’s national

goal of being a net oil producer. Agreeing on its

significance, Petrobras’ President added that the P-50

would guarantee Brazil’s self-sufficiency in oil further

advancing the Brazilian economy’s targets of sustained

growth and job creation.

Converted from the 280,000 dwt VLCC Felipe Camarao,

the P-50 arrived at Maua Jurong in Brazil for topsides

production modules installation, integration and

commissioning in September 2004 after a successful

marine hull conversion in Jurong Shipyard in Singapore.

With a production capacity of 180,000 barrels of oil per

day, the P-50 would be Petrobras’ highest producing

FPSO platform. Scheduled for delivery by Maua Jurong

in the first quarter of 2006, the 337m x 54.5m x 27.8m

FPSO would be bound for the Albacora Leste field in

the Campos Basin, Brazil.

July 2005 would go down in Singapore’s history of

shipbuilding as an engineering feat from a home-grown

team. That month, Wan Hai 311 was christened at Jurong

Shipyard by Lady Sponsor Madam Cai Jingying, wife of

Mr Hu Hanxiang, President of the Association for

Shipping across the Straits.

Wan Hai 311 was the first of six 2,646 TEU container

vessels to be constructed for Wan Hai Lines based on

a design developed in-house by Jurong Shipyard’s

engineering team. Measuring 213m x 32.2m x 16.5m,

the container vessel was built with a high service speed

of 23 knots and a high homogeneous container intake

of more than 1960 TEU at 14 tonnes per TEU. It had the

ability to load two tiers of high-cube containers in hold

and accommodate up to 2,646 TEU, including 1,688 TEU

on deck and 958 TEU in hold.  Additional features

included a lashing bridge and an increase in container

carrying capacity.

Engineering Breakthrough in
Singapore’s Shipbuilding

Successful
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Launch of “Ahead
Of Its Time”
Chevron Shipping – Jurong
Shipyard Alliance
Commemorative Book

A Fruitful Alliance Captured in Print

To celebrate more than 15 years of close alliance,

Chevron Shipping and Jurong Shipyard jointly launched

a commemorative coffee table book entitled ‘Ahead of

Its Times’ in September 2005. Established in 1989,

based on common objectives and a shared commitment

towards continuous excellence, the alliance had since

set the benchmark for the local marine industry.

Honouring all who contributed to the success of the

partnership, the book captured the pioneering spirit

from both companies in daring to create an exclusive

long-term contract that was unheard of 15 years ago.

Both companies reaffirmed the vision and the close

partnership continually and hoped to build upon its

present success by improving quality, safety and

environmental standards over the long-term.
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THE WAY AHEAD ...

Chevron-Jurong Shipyard Alliance

To bring the Chevron-Jurong Shipyard

alliance into the next phase of

progress, key personnel from Chevron

Shipping and Jurong Shipyard came

together to map out plans for future

growths. The two-day alliance

meeting held on 26 to 27 July enabled

key members from both companies

to share insights on strategies for

continuous improvement and capacity

expansion as the yard progressed into

the niche area of LNG and LPG repairs.



institutions via a comprehensive technology roadmap

across key rig components design, analysis and

enhancements.  The most recent of this is the Joint Maritime

Port Authority – TRI R&D Programme between the Authority,

the Institute of High Performance Computing and PPL

Shipyard to provide design analysis and improvement

projects toward new generation jack-up systems.

PPL Shipyard’s rigs are unique in that it is a completely in-

house developed proprietary product, not adapted from

other older designs.  The design of this rig incorporates

efficient construction methodology interfaced for

optimum construction methodology from the start. This

enables PPL Shipyard to be configured as an efficient

“manufacturing plant” to generate rigs with consistency

across all construction processes and quality, enabling

unparalleled efficiency in the use of limited land area.

Many facilities in the shipyard have also been customised

to cater to the rig-construction process generating

time and cost savings.  This approach is replicated across

the other shipyards in the Group to deliver optimal

construction output.
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THE WAY AHEAD ...

PPL Shipyard has an impressive track record in the

development of proprietary jack-up rigs via a wholly

owned subsidiary, Baker Marine based in Houston,

Texas.  Serving as the in-house design centre of

excellence with a track record of having designed 57

rigs now operating worldwide, Baker has always

incorporated leading edge evolutions in its rig

designs. From the BMC Big foot to the High

Specification BMC375 Pacific Class jack-up rig, Baker

has an impressive portfolio of proven jack-up designs

in operation in many of today’s fields. The flagship

jack up rig, the BMC375 Pacific Class, has had 13

units secured so far.

PPL Shipyard’s research and development thrust is

geared towards the evolution of the next-generation

rig. Working closely with rig operators, classification

societies and major clients, the Baker Rig has always

been at the forefront of delivering high specifications

rigs to meet a diverse range of operational

requirements. PPL Shipyard is also committed to

driving and funding many research and development

projects in collaboration with local research

Research

on Rig Technology
& Development
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The Directors present their report to the members together with the audited financial statements of the Company and of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2005.

Directors of the Company
The names of the Directors of the Company in office at the date of this report are:

Goh Geok Ling Chairman (Appointed on 14 February 2006)
Tan Kwi Kin Group President and CEO
Tan Pheng Hock
Kiyotaka Matsuzawa
Tan Tew Han
Ajaib Haridass
Haruo Kubota
Tang Kin Fei (Appointed on 1 May 2005)

Arrangements to enable Directors to acquire shares and debentures
Other than the SembCorp Marine Share Plans, neither at the end of the financial year, nor at any time during the financial year
was the Company a party to any arrangement whose object is to enable the Directors of the Company to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares or debentures of the Company or any other body corporate.

Directors’ interests in shares, share options and debentures
The following Directors who held office at the end of the financial year had, according to the register required to be kept under
Section 164 of the Companies Act, an interest in shares or debentures of the ultimate holding company, Temasek Holdings
(Private) Limited or any other related corporations as stated below:

Name of Director Other shareholdings
and Corporation in Description of Exercise Shareholdings registered in in which the Director is
which interest held interests period the name of Director  deemed to have an interest

At beginning At end At beginning At end
of the year of the year of the year of the year

Lua Cheng Eng @ #

SembCorp Marine Options to subscribe
Ltd for ordinary shares

of $0.10 each

- at $0.66 per share 28/9/2002 32,500 32,500 - -
to

27/9/2006

- at $0.90 per share 8/11/2003 65,000 65,000 - -
to

7/11/2007

- at $0.99 per share 9/8/2004 130,000 130,000 - -
to

8/8/2008

- at $1.04 per share 11/8/2005 130,000 130,000 - -
to

10/8/2009

- at $2.96 per share 12/8/2006 - 140,000 - -
to

11/8/2010

Directors
Goh Geok Ling Chairman (Appointed on 14 February 2006)
Lua Cheng Eng Chairman (Appointed on 22 March 2005, vacated office on 14 February 2006)
Tan Kwi Kin Group President and CEO
Tan Pheng Hock
Kiyotaka Matsuzawa
Tan Tew Han
Ajaib Haridass
Haruo Kubota
Tang Kin Fei (Appointed on 1 May 2005)
Low Sin Leng (Resigned on 21 April 2005)
Heng Chiang Gnee (Alternate to Tan Kwi Kin, ceased on 15 August 2005)

Secretary
Kwong Sook May

Registrar
Kon Choon Kooi Pte Ltd
47 Hill Street #06-02
Chinese Chamber of Commerce & Industry Building
Singapore 179365

Registered Office
29 Tanjong Kling Road
Singapore 628054

Auditors
Ernst & Young
Audit Partner
Daniel Soh (with effect from 2003)
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Name of Director Other shareholdings
and Corporation in Description of Exercise Shareholdings registered in in which the Director is
which interest held interests period the name of Director  deemed to have an interest

At beginning At end At beginning At end
of the year of the year of the year of the year

Tan Kwi Kin
SembCorp Ordinary shares of - 1,118,000 2,787,200 - -
Marine Ltd $0.10 each

Options to subscribe
for ordinary shares
of $0.10 each

- at $0.70 per share 8/9/2001 750,000 - - -
to

7/9/2010

- at $0.66 per share 28/9/2002 800,000 200,000 - -
to

27/9/2011

- at $0.90 per share 8/11/2003 800,000 800,000 - -
to

7/11/2012

- at $0.99 per share 9/8/2004 800,000 800,000 - -
to

8/8/2013

- at $1.04 per share 11/8/2005 700,000 700,000 - -
to

10/8/2014

- at $2.96 per share 12/8/2006 - 700,000 - -
to

11/8/2015

Conditional award of - 0 to 760,000 - - -
380,000 performance
shares to be delivered
after 2004 (Note 1a)

Conditional award of - 0 to 760,000 0 to 760,000 - -
380,000 performance
shares to be delivered
after 2005 (Note 1b)

Conditional award of - 0 to 760,000 0 to 760,000 - -
380,000 performance
shares to be delivered
after 2006 (Note 1c)

Conditional award of - - 0 to 450,000 - -
300,000 performance
shares to be delivered
after 2007 (Note 2)

Name of Director Other shareholdings
and Corporation in Description of Exercise Shareholdings registered in in which the Director is
which interest held interests period the name of Director  deemed to have an interest

At beginning At end At beginning At end
of the year of the year of the year of the year

Lua Cheng Eng @ #

SembCorp Ordinary shares of - - 70,000 - -
Industries Ltd $0.25 each

Options to subscribe
for ordinary shares
of $0.25 each

- at $1.94 per share 27/6/2001 70,000 - - -
to

26/6/2005

- at $1.50 per share 20/4/2002 140,000 140,000 - -
to

19/4/2006

- at $1.54 per share 8/5/2003 70,000 70,000 - -
to

7/5/2007

- at $0.93 per share 18/10/2003 70,000 70,000 - -
to

17/10/2007

- at $1.09 per share 3/6/2004 70,000 70,000 - -
to

2/6/2008

- at $1.24 per share 19/11/2004 70,000 70,000 - -
to

18/11/2008

- at $1.30 per share 18/5/2005 70,000 70,000 - -
to

17/5/2009

- at $1.47 per share 23/11/2005 70,000 70,000 - -
to

22/11/2009

- at $2.68 per share 2/7/2006 - 70,000 - -
to

1/7/2010

- at $2.67 per share 22/11/2006 - 70,000 - -
to

21/11/2010

Neptune Orient Ordinary shares of - 100,000 100,000 - -
Lines Limited $1.00 each

1
3
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Name of Director Other shareholdings
and Corporation in Description of Exercise Shareholdings registered in in which the Director is
which interest held interests period the name of Director  deemed to have an interest

At beginning At end At beginning At end
of the year of the year of the year of the year

Tan Kwi Kin
Singapore Tele- Ordinary shares of - 190 190 190 190
communications $0.15 each
Ltd

StarHub Ltd Ordinary shares of - 10,000 10,000 - -
$0.40 each

Tan Pheng Hock
SembCorp Options to subscribe
Marine Ltd for ordinary shares

of $0.10 each

-at $0.66 per share 28/9/2002 20,000 20,000 - -
to

27/9/2006

-at $0.90 per share 8/11/2003 40,000 40,000 - -
to

7/11/2007

- at $0.99 per share 9/8/2004 50,000 50,000 - -
to

8/8/2008

- at $1.04 per share 11/8/2005 50,000 50,000 - -
to

10/8/2009

- at $2.96 per share 12/8/2006 - 35,000 - -
to

11/8/2010

Singapore Ordinary shares of - 73,864 85,864 - -
Technologies $0.10 each
Engineering Ltd

Options to subscribe
for ordinary shares
of $0.10 each

- at $1.29 per share 8/8/2000 5,000 5,000 - -
to

7/8/2008

- at $1.418 per share 10/2/2001 400,000 400,000 - -
to

9/2/2009

- at $2.00 per share 11/8/2001 5,000 5,000 - -
to

10/8/2009

Name of Director Other shareholdings
and Corporation in Description of Exercise Shareholdings registered in in which the Director is
which interest held interests period the name of Director  deemed to have an interest

At beginning At end At beginning At end
of the year of the year of the year of the year

Tan Kwi Kin
SembCorp Ordinary shares of - 6,250 5,875 - -
Industries Ltd $0.25 each

Options to subscribe
for ordinary shares of
$0.25 each

- at $1.94 per share 27/6/2001 25,000 25,000 - -
to

26/6/2010

- at $1.50 per share 20/4/2002 25,000 25,000 - -
to

19/4/2011

- at $1.54 per share 8/5/2003 12,500 12,500 - -
to

7/5/2012

- at $0.93 per share 18/10/2003 6,250 6,250 - -
to

17/10/2012

- at $1.09 per share 3/6/2004 12,500 12,500 - -
to

2/6/2013

- at $1.24 per share 19/11/2004 12,500 12,500 - -
to

18/11/2013

- at $1.30 per share 18/5/2005 12,500 12,500 - -
to

17/5/2014

- at $1.47 per share 23/11/2005 12,500 12,500 - -
to

22/11/2014

- at $2.68 per share 2/7/2006 - 12,500 - -
to

1/7/2015

- at $2.67 per share 22/11/2006 - 12,500 - -
to

21/11/2015

Singapore Food Ordinary shares of - 18,000 18,000 - -
Industries Limited $0.05 each

Singapore Ordinary shares of - 17,180 17,180 - -
Technologies $0.10 each
Engineering Ltd

1
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Name of Director Other shareholdings
and Corporation in Description of Exercise Shareholdings registered in in which the Director is
which interest held interests period the name of Director  deemed to have an interest

At beginning At end At beginning At end
of the year of the year of the year of the year

Tan Pheng Hock
Singapore Conditional award of - 0 to 500,000 0 to 500,000 - -
Technologies 250,000 performance
Engineering Ltd shares to be delivered

after 2006 (Note 1c)
Conditional award of - - 0 to 375,000 - -
250,000 performance
shares to be delivered
after 2007 (Note 2)

Vertex Technology Ordinary shares of - - - 5 units 5 units
Fund (II) Ltd US$1.00 each

Singapore Tele- Ordinary shares of - 1,880 1,880 1,620 1,620
communications $0.15 each
Ltd

Chartered Ordinary shares of - 7,000 7,000 - -
Semiconductor $0.26 each
Manufacturing Ltd

StarHub Ltd Ordinary shares of - 32,000 32,000 - -
$0.40 each

Telechoice Ordinary shares of - 30,000 30,000 - -
International $0.02 each
Limited

Kiyotaka Matsuzawa
SembCorp Options to subscribe
Marine Ltd for ordinary shares of

$0.10 each

- at $0.90 per share 8/11/2003 100,000 100,000 - -
to

7/11/2007

- at $0.99 per share 9/8/2004 130,000 130,000 - -
to

8/8/2008

- at $1.04 per share 11/8/2005 100,000 100,000 - -
to

10/8/2009

- at $2.96 per share 12/8/2006 - 35,000 - -
to

11/8/2010

Name of Director Other shareholdings
and Corporation in Description of Exercise Shareholdings registered in in which the Director is
which interest held interests period the name of Director  deemed to have an interest

At beginning At end At beginning At end
of the year of the year of the year of the year

Tan Pheng Hock

Singapore - at $2.26 per share 10/2/2002 400,000 400,000 - -
Technologies to
Engineering Ltd 9/2/2010

- at $2.72 per share 20/2/2002 225,000 225,000 - -
to

19/2/2011

- at $2.68 per share 11/8/2002 227,500 227,500 - -
to

10/8/2011

- at $2.29 per share 8/2/2003 175,000 175,000 - -
to

7/2/2012

- at $1.92 per share 13/8/2003 175,000 175,000 - -
to

12/8/2012

- at $1.79 per share 7/2/2004 200,000 200,000 - -
to

6/2/2013

- at $1.86 per share 12/8/2004 200,000 200,000 - -
to

11/8/2013

- at $2.09 per share 10/2/2005 200,000 200,000 - -
to

9/2/2014

- at $2.12 per share 11/8/2005 200,000 200,000 - -
to

10/8/2014

- at $2.37 per share 8/2/2006 - 200,000 - -
to

7/2/2015

- at $2.57 per share 11/8/2006 - 200,000 - -
to

10/8/2015

Conditional award of - 0 to 400,000 - - -

200,000 performance
shares to be delivered
after 2004 (Note 1a)

Conditional award of - 0 to 500,000 0 to 500,000 - -
250,000 performance
shares to be delivered
after 2005 (Note 1b)

1
3
6



1
3
9

Name of Director Other shareholdings
and Corporation in Description of Exercise Shareholdings registered in in which the Director is
which interest held interests period the name of Director  deemed to have an interest

At beginning At end At beginning At end
of the year of the year of the year of the year

Ajaib Haridass
SembCorp Ordinary shares of - - 32,500 - -
Marine Ltd $0.10 each

Options to subscribe
for ordinary shares of
$0.10 each

- at $1.04 per share 11/8/2005 130,000 97,500 - -
to

10/8/2009

- at $2.96 per share 12/8/2006 - 100,000 - -
to

11/8/2010

SembCorp Ordinary shares of - 50,000 47,000 - -
Industries Ltd $0.25 each

Chartered Ordinary shares of - 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000
Semiconductor $0.26 each
Manufacturing Ltd

Singapore Tele- Ordinary shares of - 190 190 190 190
communications $0.15 each
Ltd

Haruo Kubota
SembCorp Ordinary shares of - - 7,500 - -
Marine Ltd $0.10 each

Options to subscribe
ordinary shares of
$0.10 each

- at $1.04 per share 11/8/2005 30,000 22,500 - -
to

10/8/2009

- at $2.96 per share 12/8/2006 - 60,000 - -
to

11/8/2010

Name of Director Other shareholdings
and Corporation in Description of Exercise Shareholdings registered in in which the Director is
which interest held interests period the name of Director  deemed to have an interest

At beginning At end At beginning At end
of the year of the year of the year of the year

Tan Tew Han
SembCorp Ordinary shares of - - 18,000 - -
Marine Ltd $0.10 each

Options to subscribe
for ordinary shares of
$0.10 each

- at $0.99 per share 9/8/2004 75,000 57,000 - -
to

8/8/2008

- at $1.04 per share 11/8/2005 150,000 150,000 - -
to

10/8/2009

- at $2.96 per share 12/8/2006 - 140,000 - -
to

11/8/2010

Singapore Ordinary shares of - - - 4,000 4,000
Technologies $0.10 each
Engineering Ltd

Chartered Ordinary shares of - 13,000 13,000 7,000 7,000
Semiconductor $0.26 each
Manufacturing Ltd

StarHub Ltd Ordinary shares of - - - - 3,000
$0.40 each

Singapore Airlines Ordinary shares of - 17,000 17,000 3,000 3,000
Ltd $0.50 each

Singapore Tele- Ordinary shares of - 2,400 2,400 3,300 3,300
communications $0.15 each
Ltd

Singapore Airport Ordinary shares of - - - 1,000 1,000
Terminal Services $0.10 each
Ltd

SMRT Corporation Ordinary shares of - 25,000 25,000 34,000 34,000
Ltd $0.10 each

Neptune Orient Ordinary shares of - 2,468 36,468 - 22,000
Lines Limited $1.00 each
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Name of Director Other shareholdings
and Corporation in Description of Exercise Shareholdings registered in in which the Director is
which interest held interests period the name of Director  deemed to have an interest

At beginning At end At beginning At end
of the year of the year of the year of the year

Tang Kin Fei #

SembCorp - at $2.68 per share 2/7/2006 - 300,000 - -
Industries Ltd to

1/7/2015

- at $2.67 per share 22/11/2006 - 300,000 - -
to

21/11/2015

Conditional award of - 0 to 200,000 0 to 200,000 - -
100,000 performance
shares to be delivered
after 2005 (Note 1b)

Conditional award of - 0 to 400,000 0 to 400,000 - -
200,000 performance
shares to be delivered
after 2006 (Note 1c)

Conditional award of - - 0 to 600,000 - -
400,000 performance
shares to be delivered
after 2007 (Note 2)

SembCorp Options to subscribe
Logistics Ltd for ordinary shares of

$0.25 each

- at $1.71 per share 16/5/2006 - 50,000 - -
to

15/5/2010

Singapore Food Ordinary shares of - 18,000 18,000 - -
Industries Limited $0.05 each

Singapore Tele- Ordinary shares of - 1,750 1,750 1,620 1,620
communications $0.15 each
Ltd

# At date of appointment of Director.

@ Mr Lua Cheng Eng vacated his office of Chairman and Director of the Company’s Board with effect from 14 February 2006. His outstanding options became
immediately vested and exercisable within 18 months from that date.

Name of Director Other shareholdings
and Corporation in Description of Exercise Shareholdings registered in in which the Director is
which interest held interests period the name of Director  deemed to have an interest

At beginning At end At beginning At end
of the year of the year of the year of the year

Tang Kin Fei #

SembCorp Options to subscribe
Marine Ltd or ordinary shares of

$0.10 each

- at $2.96 per share 12/8/2006 - 20,000 - -
to

11/8/2010

SembCorp Ordinary shares of - 732,293 688,355 - -
Industries Ltd $0.25 each

Options to subscribe
for ordinary shares of
$0.25 each

- at $2.21 per share 20/5/2001 150,000 150,000 - -
to

19/5/2009

- at $1.94 per share 27/6/2001 260,000 260,000 - -
to

26/6/2010

- at $1.50 per share 20/4/2002 300,000 75,000 - -
to

19/4/2011

- at $1.54 per share 8/5/2003 175,000 87,500 - -
to

7/5/2012

- at $0.93 per share 18/10/2003 87,500 87,500 - -
to

17/10/2012

- at $1.09 per share 3/6/2004 150,000 150,000 - -
to

2/6/2013

- at $1.24 per share 19/11/2004 200,000 150,000 - -
to

18/11/2013

- at $1.30 per share 18/5/2005 200,000 200,000 - -
to

17/5/2014

- at $1.47 per share 23/11/2005 200,000 200,000 - -
to

22/11/2014
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The Share Option Plan provides the Company with means whereby non-executive directors and employees of the Group, and
certain categories of persons who can make significant contributions through their close working relationship with the Group,
such as non-executive directors and employees of the Company’s Parent Group and non-executive directors and employees
of the Company’s associates, are given an opportunity to participate in the equity of the Company.

Under the rules of the Share Option Plan, participants who ceased to be employed by the Group, Parent Group or Associated
Company by reason of ill health, injury or disability, redundancy, retirement at or after the legal retirement age, retirement
before the legal retirement age, death, etc, or any other event approved by the Committee, may be allowed by the Committee
to retain their unexercised Options. The Committee may determine the number of Shares comprised in that Option which may
be exercised and the period during which such Option shall be exercisable, being a period not later than the expiry of the
Exercise Period in respect of that Option. Such Option may be exercised at any time notwithstanding that the date of exercise
of such Option falls on a date prior to the first day of the Exercise Period in respect of such Option.

The Company designates SembCorp Industries Limited as the Parent Group.

The Performance Share Plan and Restricted Stock Plan award fully-paid shares to participants to achieve pre-determined
targets that create and enhance economic values for shareholders of the Company, or to accomplish time-based service
conditions. Awards will be released to participants as fully-paid shares, or their equivalent cash value or combinations thereof,
free-of-charge provided that the conditions of the awards are achieved and subject to approval by the Committee.

Awards granted under the Performance Share Plan are released at the end of the performance period only when the pre-
determined targets have been achieved. Awards granted under the Restricted Stock Plan vest only after the satisfactory
completion of time-based service conditions, or where the award is performance related, after a further period of service
beyond the performance target completion date. No minimum vesting period is prescribed under the Restricted Stock Plan
and the length of the vesting period in respect of each award will be determined on a case-by-case basis. Performance-based
restricted awards differ from awards granted under the Performance Plan in that an extended vesting period is imposed
beyond the performance target completion date.

The Share Plans are intended to attract, retain and incentivise participants to higher standards of performance and encourage
greater dedication and loyalty by enabling the Company to give recognition to past contributions and services; as well as
motivating participants to contribute to the long-term prosperity of the Group.

Other information regarding the Share Option Plan is as follows:
(i) The exercise price of the options can be set at a discount to the market price not exceeding 20% of the market price

in respect of options granted at the time of grant.

(ii) The options can be exercised 12 months after the grant for market price options and 24 months for discounted
options. For employee retention purpose, the Group further imposed a vesting condition, in which the options are
vested equally over a four-year period, commencing from the first anniversary of the date of grant.

(iii) The options granted expire after 5 years for non-executive directors, associates employees and 10 years for the
employees of Group and Parent Group.

Note 1: The actual number delivered will depend on the achievement of set targets over a 3 year period as indicated below. Achievement of target below 80%
level will mean no performance shares will be delivered, while achievement up to 200% will mean up to 2 times the number of conditional performance
shares awarded could be delivered.

(a) Period from 2002 to 2004 Δ

(b) Period from 2003 to 2005
(c) Period from 2004 to 2006

Δ For this period, 319,200 new SembCorp Marine shares were awarded to Tan Kwi Kin and the balance of the conditional awards has thus lapsed.

Δ For this period, 12,000 new Singapore Technologies Engineering shares were awarded to Tan Pheng Hock and the balance of the conditional
awards has thus lapsed.

Note 2: The actual number delivered will depend on the achievement of set targets over a 3-year period from 2005 to 2007. Achievement of targets below
targets level will mean no performance shares will be delivered, while achievement up to 150% will mean up to 1.5 times the number of conditional
performance shares awarded could be delivered.

Except as disclosed in this report, no director who held office at the end of the financial year had interests in shares, debentures,
warrants or share options of the Company, or of related corporations, either at the beginning of the financial year, or date of
appointment, if later, or at the end of the financial year.

There were no changes in the Directors’ interests in the Company between the end of the financial year and 21 January 2006.

Directors’ contractual benefits
Except as disclosed in Note 4 to the financial statements on the payment of professional fees to a firm in which Mr Ajaib
Haridass, a Director of the Company, is a member, since the end of the previous financial year, no Director of the Company has
received or become entitled to receive a benefit by reason of a contract made by the Company or a related corporation with
the Director, or with a firm of which the Director is a member, or with a company in which the Director has a substantial financial
interest.

Share-based Incentive Plans
The Company’s Share Option Plan, Performance Share Plan and Restricted Stock Plan (collectively, the “Share Plans”) were
approved and adopted by the shareholders at an Extraordinary General Meeting of the Company held on 31 May 2000.

The Executive Resource and Compensation Committee (the “Committee”) of the Company has been designated as the
Committee responsible for the administration of the Share Plans. The Committee comprises the following members, all of
whom are directors:
Lua Cheng Eng Chairman (Appointed on 27 April 2005, vacated office on 14 February 2006)
Goh Geok Ling Chairman (Appointed on 14 February 2006)
Tan Tew Han
Ajaib Haridass
Tang Kin Fei (Appointed on 1 May 2005)

The Share Option Plan is the incentive scheme for directors and employees of the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”)
whereas the Performance Share Plan and Restricted Stock Plan are aimed primarily at key executives of the Group.

Directors’ interests in shares, share options and debentures (cont’d)
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Since the commencement of the Share Option Plan, no options have been granted to the controlling shareholders of the
Company or their associates. No participant under the Share Option Plan has been granted 5% or more of the total options
available. No options have been offered at a discount.

The options granted by the Company do not entitle the holders of the options, by virtue of such holdings, to any right to
participate in any share issue of any other company.

SembCorp Marine Performance Share Plan

Under the Performance Share Plan, the awards granted conditional on performance targets are set based on medium-term
corporate objectives at the start of each rolling three-year performance qualifying period. A specific number of performance
shares shall be awarded at the end of the 3 year performance cycle depending on the extent of the achievement of the
performance conditions established at the onset.

In 2005, the Committee, with advice and assistance from an independent compensation consultant, redesigned its approach
to the share-based incentive awards, with particular focus on establishing new standards for share-based incentive grants.
The redesigned share-based incentive grants took into account evolving practices at other major public-listed companies, as
well as the Company’s objective of further enhancing linkages between employee performance and long term shareholder
value creation objectives. The redesign was completed and implemented in 2005.

For awards granted before 2005, recipients who do not achieve at least 80% of the targets set at the end of the performance
period will not be granted the performance shares. If the achievement of the targets exceeds 100%, more performance shares
than the original award could be delivered up to a maximum of 200% of the original award.

In the 2005 performance share award, the performance criteria was changed and performance levels re-calibrated based on
the new measures, namely Wealth Added and Total Shareholders’ Return. For each performance measure, three distinct
performance levels are set. A minimum of threshold performance must be achieved to trigger an Achievement Factor, which
in turn determines the number of shares to be finally awarded.

Based on the new criteria, performance shares to be delivered for awards granted in 2005 will range between 0% to 150% of
the original award.

Participants are also required to hold a minimum percentage of the shares released to them under the Performance Share
Plan to maintain a beneficial ownership stake in the Group, for the duration of their employment or tenure with the Group. A
maximum cap is set based on a multiple of the individual participant’s Annual Base Salary. Any excess can be sold off, but in
the event of a short fall, they have a two calendar year period to meet the minimum percentage requirement.

During the year, a total of 487,200 performance shares were released by the Committee to the participants for the performance
period 2002 to 2004.
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Share-based Incentive Plans (cont’d)

At the end of the financial year, details of the options granted under the Option Plan on unissued shares of $0.10 each of the
Company are as follows:

SembCorp Marine Ltd
Ordinary shares of $0.10 each

2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005
Options Options Options Options Options Options

Date options granted 8 Sep 2000 27 Sep 2001 7 Nov 2002 8 Aug 2003 10 Aug 2004 11 Aug 2005

Option exercise period:

From 8 Sep 2001 28 Sep 2002 8 Nov 2003 9 Aug 2004 11 Aug 2005 12 Aug 2006

To 7 Sep 2010 27 Sep 2011 7 Nov 2012 8 Aug 2013 10 Aug 2014 11 Aug 2015

Number of holders at 68 453 939 959 1,091 1,177
31 December 2005

Exercise price per option $0.70 $0.66 $0.90 $0.99 $1.04 $2.96

‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000

Number of options outstanding:

At 1 January 2005 5,431 7,552 13,185 14,601 15,984 -

Options exercised (4,839) (5,242) (5,577) (4,761) (2,331) -

Options granted - - - - - 15,557

Options cancelled (50) (58) (178) (261) (425) (176)

At 31 December 2005 542 2,252 7,430 9,579 13,228 15,381

The details of options of the Company granted during the year and granted/exercised since commencement of the Scheme
to 31 December 2005 were as follows:

Options Aggregate Aggregate options Aggregate Aggregate
granted during options cancelled/lapsed/ options options

Option participants the year granted not accepted  exercised outstanding

Directors of the Company
Lua Cheng Eng @ 140,000 140,000 - - 140,000
Tan Kwi Kin 700,000 5,600,000 - (2,400,000) 3,200,000
Tan Pheng Hock 35,000 195,000 - - 195,000
Kiyotaka Matsuzawa 35,000 365,000 - - 365,000
Tan Tew Han 140,000 365,000 - (18,000) 347,000
Ajaib Haridass 100,000 230,000 - (32,500) 197,500
Haruo Kubota 60,000 90,000 - (7,500) 82,500
Tang Kin Fei 20,000 20,000 - - 20,000

Former directors of the Company 200,000 5,820,000 - (3,620,000) 2,200,000

Other executives
Group 13,987,000 97,291,300 (8,068,890) (48,578,985) 40,643,425
Non-executive director and 140,000 1,693,000 (129,500) (541,750) 1,021,750
   executives of Parent Group

15,557,000 111,809,300 (8,198,390) (55,198,735) 48,412,175

@ Amount excluded aggregate option granted of 520,000 and aggregate options outstanding of 357,500 granted to Mr Lua Cheng Eng in his capacity as non-
executive director of Parent Group. Mr Lua Cheng Eng vacated his office of Chairman and Director of the Company’s Board with effect from 14 February 2006. His
outstanding options became immediately vested and exercisable within 18 months from that date.
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The Audit Committee performs the functions specified in Section 201B of the Companies Act, the Listing Manual of the
Singapore Exchange, and the Code of Corporate Governance.

The Audit Committee also reviewed the following:
• assistance provided by the Company’s officers to the internal and external auditors;
• financial statements of the Group and the Company prior to their submission to the directors of the Company for adoption;

and
• interested person transactions (as defined in Chapter 9 of the Listing Manual of the Singapore Exchange).

The Audit Committee has full access to management and is given the resources required for it to discharge its functions. It has
full authority and the discretion to invite any director or executive officer to attend its meetings. The Audit Committee also
recommends the appointment of the external auditors and reviews the level of audit and non-audit fees.

The Audit Committee is satisfied with the independence and objectivity of the external auditors and has recommended to the
Board of Directors that the auditors, Ernst & Young, be nominated for re-appointment as auditors at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting of the Company.

Auditors
Ernst & Young have expressed their willingness to accept re-appointment as auditors.

On behalf of the Board,

TAN KWI KIN
Director

TAN TEW HAN
Director

Singapore

18 February 2006

1
4
6

SembCorp Marine Performance Share Plan (cont’d)

The details of performance shares of the Company awarded since commencement of the Performance Plan were as follows:

Conditional Aggregate Aggregate Aggregate
shares conditional conditional Aggregate conditional

Performance Shares awarded during shares shares conditional shares
Participants the year  awarded released shares lapsed outstanding

Director of the Company

Tan Kwi Kin 300,000 1,820,000 (486,400) (273,600) 1,060,000

Former alternate director
of the Company

Heng Chiang Gnee * - 800,000 (256,000) (144,000) 400,000

Key Executives of the Group 475,000 475,000 - - 475,000

775,000 3,095,000 (742,400) (417,600) 1,935,000

* Mr Heng Chiang Gnee was transferred to a related company, SembCorp Environmental Management Pte Ltd on 15 August 2005 and he was not awarded any
conditional shares for the period. The conditional awards already granted (for the performance period 2003 to 2005 and 2004 to 2006) to him prior to 2005
would be subjected to the achievement of the performance criteria and the number to be awarded to determined accordingly when the performance criteria is
met for the completed period of service with the Company.

The total number of performance shares in awards granted conditionally and representing 100% of targets achieved, but not
released as at end 2005, was 1,935,000. Based on the multiplying factor, the actual release of the awards could range from
zero to a maximum of 3,482,500 performance shares.

During the current financial year, the Group has charged $2,739,000 (2004: $420,000) to the profit and loss account in
respect of performance shares for performance period prior to 1 January 2005 based on the market values of the shares at
reporting date. For performance period from 1 January 2005, the Group has charged $932,000 based on fair value of
performance shares at grant date.

SembCorp Marine Restricted Stock Plan
No restricted stock has been awarded under the Restricted Stock Plan.

Maximum Number Of Shares Issuable
The maximum number of performance shares and restricted stocks which could be delivered, when aggregated with the
number of new shares issued and issuable in respect of all options granted, is within the 15% limit of the share capital of the
Company on the day preceding the relevant date of the grant.

Audit Committee
The Audit Committee comprises 3 independent non-executive directors, one of whom is also the Chairman of the Committee.
The members of the Audit Committee at the date of this report are:
Tan Tew Han Chairman
Ajaib Haridass
Haruo Kubota

The Audit Committee has held 4 meetings during the financial year. In performing its functions, the Audit Committee met with
the Company’s external and internal auditors to discuss the scope of their work, the results of their examination and evaluation
of the Company’s internal accounting control system.
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We have audited the accompanying financial statements of SembCorp Marine Ltd (the “Company”) and its subsidiary companies
(the “Group”) set out on pages 150 to 208 for the year ended 31 December 2005. These financial statements are the responsibility
of the Company’s Directors. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Singapore Standards on Auditing. Those Standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An
audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An
audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by the Directors, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion,

(a) the consolidated financial statements of the Group and the profit and loss account, balance sheet and statements of
changes in equity of the Company are properly drawn up in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act,
Cap. 50 (the “Act”) and Singapore Financial Reporting Standards so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs
of the Company and of the Group as at 31 December 2005, the results and changes in equity of the Company and of
the Group and cash flows of the Group for the financial year ended on that date; and

(b) the accounting and other records required by the Act to be kept by the Company and by the subsidiary companies
incorporated in Singapore, of which we are the auditors, have been properly kept in accordance with the provisions of
the Act.

ERNST & YOUNG
Certified Public Accountants

Singapore

18 February 2006

We, Tan Kwi Kin and Tan Tew Han, being two of the Directors of SembCorp Marine Ltd, do hereby state that, in the opinion of
the Directors:

(i) the accompanying balance sheets, profit and loss accounts, statements of changes in equity of the Company and the
Group and consolidated cash flow statement together with notes thereto are drawn up so as to give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31 December 2005, and of the results of the
business, changes in equity of the Company and of the Group and cash flows of the Group for the year ended on that
date; and

(ii) at the date of this statement there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Company will be able to pay its debts as
and when they fall due.

On behalf of the Board,

TAN KWI KIN
Director

TAN TEW HAN
Director

Singapore

18 February 2006
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Note Group Company
2005 2004 2005 2004
$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Restated Restated

Turnover 3 2,119,279 1,362,764 29,433 22,621

Cost of sales (1,949,783) (1,242,400) (16,841) (15,627)

Gross profit 169,496 120,364 12,592 6,994

Other operating income 19,461 24,198 3,907 1,146
Other operating expense (9,850) (3,078) (72) (398)
General and administrative (54,558) (48,551) (12,352) (7,268)

expenses

Operating profit 4 124,549 92,933 4,075 474

Dividend and interest income 5 16,534 12,766 75,082 78,405
Interest expense 6 (4,785) (2,822) (4,500) (1,923)
Non-operating income 7 11,196 5,434 11,117 1,990
Non-operating expense 8 (7,177) (8,500) (313) (15,206)
Share of results of associated companies

and joint venture company 9 19,538 13,278 - -

Profit before taxation 159,855 113,089 85,461 63,740

Taxation 10 (34,271) (15,990) (8,681) (9,406)

Profit after taxation 125,584 97,099 76,780 54,334

Attributable to:

Shareholders of the Company 121,398 94,087 76,780 54,334

Minority interests 4,186 3,012 - -

125,584 97,099 76,780 54,334

Earnings per share (cents) 11

Basic 8.45 6.62

Diluted 8.25 6.60

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

Note Group Company
2005 2004 2005 2004
$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Restated Restated

Non-current assets

Fixed assets 12 579,584 460,020 177,679 176,449
Subsidiary companies 13 - - 490,852 490,852
Associated companies and joint venture 14 123,645 67,487 66,259 26,387
Other long term investments 15 77,931 23,666 77,438 19,105
Long term trade debtors 16 47,390 83,249 41,602 56,000
Intangible assets 17 3,601 3,539 122 122
Deferred tax assets 25 872 1,470 - -

Total non-current assets 833,023 639,431 853,952 768,915

Current assets
Stocks and work-in-progress 18 632,990 390,940 - -
Trade debtors 16 239,199 267,237 44,278 70,798
Other debtors 19 37,238 39,081 101,033 53,073
Asset held for sale 20 52,230 53,192 - -
Fixed deposits 457,468 361,164 51,746 70,893
Bank and cash balances 73,989 108,320 10,381 29,561

Total current assets 1,493,114 1,219,934 207,438 224,325

Current liabilities
Trade creditors 21 551,722 474,643 11,248 6,067
Derivative financial instruments 7,027 - - -
Other creditors and provisions 22 22,991 24,358 3,226 2,244
Progress billings in excess of

work-in-progress 23 375,299 136,414 - -

Provision for taxation 25,832 16,277 801 343

Total current liabilities 982,871 651,692 15,275 8,654

Net current assets 510,243 568,242 192,163 215,671
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Note Group Company
2005 2004 2005 2004
$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Restated Restated

Total assets less current liabilities 1,343,266 1,207,673 1,046,115 984,586

Non-current liabilities
Borrowings 24 149,720 149,645 149,720 149,645
Deferred taxation 25 69,567 47,980 41,872 28,137
Hire purchase creditors 26 213 333 - -
Other provisions 27 8,069 7,005 2,895 2,895

Total non-current liabilities 227,569 204,963 194,487 180,677

1,115,697 1,002,710 851,628 803,909

Capital and reserves
Share capital 28 145,036 142,761 145,036 142,761
Reserves 29 920,509 826,139 706,592 661,148

1,065,545 968,900 851,628 803,909

Minority interests 50,152 33,810 - -

1,115,697 1,002,710 851,628 803,909

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

Group Company
2005 2004 2005 2004
$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Issued capital - ordinary shares (1)

Balance at 1 January

1,427,607,630 (2004: 1,420,051,880) shares of
$0.10 each 142,761 142,005 142,761 142,005

Issue of 22,749,985 (2004: 7,555,750) shares of
$0.10 each upon exercise of share options 2,275 756 2,275 756

Balance at 31 December

1,450,357,615 (2004: 1,427,607,630)
shares of $0.10 each 145,036 142,761 145,036 142,761

Revenue reserve

Balance at 1 January

- As previously reported 586,502 548,381 417,377 419,744

- Changes in accounting policy - FRS 102 (1,135) (220) (224) (44)

- As restated 585,367 548,161 417,153 419,700
- Changes in accounting policy - FRS 39 (963) - - -

Profit for the year 121,398 94,087 76,780 54,334

Dividends on ordinary shares Note 30(b) (98,037) (56,881) (98,037) ( 56,881)

Transfer to statutory reserves by
associated companies (5,527) - - -

Balance at 31 December 602,238 585,367 395,896 417,153

Share-based compensation reserves *
Balance at 1 January

-  As previously reported - - - -

-  Changes in accounting policy - FRS 102 1,135 220 224 44

- As restated 1,135 220 224 44

Cost of share-based payment 2,512 915 457 180

Balance at 31 December 3,647 1,135 681 224

Available for sale reserves **

Balance at 1 January - - - -

-  Changes in accounting policy - FRS 39 24,040 - 24,035 -

Net fair value changes 33,412 - 33,409 -

Realisation of fair value through
profit and loss account upon disposal (7,929) - (7,929) -

Balance at 31 December 49,523 - 49,515 -
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Group Company
2005 2004 2005 2004
$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Foreign currency translation reserve
Balance at 1 January (4,417) (2,566) - -
Translation differences for the year 3,208 (1,851) - -

Balance at 31 December (1,209) (4,417) - -

Share premium account
Balance at 1 January 242,811 237,950 242,811 237,950
Premium on shares issued on exercise of share options 16,729 4,861 16,729 4,861

Balance at 31 December 259,540 242,811 259,540 242,811

Asset revaluation reserve
Balance at 1 January and 31 December 960 960 960 960

Other capital reserves
Balance at 1 January 283 397 - -
Write off by an associated company - (114) - -
Transfer from revenue reserve to statutory

reserves by associated companies 5,527 - - -

Balance at 31 December 5,810 283 - -

Total 1,065,545 968,900 851,628 803,909

Minority interests
Balance at 1 January

- As previously reported 33,810 14,746 - -
- Change in accounting policy - FRS 39 63 - - -

- As restated 33,873 14,746 - -
Issue of new shares to minority shareholder 13,374 13,508 - -
Acquisition of subsidiary company - 3,304 - -
Dividend paid to minority shareholders (1,303) (402) - -
Foreign currency translation (3) (363) - -
Cost of share-based payment 25 5 - -
Profit for the year 4,186 3,012 - -

Balance at 31 December 50,152 33,810 - -

Total equity 1,115,697 1,002,710 851,628 803,909

Net change in equity from non-owner
sources excluding net profits 36,620 (1,965) 33,409 -

(1) The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as and when declared by the Company. All ordinary shares carry one vote per share without
restriction.

* Share-based compensation reserves represent the equity-settled share options granted to employees. The reserve is made up of the cumulative value of
services received from employees recorded on grant of equity-settled share options.

** Available for sale reserves record the cumulative fair value changes of available-for-sale financial assets until they are derecognised or impaired.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

2005 2004
$’000 $’000

Restated

Cash flow from operating activities

Operating profit 124,549 92,933

Adjustments for:
Gain on disposal of fixed assets (1,268) (7,681)
Share-based payment expenses 2,537 920

Amortisation 88 20

Goodwill on consolidation written-off - 292

Depreciation of fixed assets 37,977 37,499
Fixed assets written-off 8 12

Operating income before reinvestment in working capital 163,891 123,995

Increase in stocks and work-in-progress (2,834) (10,676)

Decrease in debtors 67,125 74,344

Increase in asset held for sale - (53,192)

Increase in creditors 78,963 85,927

Cash generated from operations 307,145 220,398

Investment and interest income received 16,533 13,565

Income taxes paid (15,806) (14,034)

Interest paid (4,785) (1,655)

Net cash provided by operating activities 303,087 218,274

Cash flow from investing activities

Acquisition of subsidiary companies (8,581) (660)

Investment in associated company and joint venture (47,456) (1,309)

Purchase of fixed assets (139,586) (88,552)

Purchase of other long term investments - (14,314)

Dividends from associated companies 6,265 5,185

Proceeds from disposal of fixed assets 2,172 57,572

Proceeds from disposal of associated companies and joint venture - 21,443

Proceeds from sale of other long term investments 14,310 59,302

Proceed from repayment of bond principal - 720

Net cash (used in)/provided by investing activities (172,876) 39,387
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The effect on the individual assets and liabilities is set out below:

Acquisition of subsidiary
companies +

2005 2004
$’000 $’000

Fixed assets #12,074 4,976

Other long term investment - 1

Intangible asset 75 -

Stocks and work-in-progress 331 7,450

Debtors 7,793 18,454

Bank and cash balances 741 456

Bank overdrafts, unsecured - (722)

Creditors (4,721) (22,861)

Current taxation - (310)

Deferred taxation (3,047) (102)

Net assets acquired 13,246 7,342

Minority interests - (3,304)

Amount taken up as investment (3,700) -

Amount taken up as associated company - (3,671)

(Negative goodwill)/goodwill on acquisition #(224) 27

Purchase consideration paid 9,322 394

+ Represents both book values and fair values of assets and liabilities acquired.

# Provisionally determined, pending final valuation report from the independent valuer.

The acquisition subsidiary companies, net of cash is represented by:

2005 2004
$’000 $’000

Cash paid (9,322) (394)

Less: Bank and cash balances acquired 741 456

Add: Bank overdrafts, unsecured acquired - (722)

Net cash outflow (8,581) (660)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

2005 2004
$’000 $’000

Restated

Cash flow from financing activities

Dividends paid

-  by the Company (98,037) (56,881)
-  to minority shareholders (1,303) (402)

Proceeds on issue of new shares
-  by the Company 19,004 5,617

-  to minority shareholders 13,374 13,508

Repayment of short term bank loan - (101,029)

Proceeds from issue of medium term note - 149,625

Repayment to hire purchase creditors (1,276) (1,401)

Fixed deposit pledged discharged with a bank for banking facilities - 54,379

Net cash (used in)/provided by financing activities (68,238) 63,416

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 61,973 321,077

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 469,484 148,407

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year (Note 33) 531,457 469,484

The acquisitions of the following subsidiary companies have been shown as a single item:

Effective interest
Name of subsidiary companies acquired Effective dates

Chut Kee LLC and its subsidiary companies   85% 4 October 2005

Jurong Clavon Pte Ltd and its subsidiary companies   5% 1 January 2004
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At 1 January 2005, financial liabilities (other than derivative financial instruments) within the scope of FRS 39
were measured at amortised costs using the effective interest rate method. Any difference between the carrying
values and amortised costs as at 1 January 2005 were recognised in accumulated profits. According to FRS
39, all derivative financial instruments held by the Group and the Company were recognised as assets or
liabilities in the balance sheets and classified as financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss. Fair value adjustments of derivative financial instruments, except for those designated as hedging
instruments in cash flow hedges, were recognised in Revenue Reserves at 1 January 2005.

At 1 January 2005, the Group and the Company held forward currency contracts that were designated as
hedging instruments in cash flow hedges of the foreign currency risks of firm commitments. The portion of the
gain or loss on these hedging instruments that is determined to be an effective hedge was recognised directly
in the hedging reserve at that date. The ineffective portion of a hedge was recognised in Revenue Reserves at
1 January 2005.

Under the transitional provisions of FRS 39, the change in accounting policy on 1 January 2005 resulted in the
following net credit adjustments at that date:

• $963,000 to the Group’s Revenue Reserves; and
• $30,049,000 and $30,044,000 to the Group’s and the Company’s Available for Sale Reserves respectively.

(ii) FRS 102, Share-based Payment
The main impact of FRS 102 on the Group and the Company is the recognition of an expense and a corresponding
entry to equity for share options granted to senior executives and employees, and the recognition of an expense
and a corresponding liability for cash-settled share appreciation rights.

The Group and the Company have applied FRS 102 retrospectively and have taken advantage of the transitional
provisions of FRS 102 in respect of equity-settled awards. As a result, the Group and the Company have
applied FRS 102 only to equity-settled awards granted after 22 November 2002 that had not vested on 1 January
2005.

Under the transitional provisions of FRS 102, the change in accounting policy has resulted in the following:
• At 1 January 2005, increases/(decreases) in the Group’s and the Company’s: Share-based Compensation

Reserve and Revenue Reserves by $1,135,000 (2004: $220,000) and $224,000(2004: $44,000)
respectively;

• At 31 December 2005, a liability for Share Option of $2,537,000 (2004: $920,000) and $457,000 (2004:
$180,000) is carried in the Group’s and the Company’s balance sheets respectively;

• For the year ended 31 December 2005, decreases in the Group’s:
- Profit for the year by $2,513,000 (2004: $920,000) due to an increase in the Employee Benefits

Expense;
- Basic earnings per share by 0.17 cents (2004: 0.06 cents); and
- Diluted earnings per share by 0.17 cents (2004: 0.05 cents).

(iii) FRS 105, Non-Current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations
The Group has applied FRS 105 prospectively in accordance with the transitional provisions of FRS 105. Under
the superseded FRS 35, the Group would have recognised a discontinued operation at the earlier of:

• The date the Group enters into a binding sale agreement; and
• The date the board of directors have approved and announced a formal disposal plan.

A discontinued operation is a major line of business or geographical unit held for sale or has been disposed of.
The effect of this change in accounting policy is that a discontinued operation is recognised by the Group at a
later point than under FRS 35 due to the stricter criteria in FRS 105.

1. General
The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in the Republic of Singapore. Its immediate holding company
is SembCorp Industries Ltd and the ultimate holding company is Temasek Holdings (Private) Limited. Both holding
companies are incorporated in the Republic of Singapore. Related companies and related parties in these financial
statements refer to subsidiary and associated companies of SembCorp Industries Ltd and Temasek Holdings (Private)
Limited respectively.

The registered office and principal place of business of the Company is located at 29 Tanjong Kling Road, Singapore
628054.

The principal activities of the Company are provision of management services and investment holding. The principal
activities of subsidiary companies and associated companies are stated in Note 39. There have been no significant
changes in the nature of these activities of the Company and its subsidiary companies during the year.

2. Significant accounting policies
(a) Basis of preparation of financial statements

The financial statements are presented in Singapore dollars and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand
except when otherwise indicated. The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Singapore
Financial Reporting Standards (“FRS”) as required by the Companies Act.

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except for land and buildings, investment
properties, derivative financial instruments and held for trading and available-for-sale financial assets that have
been measured at their fair values.

(b) Changes in accounting policies
The accounting policies have been consistently applied by the Group and the Company and are consistent with
those used in the previous financial year, except for the changes in accounting policies discussed below.

(1) Adoption of new FRS
On 1 January 2005, the Group and the Company adopted the following standards mandatory for annual financial
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2005.

• FRS 39, Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement
• FRS 102, Share-based Payment
• FRS 105, Non-Current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations

(i) FRS 39, Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement
The Group and the Company had adopted FRS 39 prospectively on 1 January 2005. At that date, financial
assets within the scope of FRS 39 were classified as either financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,
loans and receivables, held-to-maturity investments or available-for-sale financial assets, as appropriate. Financial
assets that were classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and available-for-sale financial
assets were measured at fair value while loans and receivables and held-to-maturity investments were measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. At 1 January 2005, differences between the carrying
values and fair values of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss were recognised in accumulated
profits while the differences between carrying values and fair values of available-for-sale financial assets were
recognised in the Fair Value Adjustment Reserve. For investments carried at amortised cost, any differences
between the carrying values and amortised costs as at 1 January 2005 were recognised in Revenue Reserves.
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(c) Significant accounting estimates and judgements
Estimates, assumptions concerning the future and judgements are made in the preparation of the financial statements.
They affect the application of the Group’s accounting policies, reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and
expenses, and disclosures made. They are assessed on an on-going basis and are based on experience and
relevant factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the balance sheet
date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are discussed below.

(i) Impairment of goodwill
The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least on an annual basis. This requires an estimation of
the value in use of the cash-generating units to which the goodwill is allocated. Estimating the value in use
requires the Group to make an estimate of the expected future cash flows from the cash-generating unit and
also to choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash flows. The carrying
amount of the Group’s goodwill at 31 December 2005 was $3,352,000 (2004: $9,566,000). More details are
given in Note 17a.

(ii) Depreciation of fixed assets
Fixed assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. Management estimates
the useful lives of these fixed assets to be within 1 to 60 years. The carrying amount of the Group’s fixed assets
at 31 December 2005 was $579,584,000 (2004: $460,020,000). Changes in the expected level of usage and
technological developments could impact the economic useful lives and the residual values of these assets,
therefore future depreciation charges could be revised.

(iii) Income tax
The Group has exposure to income taxes in numerous jurisdictions. Significant judgement is involved in
determining the Group-wide provision for income taxes. There are certain transactions and computations for
which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of business. The Group recognises
liabilities for expected tax issues based on estimates of whether additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax
outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that were initially recognised, such differences will
impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the period in which such determination is made. The
carrying amount of the Group’s tax payables at 31 December 2005 was $25,832,000 (2004: $16,277,000).

(d) Foreign currency
(i) Functional and Presentation Currency

Items included in the financial statements of each company in the Group are measured using the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the company operates (“the functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in Singapore dollars, which is the Company’s functional and presentation
currency.

(ii) Foreign Currency Transactions and Balances
Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the functional currency at foreign exchange rates ruling at
the dates of the transactions. At each balance sheet date:

• Foreign currency monetary items are translated into the functional currency using foreign exchange rate
ruling at that date.

• Non-monetary assets and liabilities measured at historical cost in foreign currencies are translated into
the functional currency using foreign exchange rates at the dates of the transactions.

• Non-monetary assets and liabilities measured at fair value in foreign currencies are translated into the
functional currency at foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was determined.

(2) Adoption of revised FRS
The Group adopted the following revised standards mandatory for annual financial periods beginning on or after 1
January 2005. Comparative figures have been restated where required.

(i) FRS 21 (revised), The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates
As a result of the adoption of revised FRS 21, any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign subsidiary and
any fair value adjustments to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities arising on the acquisition are now
treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign operation and translated at the closing rate accordingly. In accordance
with the transitional provision of revised FRS 21, this policy is adopted prospectively to all acquisitions occurring
after 1 January 2005. Accordingly, comparative figures are not restated.

Goodwill acquired and any fair value adjustments to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities which arose
on acquisitions before 1 January 2005 were deemed to be assets and liabilities of the parent company. This
change in accounting policy has no significant impact on the financial statements as at 31 December 2005 or
31 December 2004.

(ii) Other revised FRSs adopted
In addition, the Group adopted the following revised standards which did not result in any significant change in
accounting policies:
FRS 1 (revised), Presentation of Financial Statements
FRS 2 (revised), Inventories
FRS 8 (revised), Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors
FRS 10 (revised), Events after the Balance Sheet Date
FRS 16 (revised), Property, Plant and Equipment
FRS 17 (revised), Leases
FRS 24 (revised), Related Party Disclosures
FRS 27 (revised), Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements
FRS 28 (revised), Investments in Associates
FRS 31 (revised), Interests in Joint Ventures
FRS 32 (revised), Financial Instruments: Disclosure and Presentation
FRS 33 (revised), Earnings Per Share

(3) FRS and INT FRS not yet effective
The Group has not applied the following FRS and INT FRS that have been issued but are only effective for annual
financial periods beginning on or after 1 January 2006 (i to v) and 1 January 2007 (vi to vii):

(i) FRS 106, Exploration for and Evaluation of Mineral Resources
(ii) INT FRS 104, Determining Whether an Arrangement Contains a Lease
(iii) INT FRS 105, Rights to Interests Arising from Decommissioning, Restoration and Environmental Rehabilitation

Funds
(iv) INT FRS 106, Liabilities arising from Participating in a Specific Market – Waste Electrical and Electronic

Equipment.
(v) INT FRS 107, Applying the Restatement Approach Under FRS 29 Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary

Economies
(vi) FRS 107, Financial Instruments : Disclosures
(vii) FRS 40, Investment Property

The Group has evaluated the adoption of the pronouncements listed above and these interpretations are not
expected to be relevant to the activities of the Group, with the exception of FRS 107, Financial Investment: Disclosures,
which is not expected to have significant impact on the financial statement of the Group.
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The purchase method of accounting is used to account for the acquisition of subsidiaries by the Group. The cost
of an acquisition is measured as the fair value of the assets given, equity instruments issued and liabilities incurred
or assumed at the date of exchange, plus costs directly attributable to the acquisition. Any excess of the cost of
acquisition over the fair values of the identifiable net assets acquired is recognised as goodwill. Any deficiency of
the cost of acquisition below the fair values of the identifiable net assets acquired (i.e. discount on acquisition) is
credited to profit and loss in the period of acquisition. The interest of minority shareholders is stated at the minority’s
proportion of the fair values of the assets and liabilities recognised. Subsequently, any losses applicable to the
minority interest in excess of the minority interest are allocated against the interests of the parent.

(g) Associated companies and joint ventures
An associated company is defined as a company, not being a subsidiary company, in which the Group has a long
term interest of not less than 20% nor more than 50% of the equity and in whose financial and operating policy
decisions the Group exercises significant influence.

A joint venture, not being a subsidiary or associated company, is one in which the Group has a long term interest
and contractual arrangement whereby parties in the joint venture undertake an economic activity whose operational
and financial affairs are subject to the joint control of the Group and the contractual parties.

The Group’s share of the results of associated companies and joint ventures that are jointly controlled entities are
included in the consolidated profit and loss account under the equity method. The Group’s share of post-acquisition
reserves of associated companies and joint ventures that are jointly controlled entities are included in the investments
in associated companies and joint ventures, respectively, in the consolidated balance sheet. Where the audited
financial statements are not available, the share of results is arrived at from unaudited management financial
statements made up mainly to the end of the accounting year to 31 December. Goodwill arising on acquisition
which represents the excess of the cost of acquisition over the fair value of the Group’s share of the identifiable net
assets acquired is accounted on the basis outlined in Note 2(h) below.

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds the carrying amount of the investment, the investment is reported at nil
value and recognition of losses is discontinued except to the extent of the Group’s commitments.

For joint ventures that involves jointly controlled operations or assets, the proportionate share in these joint ventures’
individual income, expenses, assets and liabilities are included in financial statements of the Group with items of a
similar nature on a line by line basis.

Shares in associated companies and joint ventures are stated in the Company’s balance sheet at cost and allowance
is made for impairment in value.

Dividend income is accrued on the basis of dividends declared.

(h) Goodwill on Consolidation
Goodwill
Goodwill arising on acquisition represents the excess of the cost of acquisition over the fair value of the Group’s
share of the identifiable assets and liabilities acquired. Goodwill on acquisitions of subsidiary companies is included
in intangible assets. Goodwill on acquisition of associated companies is included in investments in associated
companies.

Goodwill is stated at cost and allowance is made for impairment in value.

Negative Goodwill
Negative goodwill arising on acquisition represents the excess of the net fair value of the Group’s share of the
identifiable net assets acquired over the cost of acquisition.

Foreign exchange differences arising on the settlement or from translation of monetary items are recognised in
the profit and loss account.

Foreign exchange differences arising from non-monetary items are recognised directly in equity when non-
monetary items’ gain or loss are recognised directly in equity. Conversely when non-monetary items’ gain or
loss are recognised directly in profit and loss account, foreign exchange differences arising from these items are
recognised directly in profit and loss account.

(iii) Foreign operations
The results and financial positions of foreign operations (none of which has the currency of hyperinflationary
economy) that have a functional currency different from the presentation currency are translated into presentation
currency as follows:

• assets and liabilities are translated at foreign exchange rate ruling at the date of balance sheet,
• revenues and expenses are translated at average rates, and
• all resulting foreign exchange differences are taken to the currency translation reserve.

Goodwill (except acquisition of foreign operations prior to 1 January 2004) and fair value adjustments arising on
the acquisition of foreign operations are translated to Singapore dollars for consolidation at the rates of exchange
ruling at the balance sheet date. Goodwill arising from acquisition of foreign operations prior to 1 January 2004
are translated at foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions.

On disposal, accumulated currency translation differences are recognised in the consolidated profit and loss
account as part of the gain or loss on sale.

(iv) Net investment in a foreign operation
Exchange differences arising from monetary items that in substance form part of the company’s net investment
in a foreign operation are recognised in the company’s profit and loss account. Such exchange differences are
reclassified to currency translation reserve in the consolidated financial statements. Such exchange differences
are released to the profit and loss account upon disposal of the investment as part of the gain or loss on
disposal.

(e) Principles of consolidation
The accounting year of the Company and all its subsidiary companies ends on 31 December and the consolidated
financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Company and all its subsidiary companies after the
elimination of all material intercompany transactions. The equity and net profit attributable to majority shareholders’
interests are shown separately in the consolidated balance sheet and consolidated profit and loss account,
respectively. The results of subsidiary companies acquired or disposed of during the year are included in or excluded
from the Group results from the respective dates of acquisition or disposal, as applicable.

Goodwill arising on acquisition which represents the excess of the cost of acquisition over the fair value of the
Group’s share of the identifiable net assets acquired is accounted on the basis outlined in Note 2(h) below.

The consolidated financial statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies for like transactions and
other events in similar circumstances.

Assets, liabilities and results of the overseas subsidiary companies are translated into Singapore dollars on the
basis outlined in Note 2(d) above.

(f) Subsidiary companies
Shares in subsidiary companies are stated at cost and allowance is made for impairment in value. Dividend income
is accrued on the basis of dividends declared.
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Fully depreciated assets are retained in the financial statements until they are no longer in use and no further charge
for depreciation is made in respect of these assets.

(l) Investments
Investment securities are classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, held-to-maturity investments
or available-for-sale financial assets, as appropriate.

The accounting policies for the aforementioned categories of financial assets are stated in Note 2(t)(i).

Dividend income is recognised in the profit and loss account upon actual receipt. Interest income is accrued on the
day-to-day basis.

(m) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, demand deposits, and short-term, highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value. These also include bank overdrafts that form an integral part of the Group’s cash management.

Cash and short term deposits carried in the balance sheets are classified and accounted for as loans and receivables
under FRS 39. The accounting policy for this category of financial assets is stated in Note 2(t)(i).

(n) Trade and other receivables
Trade and other receivables, including amounts due from subsidiaries, associates, related companies and loans to
related companies are classified and accounted for as loans and receivables under FRS 39. The accounting policy
for this category of financial assets is stated in Note 2(t)(i).

An allowance is made for uncollectible amounts when there is objective evidence that the Group will not be able to
collect the debt. Bad debts are written off when identified. Further details on the accounting policy for impairment
of financial assets are stated in Note 2(o) below.

(o) Impairment of financial assets
The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any objective evidence that a financial asset or
group of financial assets is impaired.

Assets carried at amortised cost
If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on loans and receivables or held-to-maturity investments
carried at amortised cost has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that
have not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest
rate computed at initial recognition). The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance
account. The amount of the loss is recognised in the profit and loss account.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed.
Any subsequent reversal of an impairment loss is recognised in the profit and loss account, to the extent that the
carrying value of the asset does not exceed its amortised cost at the reversal date.

Assets carried at cost
If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on an unquoted equity instrument that is not carried at fair
value because its fair value cannot be reliably measured, or on a derivative asset that is linked to and must be
settled by delivery of such an unquoted equity instrument has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted

The early adoption of FRS 103 requires that if at the acquisition date, the Group’s interest in the net fair value of
those items acquired exceeds the cost of acquisition, the identification and measurement of the acquiree’s identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities and the measurement of the cost of acquisition are reassessed. Any
excess remaining after the reassessment are recognised by the Group in the profit and loss account.

Previously before the adoption of FRS 103, to the extent that negative goodwill relates to an expectation of future
losses and expenses, that are identified in the plan of acquisition and can be measured reliably, but which have not
yet been recognised, it is recognised in the profit and loss account when the future losses and expenses are
recognised. Any remaining negative goodwill, but not exceeding the fair values of the non-monetary assets acquired,
is recognised in the profit and loss account over the weighted average useful life of those assets that are depreciable
or amortisable. Negative goodwill in excess of the fair values of the non-monetary assets acquired is recognised
immediately in the profit and loss account.

(i) Revenue recognition
Revenue from ship and rig repair, building and conversion are recognised on the percentage of completion method
in proportion to the stage of completion, provided the work is at least 20% completed and the outcome of the
contract can be reliably estimated. The percentage of completion is measured by reference to the percentage of
costs incurred to-date to the estimated total costs for each contract, with due consideration made to include only
those costs that reflect works performed.

Income on goods sold and other services rendered is recognised on completion of delivery. Charter hire income is
taken to the profit and loss account on an accrual basis over the charter hire period.

Interest income is recognised as interest accrues (using the effective interest method) unless collectibility is in doubt.

Dividend income is recognised when the Group’s right to receive payment is established.

(j) Fixed assets
Fixed assets are stated at cost or valuation less accumulated depreciation. The cost of an asset comprises its
purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to working condition for its intended use.
Expenditure for additions, improvements and renewals are capitalised and expenditure for maintenance and repairs
are charged to the profit and loss account. When assets are sold or retired, their cost and accumulated depreciation
are removed from the financial statements and any gain or loss resulting from their disposal is included in the profit
and loss account.

Where fixed assets are revalued, any surplus on revaluation is credited to the asset revaluation reserve. A decrease
in net carrying amount arising on revaluation of fixed assets is charged to the profit and loss account to the extent
that it exceeds any surplus held in reserve relating to previous revaluation of the same class of assets.

(k) Depreciation
Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line method to write off the cost or valuation of fixed assets over their
estimated useful lives. No depreciation is provided on freehold land. The estimated useful lives of fixed assets are
as follows:

Freehold and leasehold buildings 45 years or remaining period of lease
Quays and dry docks 60 years or remaining period of lease
Plant, machinery and tools 3 to 10 years
Motor vessels, launches, cranes and floating docks 3 to 20 years
Motor vehicles 3 to 5 years
Furniture and office equipment 3 to 5 years
Utilities and fittings 30 years
Computer equipment 1 to 5 years
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that are intended to be held-to-maturity, such as bonds, are subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method. This cost is computed as the amount initially recognised minus principal repayments,
plus or minus the cumulative amortisation using the effective interest method of any difference between the
initially recognised amount and the maturity amount and minus any reduction for impairment or uncollectibility.
This calculation includes all fees and points paid or received between parties to the contract that are an integral
part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and all other premiums and discounts. For investments
carried at amortised cost, gains and losses are recognised in the profit and loss account when the investments
are derecognised or impaired, as well as through the amortisation process.

(iii) Loans and receivables
Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market are
classified as loans and receivables. Such assets are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest
method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit and loss account when the loans and receivables are
derecognised or impaired, as well as through the amortisation process.

(iv) Available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale financial assets are those non-derivative financial assets that are designated as available-for-
sale or are not classified in any of the three preceding categories. After initial recognition, available-for-sale
financial assets are measured at fair value with gains or losses being recognised in the fair value adjustment
reserve until the investment is derecognised or until the investment is determined to be impaired at which time
the cumulative gain or loss previously reported in equity is included in the profit and loss account.

The fair value of investments that are actively traded in organised financial markets is determined by reference
to the relevant Exchange’s quoted market bid prices at the close of business on the balance sheet date. For
investments where there is no active market, fair value is determined using valuation techniques. Such techniques
include using recent arm’s length market transactions; reference to the current market value of another instrument,
which is substantially the same; discounted cash flow analysis and option pricing models.

(r) Trade and other creditors
Liabilities for trade and other creditors, including related companies and related parties, on normal trade terms, are
carried at cost which is the fair value of the consideration to be paid in the future of goods and services received,
whether or not billed to the Group.

(s) Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs are generally expensed as incurred. Borrowing costs are capitalised if they are directly attributable
to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset. Capitalisation of borrowing costs commences
when the activities to prepare the asset for its intended use or sale are in progress and the expenditures and
borrowing costs are being incurred. Borrowing costs are capitalized until the assets are ready for their intended
use. If the resulting carrying amount of the asset exceeds its recoverable amount, an impairment loss is recorded.

(t) Derecognition of financial assets and liabilities
(i) Financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is
derecognised where:

• The contractual rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired;
• The Group retains the contractual rights to receive cash flows from the asset, but has assumed an

obligation to pay them in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement;
or

• The Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset and either (a) has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) has neither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

at the current market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such impairment losses are not reversed in subsequent
periods.

Available-for-sale financial assets
If an available-for-sale financial asset is impaired, an amount comprising the difference between its cost (net of any
principal payment and amortisation) and its current fair value, less any impairment loss previously recognised in the
profit and loss account, is transferred from equity to the income statement. Reversals in respect of equity instruments
classified as available-for-sale are not recognised in the profit and loss account. Reversals of impairment losses on
debt instruments are reversed through the profit and loss account, if the increase in fair value of the instrument can
be objectively related to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised in the profit and loss account.

(p) Stocks and work-in-progress
Stocks consist mainly of steel and other materials used for ship and rig repair, building and conversion and are
stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is principally determined on the weighted average method.
Allowance is made for all deteriorated, obsolete and slow-moving items.

Work-in-progress comprises mainly uncompleted ship and rig repair, building and conversion jobs. It is stated at
the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost includes materials, direct labour, sub-contractors’ costs and
appropriate allocation of fixed and variable production overheads. Allowance is made for anticipated losses, if any,
on work-in-progress when the possibility of loss is ascertained.

(q) Financial assets
Financial assets within the scope of FRS 39 are classified as either financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss, loans and receivables, held-to-maturity investments, or available-for-sale financial assets, as appropriate.
Financial assets are recognised on the balance sheet when, and only when, the Group becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the financial instrument.

When financial assets are recognised initially, they are measured at fair value, plus, in the case of financial assets
not at fair value through profit or loss, directly attributable transaction costs. The Group determines the classification
of its financial assets after initial recognition and, where allowed and appropriate, re-evaluates this designation at
each financial year-end.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade date i.e. the date that the Group
commits to purchase the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that
require delivery of assets within the period generally established by regulation or convention in the marketplace
concerned.

(i) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets classified as held for trading are included in the category ‘financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss’. Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose of selling in
the near term. Derivative financial instruments are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated
as effective hedging instruments. Gains or losses on investments held for trading are recognised in the profit
and loss account.

The Group does not designate any financial assets not held for trading as financial assets at fair value through
profit and loss.

(ii) Held-to-maturity investments
Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity are classified as held-to-
maturity when the Group has the positive intention and ability to hold the assets to maturity. Investments
intended to be held for an undefined period are not included in this classification. Other long-term investments
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The Group’s net obligation in respect of retirement benefit is the amount of future benefits that employees had
earned in return for their service in the current and prior periods. The obligation is calculated using the projected
salary increase and is discounted to its present value and the fair value of any related assets is deducted.

Performance share plan
For performance share plan granted prior 1 January 2005, an initial estimate is made for the cost of compensation
under the Group’s performance share plan based on the number of shares expected to be awarded at the end of
the performance period, valued at market price at the date of the grant of the award. The cost is charged to the
profit and loss account on a basis that fairly reflects the manner in which the benefits will accrue to the employee
under the plan over the service period to which the performance criteria relate.

At each reporting date, the compensation cost is remeasured based on the latest estimate of the number of shares
that will be awarded considering the performance criteria and the market price of the shares at the reporting date.
Any increase or decrease in compensation cost over the previous estimate is recorded in the profit and loss
account for that reporting period.

The final measure of compensation cost is based on the number of shares ultimately awarded and the market price
at the date the performance criteria are met.

For performance share plan granted after 1 January 2005, the fair value of equity related compensation is measured
using the Monte Carlo Simulation method. The method involves projecting future outcomes using on statistical
distributions of key random variables including share price and volatility of returns.

In estimating the fair value of the compensation cost, market based performance conditions shall be taken in
account. Therefore, for performance share grants with market based performance conditions, the compensation
cost shall be charged to the profit and loss account on a basis that fairly reflects the manner in which the benefits
will accrue to the employee under the plan over the service period to which the performance period relates,
irrespective of whether this performance condition is satisfied.

Restricted stock plan
An initial estimate is made for the cost of compensation under the Group’s restricted stock plan based on the
numbers of shares expected to be awarded upon satisfactory completion of time-based service condition, valued
at market price at the date of the grant of the award. The cost is charged to the profit and loss account on a basis
that fairly reflects the manner in which the benefits will accrue to the employee under the plan over the service
period to which the performance criteria relate.

At each reporting date, the compensation cost for remaining shares to be released under the restricted stock plan
in remeasured based on the market price of shares at the reporting date. Any increase or decrease in compensation
cost over the previous estimate is recorded in the profit and loss account for that reporting period.

(w) Borrowings
Interest bearing loans
Interest bearing loans are initially recognised at cost and subsequently measured of amortised cost using the
effective interest rate method. The difference between net proceeds and redemption value being recognised in the
profit and loss account in the period over the life of the borrowings.

(x) Provisions
A provision is recognised when there is a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event and it
is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, and
a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet
date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

Where the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset and has neither transferred nor
retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the asset is
recognised to the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement in the asset. Continuing involvement that takes
the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of
the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Group could be required to repay.

Where continuing involvement takes the form of a written and/or purchased option on the transferred asset, the
extent of the Group’s continuing involvement is the amount of the transferred asset that the Group may
repurchase, except that in the case of a written put option on an asset measured at fair value, the extent of the
Group’s continuing involvement is limited to the lower of the fair value of the transferred asset and the option
exercise price.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the carrying amount and the sum of
(a) the consideration received (including any new asset obtained less any new liability assumed) and (b) any
cumulative gain or loss that has been recognised directly in equity is recognised in the profit and loss account.

(ii) Financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.

Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms,
or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a
derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the respective
carrying amounts is recognised in the profit and loss account.

(u) Finance leases and hire purchase assets
Finance leases are those leasing agreements including hire purchases that give rights approximating to ownership.
Assets financed under such leases are treated as if they had been purchased outright at the present value of the
minimum lease payments during the periods of leases and the corresponding leasing commitments are shown as
obligations to the lessor. Depreciation of the relevant assets is provided for as in Note 2(k) above. Lease payments
are treated as consisting of capital and interest elements and the interest is amortised on the reducing balance
basis over each lease term and charged to the profit and loss account.

(v) Employee benefits
Defined contribution plan
The Group’s companies in Singapore make contributions to the state pension scheme, the Central Provident Fund,
as required by Singapore law. Contributions to this fund are recognised as compensation expense in the same
period as the employment that gives rise to the contribution.

Employee leave entitlement
Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised when they accrue to employees. An accrual is made for the
estimated liability for leave as a result of services rendered by employees up to the balance sheet date.

Employee Stock Option
The Group has an employee share incentive plan for the granting of non-transferable share options. No compensation
cost or obligations are recognised. When the options are exercised, equity is increased by the amount of the
proceeds received.

Retirement gratuity
Retirement benefits payable to certain categories of employees upon their retirement are provided for in the financial
statements based on their entitlement under the staff benefit plan or, in respect of unionised employees who joined
on or before 31 December 1988, based on an agreement with the Union.
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Derivative financial instruments are recognised initially at cost. Subsequent to initial recognition, derivative financial
instruments are stated at fair value. The gain or loss on re-measurement to fair value is recognised immediately in
the profit and loss account. However, where derivatives qualify for hedge accounting, recognition of any resultant
gain or loss depends on the nature of the item being hedged as described in Note 2(ab).

The fair value of interest rate swaps is the estimated amount that the Group would receive or pay to terminate the
swap at the balance sheet date, taking into account current interest rates and the current creditworthiness of the
swap counterparties. The fair value of forward exchange contracts is their quoted market price at the balance
sheet date, being the present value of the quoted forward price.

Contract for differences are accounted for based on the difference between contracted price entered with the
counterparty and the reference price. Fair value for Contract for differences cannot be reliably measured as the
financial instrument does not have quoted market price in an active market. The gain and loss for Contract for
differences are taken to profit and loss upon settlement.

(ab)Hedging
(i) Fair value hedge

Where a derivative financial instrument hedges the changes in fair value of a recognised asset or liability or an
unrecognised firm commitment (or an identified portion of such asset, liability or firm commitment), any gain or
loss on the hedging instrument is recognised in the profit and loss account. The hedged item is also stated at
fair value in respect of the risk being hedged, with any gain or loss recognised in the profit and loss account.

(ii) Cash flow hedges
Where a derivative financial instrument is designated as a hedge of the variability in cash flows of a recognised
asset or liability, or a highly probable forecast transaction, the effective part of any gain or loss on the derivative
financial instrument is recognised directly in equity. When the forecast transaction subsequently results in the
recognition of a non-financial asset or non-financial liability, or the forecast transaction for a non-financial asset
or non-financial liability becomes a firm commitment for which fair value hedge accounting is applied, the
associated cumulative gain or loss is removed from equity and included in the initial cost or other carrying
amount of the non-financial asset or liability. If a hedge of a forecast transaction subsequently results in the
recognition of a financial asset or financial liability, the associated gains and losses that were recognised directly
in equity are reclassified into the profit and loss account in the same period or periods during which the asset
acquired or liability assumed affects the profit and loss account (i.e. when interest income or expense is
recognised). For other cash flow hedges, the associated cumulative gain or loss is removed from equity and
recognised in the profit and loss account in the same period or periods during which the hedged forecast
transaction affects the profit and loss account. The ineffective part of any gain or loss is recognised immediately
in the profit and loss account.

When a hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated or exercised, or the entity revokes designation of the
hedge relationship but the hedged forecast transaction is still expected to occur, the cumulative gain or loss at
that point remains in equity and is recognised in accordance with the above policy when the transaction
occurs. If the hedged transaction is no longer expected to take place, the cumulative unrealised gain or loss
recognised in equity is recognised immediately in the profit and loss account.

(iii) Hedge of monetary assets and liabilities
Where a derivative financial instrument is used to hedge economically the foreign exchange exposure of a
recognised monetary asset or liability, no hedge accounting is applied and any gain or loss on the hedging
instrument is recognised in the profit and loss account.

(y) Impairment
The carrying amounts of the Group’s assets, other than stocks and work-in-progress, are reviewed at each balance
sheet date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated.

An impairment loss is recognised whenever the carrying amount of an asset or its cash-generating unit exceeds its
recoverable amount. All impairment losses are recognised in the profit and loss account.

Calculation of recoverable amount
The recoverable amount is the greater of the asset’s net selling price and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. For an asset that does not
generate cash inflows largely independent of those from other assets, the recoverable amount is determined for
the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

Reversal of impairment loss
An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had
been recognised. A reversal of an impairment loss in respect of land and buildings carried at revalued amount is
recognised in the same way as a revaluation increase. All other reversals of impairment are recognised in the profit
and loss account.

An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed unless the loss was caused by a specific external event of
an exception nature that is not expected to recur, and the increase in recoverable amount relates clearly to the
reversal of the effect of that specific event.

(z) Deferred taxation
Deferred taxation is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary differences at the balance sheet date
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes. Deferred
tax assets and liabilities are measured using the tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years on
which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled based on the tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiary
companies, associated companies and joint ventures, except where the timing of reversal of the temporary difference
can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, carry- forward of unused tax assets
and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, carry-forward of unused tax assets and unused tax losses can be utilised.

Current tax and deferred tax are charged or credited directly to equity if the tax relates to items that are credited or
charged, in the same or different period, directly to equity.

(aa) Derivative financial instruments
Derivative financial instruments are used to manage exposures to foreign exchange and interest rate risks arising
from operational, financing and investment activities. Derivative financial instruments are not used for trading purposes.
However, derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting are accounted for as trading instruments.
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(iv) Hedge of net investment in a foreign operation
The gain or loss on a financial instrument used to hedge a net investment in a foreign operation is recognised
in the company’s profit and loss account. On consolidation, only the portion of the gain or loss on the hedging
instrument that is determined to be an effective hedge is reclassified to equity. This amount is recognised in the
consolidated profit and loss account on disposal of the foreign operation.

(ac) Segment Reporting
A segment is a distinguishable component of the Group that is engaged either in providing products or services
(business segment), or in providing products or services within a particular economic environment (geographical
segment), which is subject to risks and rewards that are different from those of other segments.

3. Turnover
Turnover represents sales from the various activities described in Note 1 and Note 39, including the revenue recognised
on contracts relating to the ship and rig repair, building and conversion which are at least 20% completed.

Group Company
2005 2004 2005 2004
$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Services rendered:
Ship and rig repair, building and conversion 2,018,386 1,315,086 - -
Ship chartering - 12,798 - -
Rental income - - 17,478 16,369
Management fee - - 11,955 6,252
Others 7,731 10,789 - -

Sale of goods 93,162 24,091 - -

2,119,279 1,362,764 29,433 22,621

4. Operating profit
Operating profit is stated after charging/(crediting):

Group Company
2005 2004 2005 2004
$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Directors’ remuneration -
Directors of the Company 2,232 1,497 2,232 1,497
Other directors of subsidiary companies 3,322 3,417 - -

Directors’ fee -
Directors of the Company 354 337 354 337
Other directors of subsidiary companies 15 17 - -

Professional fees paid to a firm in which a
Director is a member 409 116 74 67

Foreign currency exchange loss/(gain) 2,858 1,822 (1,168) 2,642
Gain on disposal of fixed assets (1,594) (7,681) - (26)
Rental expenses 22,479 21,515 7,920 6,998
Auditors’ remuneration -

Auditors of the Company
Statutory audit 496 475 84 72
Other services 88 52 77 40

Other auditors of subsidiary companies
Statutory audit 36 36 - -

As at 31 December 2005, the Group and Company had 6,769 and 22 (2004: 5,722 and 18) employees respectively.
Staff costs, which include Directors’ remuneration for the year, amounted to $219,274,000 (2004: $182,477,000) and
$11,328,000 (2004: $4,865,000) for the Group and Company, respectively. Central Provident Fund contributions
which amounted to $9,066,000 (2004: $9,407,000) and $82,000 (2004: $54,000) for the Group and Company,
respectively, were included as part of staff costs for the year.

5. Dividend and interest income
Group Company

2005 2004 2005 2004
$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Gross dividend:

Unquoted subsidiary companies - - 60,822 62,615

Unquoted associated companies - - 5,712 7,490

Quoted equity shares 813 408 813 408

Unquoted equity shares 107 712 106 648

920 1,120 67,453 71,161

Interest income:

Subsidiary company - - 4,650 1,026

Related parties 2,057 2,568 2,057 2,251

Unquoted bonds - 2,989 - 2,989

Trade debtors 1,443 2,632 346 737

Fixed deposits 10,487 2,915 548 182

Loan to related companies 756 233 - -

Others 871 309 28 59

15,614 11,646 7,629 7,244

16,534 12,766 75,082 78,405

6. Interest expense
Group Company

2005 2004 2005 2004
$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Interest expense:

Subsidiary companies - - - (28)

Related company (68) (20) - -

Bank borrowings (4,717) (2,802) (4,500) (1,895)

(4,785) (2,822) (4,500) (1,923)



1
7
5

1
7
4

9. Share of results of associated companies and joint ventue
Group

2005 2004
$’000 $’000

Share of net profit for the year 19,538 13,278

Share of taxation (2,528) (1,652)

17,010 11,626

10. Taxation
Group Company

2005 2004 2005 2004
$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

In respect of profit for the year:

Current taxation 24,386 15,338 7,325 12,595

Deferred taxation 6,750 3,200 1,356 (755)

31,136 18,538 8,681 11,840

Under/(over) provision in respect of prior years:

Current taxation 597 273 - 455

Deferred taxation 10 (4,473) - (2,889)

607 (4,200) - (2,434)

Share of taxation of associated companies
and joint venture company 2,528 1,652 - -

34,271 15,990 8,681 9,406

The Group and the Company have exempt profits amounting to approximately $135,189,000 (2004: $132,134,000)
and $35,101,000 (2004: 29,368,000), respectively. Of this amount, $98,526,000 (2004: $96,411,000) for the Group
has been agreed with the Comptroller of Income Tax.

As at 31 December 2005, certain subsidiary companies have unutilised tax losses of $65,083,000 (2004: $71,754,000)
and capital allowances of $5,374,000 (2004: $6,670,000) available for set-off against future taxable income subject to
the provisions of the Income Tax Act and agreement by the Comptroller of Income Tax.

The unutilised tax losses and capital allowance in a subsidiary company amounting $14,049,000 (2004: $52,827,000)
will expire between 2005 to 2010 (2004: 2004 to 2009).

The amounts of tax losses and capital allowances previously carried forward at the beginning of the year and which
have been utilised in the year to arrive at the computation of tax liabilities for the year are not significant.

7. Non-operating income
Group Company

2005 2004 2005 2004
$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Gain on disposal of:

Joint venture company - 3,444 - -

Long term quoted equity investments 9,911 1,990 9,911 1,990

Long term unquoted equity investments 733 - 733 -

Associated companies 552 - 473 -

Non-operating income 11,196 5,434 11,117 1,990

8. Non-operating expenses
Group Company

2005 2004 2005 2004
$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Impairment loss:

Fixed assets, Note (a) - (3,500) - -

Subsidiary company - - - (9,866)

Asset held for sale, Note (b) (963) - - -

Associated companies, Note (c) (6,214) - - -

(7,177) (3,500) - (9,866)

Loss on disposal of long term unquoted bond - (5,000) - (5,000)

Allowance for impairment in value of loan
to an associated company - - (313) (340)

Non-operating expenses (7,177) (8,500) (313) (15,206)

(a) In 2004, due to the continued difficult operating environment in Karimun, the impairment loss for fixed assets in the
“Ship and rig repair, building and conversion” business segment of $3.5 million represent the write-down of certain
fixed assets to their recoverable amount. The recoverable amount was determined based on the value-in-use at
the cash generating unit level. In determining the value-in-use at the cash generating unit level, the cashflows were
discounted at rate of 6% per annum on a pre-tax basis. In 2005, there is no impairment loss for fixed assets in the
“Ship and rig repair, building and conversion” business segment.

(b) A Memorandum of Agreement had been signed with a buyer during the year to sell the vessel. The impairment loss
of $1.0 million represents the write-down of the asset to its recoverable amount.

(c) An associated company group made losses for the year 2005 and based on the recoverable amount as reflected
in the associated company group’s balance sheet, an impairment of $6.2 million has been taken up in current year.
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10. Taxation (cont’d)

A reconciliation between the tax expense and the product of accounting profit multiplied by the applicable tax rate for
the years ended 31 December was as follows:

Group Company
2005 2004 2005 2004
$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Tax at 20% (2004: 20%) 29,306 20,146 17,092 12,784

Exempt income, capital gains and tax incentives (92) (4,636) (8,616) (3,708)

Effect of different tax rate in foreign jurisdiction (440) (338) - -

Effect of unremitted overseas (losses)/profit (1,355) 1,720 - -

Effect on tax losses utilised (52) (425) - -

Non deductible expenses 1,871 1,939 228 2,803

Effect on changes in tax rates - (4,345) - (2,889)

Under provision in respect of prior years 607 145 - 455

Deferred tax assets not recognised 1,990 44 - -

Others (92) 88 (23) (39)

Effective tax 31,743 14,338 8,681 9,406

Share of taxation of associated companies
and joint venture 2,528 1,652 - -

34,271 15,990 8,681 9,406

11. Earnings per share
(a) Basic earnings per share (“EPS”) is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to shareholders after deducting

minority interests of $121,398,000 (2004: $94,087,000) by the weighted average number of ordinary shares in
issue during the year of 1,436,843,784 (2004: 1,421,361,495).

(b) Diluted EPS is calculated after adjusting for those shares not yet exercised under the SembCorp Marine Share
Option Plan as follows:

Group
2005 2004

Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year 1,436,843,784 1,421,361,495

Effects of dilutive share options 35,454,000 5,276,000

Weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding used in the
calculation of diluted EPS 1,472,297,784 1,426,637,495

(c) The basic and diluted EPS are as follows:
Group

2005 2004
Cents Cents

Basic EPS 8.45 6.62

Diluted EPS 8.25 6.60

12. Fixed assets
Docks, quays,

launches,
                    Land and building cranes and Plant,

Short term Construction- marine machinery
Group Freehold leasehold in-progress  vessels and tools Others Total

$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Cost or valuation

Balance at 1 January 2004

At cost 4,387 132,061 1,258 455,351 183,922 34,660 811,639

At valuation - - - 25,152 - - 25,152

4,387 132,061 1,258 480,503 183,922 34,660 836,791

Currency re-alignment (136) - - - (12) (19) (167)

Additions 5 3,997 63,328 7,227 11,660 2,335 88,552
Acquisition of

subsidiary companies 137 3,091 - 79 9,080 612 12,999

Transfers - (1,892) (2,018) 19,101 (19,355) 4,164 -

Disposals - - - (54,750) (966) (927) (56,643)

Write-off - - - (2,130) (196) (436) (2,762)

At 31 December 2004 4,393 137,257 62,568 450,030 184,133 40,389 878,770

Balance at 1 January 2005

At cost 4,393 137,257 62,568 424,878 184,133 40,389 853,618

At valuation - - - 25,152 - - 25,152

4,393 137,257 62,568 450,030 184,133 40,389 878,770

Currency re-alignment 98 - - - 8 10 116

Additions - 2,287 102,822 1,740 24,182 8,584 139,615

Acquisition of
subsidiary companies 10,003 261 - 904 446 460 12,074

Transfers - 1,873 (7,763) (2,228) 8,027 91 -

Transfer from related
company (Note 14b) - 9,349 - - 244 - 9,593

Disposals (29) - (22) (9,987) (5,234) (378) (15,650)

Write-off - (184) - - (668) (167) (1,019)

At 31 December 2005 14,465 150,843 157,605 440,459 211,138 48,989 1,023,499

Balance at
31 December 2005

At cost 14,465 150,843 157,605 415,307 211,138 48,989 998,347

At valuation - - - 25,152 - - 25,152

14,465 150,843 157,605 440,459 211,138 48,989 1,023,499
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Docks, quays,
launches,

                    Land and building cranes and Plant,
Short term Construction- marine machinery

Group Freehold leasehold in-progress  vessels and tools Others Total
$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Accumulated depreciation/
impairment loss

At 1 January 2004 467 57,058 - 171,828 123,523 31,195 384,071

Currency re-alignment (14) - - - (12) (19) (45)

Charge for the year 74 3,756 - 16,829 14,076 2,764 37,499

Acquisition of
subsidiary companies - 703 - 8 6,816 496 8,023

Transfers (44) (443) - 12,399 (14,203) 2,291 -

Disposals - - - (9,761) (934) (853) (11,548)

Write-off - - - (2,130) (186) (434) (2,750)

Impairment loss - 1,350 - 1,202 931 17 3,500

At 1 January 2005 483 62,424 - 190,375 130,011 35,457 418,750

Currency re-alignment 11 - - - 8 10 29

Charge for the year 162 4,192 - 12,364 17,060 4,199 37,977

Transfers - 17 - - 11 (28) -

Transfer from a related
company (Note 14b) - 2,716 - - 171 - 2,887

Disposals - - - (9,614) (4,755) (348) (14,717)

Write-off - (184) - - (663) (164) (1,011)

At 31 December 2005 656 69,165 - 193,125 141,843 39,126 443,915

Net book value
At 31 December 2005 13,809 81,678 157,605 247,334 69,295 9,863 579,584

At 31 December 2004 3,910 74,833 62,568 259,655 54,122 4,932 460,020

1
7
8

12. Fixed assets (cont’d)

Docks, quays,
launches,

                    Land and building cranes and Plant,
Short term marine machinery

Company Freehold leasehold  vessels and tools Others Total
$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Cost or valuation
Balance at 1 January 2004
At cost 1,553 43,984 177,883 4,023 677 228,120
At valuation - - 25,152 - - 25,152

1,553 43,984 203,035 4,023 677 253,272
Additions - 2,195 900 - 57 3,152
Transfers - (3,342) - 3,342 - -

At 31 December 2004 1,553 42,837 203,935 7,365 734 256,424

Cost or valuation
Balance at 1 January 2005
At cost 1,553 42,837 178,783 7,365 734 231,272
At valuation - - 25,152 - - 25,152

1,553 42,837 203,935 7,365 734 256,424
Additions - - - - 50 50
Disposals (35) - - - - (35)
Transfer from a related

company (Note 14b) - 9,349 - 244 - 9,593

At 31 December 2005 1,518 52,186 203,935 7,609 784 266,032

Balance at 31 December 2005
At cost 1,518 52,186 178,783 7,609 784 240,880
At valuation - - 25,152 - - 25,152

1,518 52,186 203,935 7,609 784 266,032

Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 2004 132 17,734 53,795 2,359 559 74,579
Charge for the year 35 1,012 3,435 858 56 5,396
Transfers - (446) - 446 - -

At 1 January 2005 167 18,300 57,230 3,663 615 79,975
Charge for the year 34 1,069 3,435 864 89 5,491
Transfer from a related

company (Note 14b) - 2,716 - 171 - 2,887

At 31 December 2005 201 22,085 60,665 4,698 704 88,353

Net book value
At 31 December 2005 1,317 30,101 143,270 2,911 80 177,679

At 31 December 2004 1,386 24,537 146,705 3,702 119 176,449
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12. Fixed assets (cont’d)

The effect of the acquisitions of subsidiary companies on the financial position of the Group at 31 December and its
results for the year is shown below:

2005 2004
$’000 $’000

Contribution to the Group for the period:
Turnover 1,316 1,614

Profit before taxation 424 2,122
Negative goodwill/(goodwill written off) 224 (29)

Profit before taxation 648 2,093
Taxation (140) (486)

Profit after taxation 508 1,607
Minority interests (76) (736)

432 871

Total assets at 31 December 18,437 29,694
Total liabilities at 31 December (18,191) (21,655)

14. Associated companies and joint venture
Group Company

2005 2004 2005 2004
$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Associated companies
Unquoted shares, at cost 68,521 20,592 66,259 18,331
Share of net post-acquisition reserves 36,167 20,580 - -
Goodwill on acquisition, Note (a) - 6,214 - -

104,688 47,386 66,259 18,331
Loans and advances to associated

companies, Note (b) - 10,630 - 8,056

104,688 58,016 66,259 26,387

Joint venture
Unquoted shares, at cost 250 250 - -
Share of net post-acquisition reserves 1,942 931 - -

2,192 1,181 - -

Loans and advances to joint venture
company, Note (c) 16,765 8,290 - -

18,957 9,471 - -

123,645 67,487 66,259 26,387

(a) Docks and quays are stated at Directors’ valuation of 1973 of $25,152,000 with subsequent additions stated at
cost. If the following re-valued assets of the Group and Company have been included in the financial statements at
cost less accumulated depreciation, the net written down value would have been:

Group and Company
2005 2004
$’000 $’000

Docks and quays 6,245 6,493

The re-valued net book value of docks and quays is $10,554,000 (2004: $10,973,000).

(b) Net book value of fixed assets acquired under hire purchase agreements as at balance sheet date amounted to
$565,000 (2004: $1,873,000) in respect of the Group only.

(c) Others comprise motor vehicles, furniture and office equipment, utilities and fittings and computer equipment.

13. Subsidiary companies
Company

2005 2004
$’000 $’000

Unquoted shares, at cost 267,919 267,919

Allowance for impairment in value (15,251) (15,251)

252,668 252,668

Loans to subsidiary companies 238,184 238,184

490,852 490,852

Allowance for impairment in value of a subsidiary company

Balance at 1 January 15,251 5,385

Charge for the year - 9,866

Balance at 31 December 15,251 15,251

Other than loan to a subsidiary company of $149,720 which bear interest at a fixed rate of 3.1% per annum, the
remaining loans to subsidiary companies are interest free. All the loans to subsidiary companies are unsecured and not
trade related.

The Company’s subsidiary companies are set out in Note 39.
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14. Associated companies and joint venture (cont’d)
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(a) Goodwill on acquisition
Group Company

2005 2004 2005 2004
$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Cost

Balance at 1 January and 31 December 15,982 15,982 - -

Accumulated amortisation/impairment
Balance at 1 January 9,768 9,768 - -

Impairment charge for the year (Note 8c) 6,214 - - -

Balance at 31 December 15,982 9,768 - -

Net book value - 6,214 - -

(b) Loans and advances to associated companies

Loans and advances to an associated company are unsecured, interest-free and stated after allowance for impairment
in value of nil (2004: $2,574,000).

Group Company
2005 2004 2005 2004
$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Balance at 1 January - - 2,574 2,134

Charge for the year - - 313 440

Utilisation for the year - - (2,887) -

Balance at 31 December - - - 2,574

During the year, the loan had been fully repaid by:
Group and Company

2005
$’000

Cash 1,037

Fixed Asset transferred (Note 12)

Land & building 9,349

Plant, machinery & tools 244

9,593

10,630

The Group’s associated companies are set out in Note 39.

The summarised financial information of the associated companies are as follows:
Group

2005 2004
$’000 $’000

Results:

Revenue 1,100,577 540,832

Profit for the year 69,744 54,440

Assets and liabilities:

Current assets 475,699 189,013

Non-current assets 641,621 241,793

Total assets 1,117,320 430,806

Current liabilities (500,705) (212,685)

Non-current liabilities (311,065) (93,998)

Total liabilities (811,770) (306,683)

The Group’s share of results and balance sheet of the joint venture are as follows:
Group

2005 2004
$’000 $’000

Results of the joint venture:

Revenue 3,545 1,878

Expenses (2,534) (808)

Profit before taxation 1,011 1,070

Balance sheet of the joint venture:

Non-current assets 24,772 8,363

Current assets 2,404 1,817

Current liabilities (8,388) (886)

Non-current liabilities (16,596) (8,113)

Net assets 2,192 1,181

(c) Loans and advances to a joint venture company
Loans and advances to a joint venture company are unsecured, interest-free and are not expected to be repaid
within the next twelve months.
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15. Other long term investments
Group Company

2005 2004 2005 2004
$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Quoted equity securities 76,332 16,547 75,846 15,749
Unquoted non-equity securities 247 247 247 247
Unquoted equity securities 1,352 6,872 1,345 3,109

77,931 23,666 77,438 19,105

Market value of quoted securities 76,332 46,604 75,846 45,796

Both the quoted equity securities and unquoted equity securities are being fair valued and the fair value adjustments
are made into the Available for Sale Reserves.

16. Trade debtors
Group Company

2005 2004 2005 2004
$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Trade debtors under “Current assets”, Note (a) 246,767 276,011 44,929 71,449
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts (7,568) (8,774) (651) (651)

239,199 267,237 44,278 70,798
Long term trade debtors, Note (b) 47,390 83,249 41,602 56,000

286,589 350,486 85,880 126,798

(a) Current assets
Associated companies 108 428 12 9
Related companies 11,071 11,271 - 202
Related parties 991 444 - -
Subsidiary companies - - 35,051 59,948
Joint venture company 1,000 - - -
External parties 227,975 258,478 5,409 7,019
Lease receivables, Note (c) 5,622 5,390 4,457 4,271

246,767 276,011 44,929 71,449

Allowance for external party doubtful debt
Balance at 1 January 8,774 11,436 651 651
Write-back for the year (982) (1,415) - -
Bad debts written off (123) (1,247) - -
Translation adjustments (101) - - -

7,568 8,774 651 651

Bad debts written off directly to
profit and loss account 503 415 - -

Group Company
2005 2004 2005 2004
$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

(b) Long term trade debtors

External parties 1,576 31,812 - 9,940

Lease receivables Note (c) 45,814 51,437 41,602 46,060

47,390 83,249 41,602 56,000

With the exception of $1,576,000 (2004: $4,177,000) and nil (2004: $2,305,000) respectively for the Group and
Company, all the debts due from external parties are interest-bearing with interest rates for the Group and the
Company ranging from 3.6% to 6% (2004: 2.4% to 6%) per annum and nil (2004: 4.375% to 6%) respectively.

Group Company
2005 2004 2005 2004
$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

(c) Lease receivables

Related companies 4,457 4,271 4,457 4,271

External parties 1,165 1,119 - -

Total under “Current assets”, Note (a) 5,622 5,390 4,457 4,271

Related companies 41,602 46,060 41,602 46,060

External parties 4,212 5,377 - -

Total under “Long term trade debtors”, Note (b) 45,814 51,437 41,602 46,060

Under the terms of the lease agreements, no contingent rents are recognised. Interest rates for the Group and the
Company ranged from 4% to 4.25% (2004: 4% to 4.25%) per annum and 4.25% (2004: 4.25%) per annum
respectively. These lease receivables relate to the leases of marine vessels which the lessees have the option to
purchase the marine vessels during the term of the leases. Additional information on lease receivables are set out
in Note (d).
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14. Trade debtors (cont’d)

(d) Additional information on lease receivables:
Present
value of

Minimum Estimated Total gross Unearned minimum
lease residual  investment interest lease

Group payment value in lease income payment
2005 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Receivable within 1 year 7,687 - 7,687 (2,065) 5,622

Receivable after 1 year but within 5 years 26,672 3,000 29,672 (5,615) 24,057

Receivable after 5 years 18,985 4,500 23,485 (1,728) 21,757

53,344 7,500 60,844 (9,408) 51,436

2004
Receivable within 1 year 7,686 - 7,686 (2,296) 5,390

Receivable after 1 year but within 5 years 28,030 3,000 31,030 (6,632) 24,398

Receivable after 5 years 25,313 4,500 29,813 (2,774) 27,039

61,029 7,500 68,529 (11,702) 56,827

Company
2005
Receivable within 1 year 6,328 - 6,328 (1,871) 4,457

Receivable after 1 year but within 5 years 25,313 - 25,313 (5,468) 19,845

Receivable after 5 years 18,985 4,500 23,485 (1,728) 21,757

50,626 4,500 55,126 (9,067) 46,059

2004

Receivable within 1 year 6,328 - 6,328 (2,057) 4,271

Receivable after 1 year but within 5 years 25,313 - 25,313 (6,292) 19,021

Receivable after 5 years 25,313 4,500 29,813 (2,774) 27,039

56,954 4,500 61,454 (11,123) 50,331

17. Intangible assets
Group Company

2005 2004 2005 2004
$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Goodwill on consolidation, Note (a) 3,352 3,352 - -
Preliminary expenses, Note (b) 62 - - -
Club membership, Note (c) 187 187 112 112

3,601 3,539 112 112

(a) Goodwill on consolidation
Balance at 1 January 3,352 5,998 - -
Additions - 27 - -
Amount written off - (465) - -
Accumulated amortisation - (2,208) - -

Balance at 31 December 3,352 3,352 - -

Amortisation and impairment of goodwill on consolidation are included in the line “General and administrative
expenses” on the profit and loss account.

Carrying amount of goodwill allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units are as follows:

Ship and rig repair,
building and conversion Others Total

$’000 $’000 $’000

Carrying amount of goodwill
2005 and 2004 3,130 222 3,352

(b) Preliminary expenditure
Group

2005 2004
$’000 $’000

Cost
On acquisition of subsidiary companies and at 31 December 75 -

Accumulated amortisation
Charge for the year and at 31 December 13 -

Net book value
At 31 December 62 -

(c) Club memberships are stated at cost and after deducting provision for impairment in value of $653,000 (2004:
$653,000) for the Group and $468,000 (2004: $468,000) for the Company analysed as follows:

Group Company
2005 2004 2005 2004
$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Balance at 1 January 653 649 468 464
Charge for the year - 4 - 4

Balance at 31 December 653 653 468 468
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18. Stocks and work-in-progress
Group

2005 2004
$’000 $’000

Cost
Materials, Note (a) 41,268 59,189
Finished goods, Note (a) 3,050 6,520
Work-in-progress, Note (b) 588,672 325,231

632,990 390,940

(a) Stocks at cost are stated after deducting allowance for stock obsolescence of:
Materials 998 705
Finished goods 399 167

1,397 872

Analysis of allowance for obsolete stocks:
Balance at 1 January 872 895
Charge to profit and loss account 525 108
Stocks written off - (131)

Balance at 31 December 1,397 872

(b) Work-in-progress
Costs and attributable profits less allowance for foreseeable losses 2,206,803 1,453,779
Less: Progress billings (1,618,131) (1,128,548)

588,672 325,231

19. Other debtors
Group Company

2005 2004 2005 2004
$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Deposits and recoverables, Note (a) 23,004 22,569 685 1,108
Non-trade receivables, Note (b) 8,320 10,649 100,323 51,913
Prepayments 3,536 2,320 - 23
Staff loans, Note (c) 2,378 3,543 25 29

37,238 39,081 101,033 53,073

(a) Deposits and recoverables
GST refundable 11,725 15,063 - -
Interest receivable 1 - 1 -
Recoverable amount 8,858 4,311 243 216
Tax recoverable 496 118 - -
Sundry deposits 1,924 3,077 441 892

23,004 22,569 685 1,108

Recoverable amount for the Group also includes $190,000 (2004: $821,000) which bears interest of 4% to 8%
(2004: 4% to 8%) per annum.

(b) Non-trade receivables
Group Company

2005 2004 2005 2004
$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Associated companies 1 1 - -

Related company 8,319 10,648 - -

Subsidiary companies - - 100,323 51,913

8,320 10,649 100,323 51,913

All amounts are repayable on demand.

All amounts due from associated and subsidiary companies and joint venture are unsecured and interest-free and
comprise mainly advances and payments on behalf.

The related company balances are interest bearing unsecured fixed deposits which bear interest ranging from
1.1% to 4.47% (2004: 0.22% to 2.405%) per annum. Advances to and payments on behalf of subsidiary companies
are unsecured and also interest-free.

(c) Staff loans bear interest at 3.00% (2004: 3.00%) per annum.

20. Asset held for sale
The asset held for sale is a vessel which was acquired in June 2004 when a subsidiary company exercised its rights as
mortgagee to take possession of asset when the owners defaulted on their payment under financing term granted in
respect of the vessel’s repairs. The legal title of this vessel was transferred to a subsidiary company upon the possession
of the vessel.

There is an impairment loss of S$1.0 million during the year as the fair value of S$53.8 million less costs to sell S$1.6
million is lower than the carrying amount of the vessel of S$53.2 million.

21. Trade creditors
Group Company

2005 2004 2005 2004
$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Associated companies 1,488 3,032 - -

Immediate holding company 250 34 250 -

Related companies 9,416 5,930 145 145

Related parties 527 1,741 - -

Subsidiary companies - - 25 21

External parties 540,041 463,906 10,828 5,901

551,722 474,643 11,248 6,067



1
9
1

1
9
0

22. Other creditors and provisions
Group Company

2005 2004 2005 2004
$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Accrual for unconsumed leave 5,897 5,272 244 169

Deposits received 3,953 519 26 26

GST payables 1,811 2,138 147 5

Hire purchase creditors (Note 26) 209 1,365 - -

Non-trade payables, Note (a) 8,420 12,248 1,625 860

Provisions for warranty, Note (b) 1,517 1,632 - -

Interest payable 1,184 1,184 1,184 1,184

22,991 24,358 3,226 2,244

(a) Non-trade payables

Associated companies - 183 - 33

Subsidiary companies - - 67 1

Related company - 3,504 - -

External parties 8,420 8,561 1,558 826

8,420 12,248 1,625 860

In 2004, the unsecured interest bearing amounts owing to a related company of $3,504,000 was charged interest
ranging from 1.29% to 1.37% per annum, the other non-trade amounts payable to the associated and subsidiary
companies and related parties are unsecured and interest free. The unsecured interest bearing amounts were all
repaid during the year.

Group
2005 2004
$’000 $’000

(b) Provision for warranty

Balance at 1 January 1,632 3,944

Writeback to profit and loss account (115) (2,312)

Balance at 31 December 1,517 1,632

23. Progress billings in excess of work-in-progress
Group

2005 2004
$’000 $’000

Costs and attributable profits 50,464 213,983
Less: Progress billings (425,763) (350,397)

Progress billings in excess of work-in-progress (375,299) (136,414)

24. Borrowings
Group Company

2005 2004 2005 2004
$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Non-Current Liabilities

Medium term notes, unsecured,
due after 1 year but within 5 years 149,720 149,645 149,720 149,645

During 2004, the Company established a $500,000,000 Multicurrency Multi-issuer Debt Issuance Programme (the
“MTN”) pursuant to which the Company, together with its subsidiary companies Jurong Shipyard Pte Ltd and Sembawang
Shipyard Pte Ltd (“Issuing Subsidiary Companies”), may from time to time issue the Notes (as defined below). The
obligations of Issuing Subsidiary Companies under the Notes will be fully guaranteed by the Company.

Under the MTN, the Company or any of the Issuing Subsidiary Companies may from time to time issue notes in series
or tranches in Singapore dollars and/or any other currency.

The terms for the 1st series of $150,000,000 5-year fixed rate notes issued by the Company on 27 September 2004,
is redeemable at par on 26 September 2009 and bears fixed interest rate of 3.0% per annum and is listed on the
Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited and will be cleared through the Central Depository (Pte) Ltd.

Group Company
2005 2004 2005 2004
$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

MTN borrowings 150,000 150,000 150,000 150,000

Capitalised issue expenses (280) (355) (280) (355)

Net borrowings 149,720 149,645 149,720 149,645

Capitalised issue expenses

Balance as at 1 January 355 - 355 -

Amount paid - 375 - 375

Amortised during the year (75) (20) (75) (20)

Balance at 31 December 280 355 280 355

25. Deferred taxation
Group Company

2005 2004 2005 2004
$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Balance at 1 January 46,510 47,678 28,137 31,781

Charge/(write-back) for the year 6,760 (1,270) 1,356 (3,644)

Acquisition of subsidiary company 3,046 102 - -

Charge to equity 12,379 - 12,379 -

Balance at 31 December 68,695 46,510 41,872 28,137
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25. Deferred taxation (cont’d)

Deferred taxation recognised arises as a result of:
Group Company

2005 2004 2005 2004
$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Deferred tax liabilities

Differences in depreciation 56,901 48,197 29,493 28,137

Fair value adjustments 12,379 - 12,379 -

Other 2,792 4,218 - -

72,072 52,415 41,872 28,137

Deferred tax assets
Allowance for doubtful debts (179) (803) - -

Unutilised tax losses, capital allowance and
investment allowance likely to be utilised (2,302) (4,226) - -

Employee benefits (804) (775) - -

Other deferred tax assets (92) (101) - -

(3,377) (5,905) - -

68,695 46,510 41,872 28,137

Analysed into:

Deferred tax asset (872) (1,470) - -

Deferred tax liability 69,567 47,980 41,872 28,137

68,695 46,510 41,872 28,137

Deferred taxation not recognised as a result of:
Group

2005 2004
$’000 $’000

Deferred tax assets
Doubtful debts (1,047) (1,046)

Unutilised tax losses, capital allowance and investment allowance likely to be utilised (17,895) (16,812)

(18,942) (17,858)

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised because it is not probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the subsidiary companies can utilise the benefit therefrom.

26. Hire purchase creditors
Present value of

Minimum Unearned minimum
Group lease payment interest income lease payment
2005 $’000 $’000 $’000

Payable after 1 year but within 5 years 255 (42) 213

Payable within 1 year, under
“Other creditors and provisions” (Note 22) 229 (20) 209

484 (62) 422

2004
Payable after 1 year but within 5 years 370 (37) 333

Payable within 1 year, under
“Other creditors and provisions” (Note 22) 1,438 (73) 1,365

1,808 (110) 1,698

The hire purchase agreements do not contain any escalation clauses and do not provide for contingent rents. The
implicit interest rates range from 5.19% to 6.81% (2004: 4.99% to 6.81% per annum. The net book value of assets
acquired under hire purchase agreements is disclosed in Note 12. Lease terms do not contain restrictions concerning
dividend, additional debt or further leasing.

27. Other provisions
Group Company

2005 2004 2005 2004
$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Provision for retirement gratuities, Note (a) 3,202 3,110 - -

Provision for restoration, Note (b) 4,867 3,895 2,895 2,895

8,069 7,005 2,895 2,895

(a) Provision for retirement gratuities

Balance at 1 January 3,110 3,226 - -

Charge for the year 149 - - -

Utilised during the year (57) (116) - -

Balance at 31 December 3,202 3,110 - -

(b) Provision for restoration of fixed assets

Balance at 1 January 3,895 - 2,895 -

Charge for the year 972 3,895 - 2,895

Balance at 31 December 4,867 3,895 2,895 2,895
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28. Share capital
Group and Company
2005 2004
$’000 $’000

Authorised:
5,000,000,000 ordinary shares of $0.10 each 500,000 500,000

Issued and fully paid up ordinary shares:
Balance at 1 January

1,427,607,630 (2004: 1,420,051,880) shares of  $0.10 each 142,761 142,005

Issued during the year
Exercise of share options of 22,749,985 (2004: 7,555,750) shares of $0.10 each 2,275 756

Balance at 31 December
1,450,357,615 (2004: 1,427,607,630) shares of $0.10 each 145,036 142,761

During the year, other than the issue of new shares upon the exercise of share options under the SembCorp Marine
Share Option Plan (the “Plan”) there was no other issue of new shares.

Share options were granted in 2005 (the “2005 Options”) pursuant to the Plan in respect of 15,557,000 unissued
ordinary shares of $0.10 each to 1,174 full time executives of the Group, 9 Directors of the Company and 16 executives
of the immediate holding company, SembCorp Industries Ltd, who are not substantial shareholders of the Company.
In respect of options granted to executives and non-executive director of the immediate holding company, a total of
140,000 options were granted to executives during the financial year, making it a total of 1,023,000 options granted to
those executives and non-executive director from the commencement of the Plan to the end of the financial year. The
2005 Options are exercisable from 12 August 2006 to 11 August 2015 (12 August 2006 to 11 August 2010 for non-
executive Directors of the Company) and the exercise price is $2.96 per share for cash.

The fair values of options of the Company granted at the date of the grant are estimated using the Black-Scholes
Option-pricing model are as follows:

Option period Number of shares Fair value of options
(both dates inclusive) options granted Exercise price at date of grant

12 Aug 2006 to 11 Aug 2010 530,000 $2.96 $0.47

12 Aug 2006 to 11 Aug 2015 15,027,000 $2.96 $0.47

The fair value of share options (including both equity and cash-settled options) as at the date of grant, is estimated by
an external valuer using a binomial model, taking into account the terms and conditions upon which the options were
granted. The inputs to the model used for the years ended 31 December 2005 and 31 December 2004 are shown
below.

2005 2004
Dividend yield (%) 2.55 4.88
Expected volatility (%) 25.45 - 30.41 18.13 - 30.10
Historical volatility (%) 25.45 - 30.41 18.13 - 30.10
Risk-free interest rate (%) 1.99 - 2.36 1.22 - 1.99
Expected life of option (years) 1.5 - 4.5 1.5 - 4.5
Weighted average share price ($) 2.90 1.00

The expected life of the options is based on historical data and is not necessarily indicative of exercise patterns that
may occur. The expected volatility reflects the assumption that the historical volatility is indicative of future trends,
which may also not necessarily be the actual outcome. No other features of the option grant were incorporated into the
measurement of fair value.

The options granted, exercised and cancelled under the Plan during the year and the options outstanding at the end
of the year are as follows:

2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005
Options Options Options Options Options Options

Date options granted 8 Sep 2000 27 Sep 2001  7 Nov 2002  8 Aug 2003 10 Aug 2004 11 Aug 2005
Option exercise period:

From 8 Sep 2001 28 Sep 2002  8 Nov 2003  9 Aug 2004 11 Aug 2005 12 Aug 2006
To 7 Sep 2010 27 Sep 2011  7 Nov 2012  8 Aug 2013 10 Aug 2014 11 Aug 2015

Number of holders at
31 December 2005   68   453 939 959 1,091 1,177

Exercise price per option $0.70 $0.66 $0.90 $0.99 $1.04 $2.96

‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000
Number of options

outstanding:
At 1 January 2005 5,431 7,552 13,185 14,601 15,984 -

Options exercised (4,839) (5,242) (5,577) (4,761) (2,331) -
Options granted - - - - - 15,557
Options cancelled (50) (58) (178) (261) (425) (176)

At 31 December 2005 542 2,252 7,430 9,579 13,228 15,381

29. Reserves
Group Company

2005 2004 2005 2004
$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Revenue reserve 602,238 585,367 395,896 417,153
Share premium account 259,540 242,811 259,540 242,811
Foreign currency translation reserve (1,209) (4,417) - -
Asset revaluation reserve 960 960 960 960
Share-based compensation reserves 3,647 1,135 681 224
Available for sale reserves 49,523 - 49,515 -
Other capital reserves 5,810 283 - -

920,509 826,139 706,592 661,148

Made up of:
Distributable 602,238 585,367 395,896 417,153
Non-distributable 318,271 240,772 310,696 243,995

920,509 826,139 706,592 661,148
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Group Company
2005 2004 2005 2004
$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

(b) Foreign currency exchange contracts:

Bought contracts 816,384 75,962 - -

Sold contracts 464,045 294,159 - -

As at 31 December 2005, the Group had entered into foreign currency forward exchange buy contracts amounting
to $816,384,000 (2004: $75,962,000) and foreign currency forward exchange sell contracts amounting to
$464,045,000 (2004: $294,159,000). The fair value adjustments of the buy contracts and sell contracts (which is
the difference between the notional principal amounts and market value of the contracts) resulted a net loss of
$6,943,000 which was adjusted in the financial statements. The 2004 loss of $905,000 was adjusted in the
1 January 2005 revenue reserves in accordance to FRS 39.

(c) Minimum lease rental payable to JTC Corporation and a related company in respect of land and buildings:

Group Company
2005 2004 2005 2004
$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Within 1 year 19,151 18,768 7,778 7,040

After 1 year but within 5 years 53,204 74,098 27,715 38,830

After 5 years 14,684 24,766 - 5,394

87,039 117,632 35,493 51,264

The leases do not contain escalation clauses and do not provide for contingent rents. Lease terms do not contain
restrictions on the Group activities concerning dividends, additional debt or further leasing.

Certain leases include renewal options for additional lease period of 10 to 15 years and at rental rates based on
prevailing market rates.

33. Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents included in the consolidated statement of cash flows comprise:

Group
2005 2004
$’000 $’000

Fixed deposits, bank and cash balances 531,457 469,484

Fixed deposits placed with financial institutions have maturity periods ranging from 1 day to 45 months (2004: 1 days
to 57 months) from the financial year-end. Interest rate of fixed deposits range from 1.00% to 3.90% (2004: 0.25% to
5.26%) per annum, which are also the effective interest rates.

30. Dividends
(a) The proposed net dividend of $81,220,000 for 2005 (2004: $68,525,000) comprises:

Group and Company
2005 2004
$’000 $’000

A final dividend of 7.0 cent per share less tax of 20%
(2004: 1.0 cent per share less tax of 20%) 81,220 11,421

A final special dividend of nil cent per share less tax of nil
(2004: 5.0 cent per share less tax of 20%) - 57,104

81,220 68,525

(b) Dividend paid

Interim dividend of 2.5 cents per share less tax of 20%
(2004: 1.5 cents per share less tax of 20%) 28,880 17,067

2004 final dividend of 6.0 cent per share less tax of 20%
(2004: 2003 final dividend of 3.5 cent per share less tax of 20%) 69,157 39,814

98,037 56,881

31. Contingent liabilities
Group Company

2005 2004 2005 2004
$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Bankers’ guarantees - unsecured 49,604 - - -

Unsecured corporate guarantees granted in respect of:

Performance of subsidiary companies - - 2,610,027 2,572,978

Banking facilities provided to:

- associated companies 56,002 - 56,002 -

- others 157,274 - 157,274 -

32. Commitments
At year end, future commitments of the Group are as follows:

Group Company
2005 2004 2005 2004
$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

(a) Approved capital commitment:
Amounts approved by Directors

but not committed 3,090 2,889 - -

Amounts approved and committed 76,980 172,580 76,779 170,080

80,070 175,469 76,779 170,080
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34. Significant related party transactions
Significant transactions during the year between the Group and its related parties on terms as agreed between the
respective parties and which are not otherwise disclosed in these financial statements consist of:

Group Company
2005 2004 2005 2004
$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Related parties

Sale of debt securities - 54,280 - 54,280

Disposal of investment 2,498 - 2,498 -

Immediate holding company

Management fee payable 250 1,000 250 1,000

Related companies

Sales 14,380 20,397 - -

Purchases 25,457 28,604 - -

Rental payable 8,000 8,000 - -

Joint venture and associated companies

Sales 960 1,614 - -

Purchases 347,834 190,172 - -

Compensation of key management personnel
Directors of the Company, Managing Directors and Executive Directors of Jurong Shipyard Pte Ltd, Sembawang
Shipyard Pte Ltd and PPL Shipyard Pte Ltd, Group Human Resource Director and Chief Financial Officer are considered
to be key management personnel in accordance with FRS 24 – Related Parties. These persons have the authority and
responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the Group.

The key management personnel compensation are as follows:
Group

2005 2004
$’000 $’000

Directors’ remuneration 2,634 1,834

Other key management personnel remuneration 2,466 2,245

5,100 4,079

Fair value of share-based compensation 2,097 289

Remuneration of key management personnel includes salary, AWS, CPF, allowances, variable bonuses and performance
shares.

The Company adopts an incentive compensation plan, which ties to the creation of Economic Value Added (“EVA”), as
well as to attainment of individual performance goals for its key executives. A “bonus bank” is used to hold incentive
compensation credited in any year. Typically, one-third of the available balance is paid out in cash each year, with the
balance being carried forward to the following year. Such carried forward balances of the bonus bank may either be
reduced or increased in future, based on yearly EVA performance of the Group.

Fair value of share-based compensation relates to share options and performance share granted during the year. The
amount charged is determined in accordance with FRS 102 – Share-based Payment.

35. Information by segment on Group operations
Business segments
The Group has 3 main business segments that are organised and managed separately according to their respective
business activities. The 3 business segments are ship and rig repair, building and conversion, ship chartering and
others. The activities of these business segments are described in Note 1 and Note 39.

Segment accounting policies are the same as the policies described in Note 2 with inter-segment sales and transfers
carried out on an arm’s length basis. Segment assets consist primarily of fixed assets, current assets and exclude
interest-bearing assets inter-segment balances and tax assets. Segment liabilities comprise mainly of operating liabilities
and exclude interest-bearing liabilities, inter-segment balances and tax liabilities.

(a) By business segment
Ship and rig

repair, building Ship
and conversion chartering Others Eliminations Total

2005 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Turnover
Sales to external parties 2,018,386 - 100,893 - 2,119,279
Inter-segment sales 319,031 177,087 (496,118) -

Consolidated sales 2,337,417 - 277,980 (496,118) 2,119,279

Results
Segment results 119,531 1 5,017 - 124,549
Dividend and interest income 16,009 323 202 - 16,534
Interest expense (4,785) - - - (4,785)
Non-operating income 11,196 - - - 11,196
Non-operating expense (7,177) - - - (7,177)
Share of results of associated

companies & joint venture 15,513 1,433 2,592 - 19,538

Profit before taxation 150,287 1,757 7,811 - 159,855
Taxation (32,159) (866) (1,246) - (34,271)

Profit after taxation 118,128 891 6,565 - 125,584

Other information
Capital expenditure 195,183 - 440 - 195,623
Depreciation 35,890 155 1,932 - 37,977
Amortisation 88 - - - 88

Other segment assets 1,604,187 574 40,066 - 1,644,827
Interest-bearing assets 537,375 6,017 12,905 - 556,297
Investment in associated

companies & joint venture 99,744 18,985 4,916 - 123,645
Deferred tax assets 865 - 7 - 872
Tax recoverable - - 496 - 496

Total segment assets 2,242,171 25,576 58,390 - 2,326,137
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35. Information by segment on Group operations (cont’d)

(b) By geographical area
The Group operates in 10 (2004: 10) countries and principally in the Republic of Singapore. Pricing of inter-segment
sales and transfers are carried out on an arm’s length basis.

In presenting information on the basis of geographical segments, segment revenue is based on the geographical
location of customers. Segment assets are based on the geographical location of the assets.

Rest of
Singapore Asia Europe Others Elimination Total

2005 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Revenue from external customers 181,432 413,636 1,265,747 258,464 - 2,119,279

Segment assets 2,144,461 150,180 - 31,496 - 2,326,137

Capital expenditure 195,167 456 - - - 195,623

2004

Revenue from externai customers 201,145  218,343 647,600  295,676 - 1,362,764

Segment assets 1,753,186 88,847 - 17,332 - 1,859,365

Capital expenditure 104,635 200 - - - 104,835

36. Directors’ remuneration
The remuneration of Directors of the Company fell within the following ranges:

2005 2004

$500,000 and above 2 2

$$250,000 to $499,000 - -

Below $250,000 9 8

11 10

The Directors’ remuneration of the Company included market value of 487,200 performance shares awarded and an
amount of $2,772,000 (2004: $63,000) relating to taxable benefit arising from the exercise of share options during the
year. This amount has not been charged to the profit and loss account.

During the current financial year, the Group has charged $2,730,000 (2004: $1,420,000) to the profit and loss account
in respect of performance shares for performance period prior to 1 January 2005 based on the market values of the
shares at reporting date. The balance of $3,324,000 as at 31 December 2005 represents the compensation cost for
performance shares granted prior to 2005.

For performance period from 1 January 2005, the Group has charged $932,000 based on fair value of performance
shares at grant date.

Ship and rig
repair, building Ship
and conversion chartering Others Eliminations Total

2005 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Other segment liabilities 942,895 18 21,940 - 964,853
Interest-bearing liabilities 150,188 - - - 150,188
Deferred taxation 68,331 59 1,177 - 69,567
Provision for taxation 22,557 946 2,329 - 25,832

Total segment liabilities 1,183,971 1,023 25,446 - 1,210,440

2004

Turnover
Sales to external parties 1,315,086 12,798 34,880 - 1,362,764
Inter-segment sales 230,873 178 140,497 (371,548) -

Consolidated sales 1,545,959 12,976 175,377 (371,548) 1,362,764

Results
Segment results 73,525 12,745 6,663 - 92,933
Dividend and interest income 12,285 467 14 - 12,766
Interest expense (2,822) - - - (2,822)
Non-operating income 5,434 - - - 5,434
Non-operating expense (8,500) - - - (8,500)
Share of results of associated

companies & joint venture 13,113 2,157 (1,992) - 13,278

Profit before taxation 93,035 15,369 4,685 - 113,089
Taxation (14,859 ) (34) (1,097) - (15,990)

Profit after taxation 78,176 15,335 3,588 - 97,099

Other information
Capital additions 103,685 - 1,150 - 104,835
Depreciation 34,589 1,685 1,225 - 37,499
Amortisation 20 - - - 20

Other segment assets 1,228,684 4,838 38,095 - 1,271,617
Interest-bearing assets 498,791 10,449 9,433 - 518,673
Investment in associated
companies & joint venture 55,653 9,625 2,209 - 67,487
Deferred tax asset 1,463 - 7 - 1,470
Tax recoverable - - 118 - 118

Total segment assets 1,784,591 24,912 49,862 - 1,859,365

Other segment liabilities 617,178 2,262 18,035 - 637,475
Interest-bearing liabilities 154,923 - - - 154,923
Deferred taxation 46,405 93 1,482 - 47,980
Provision for taxation 15,028 114 1,135 - 16,277

Total segment liabilities 833,534 2,469 20,652 - 856,655
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37. Financial risk management objectives and policies
The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, liquidity risk
and credit risk. The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks and they are
summarised below:

Credit risk
The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk with any single counter party and monitors its exposure to
credit risks arising from sales to customers on an on-going basis where credit evaluations are done on customers that
require credit. The Group only deals with pre-approved counterparties with good credit rating and imposes a cap on
the amount to be transacted with any counterparty so as to reduce its concentration of risk.

The carrying amounts of investments, trade and other debtors and cash and cash equivalents represent the Group’s
maximum exposure to credit risk.

Foreign currency risk
The Group incurs foreign currency risk on purchases that are denominated in a currency other than Singapore dollars,
primarily the US dollar. To minimise exposure on foreign currency risks, the Group usually settles such transactions
within 30 days terms.

The Group also utilises forward exchange contracts with maturities of less than twelve months to hedge foreign
currency denominated financial assets, liabilities and firm commitments. Under this programme, increases or decreases
in the Group’s foreign currency denominated financial assets, liabilities and firm commitments are partially offset by
gains and losses on the hedging instruments. The Group does not use foreign currency forward contracts for trading
purpose.

Interest rate risk
The Group’s policy is to maintain an efficient optimal interest cost structure using a mix of fixed and variable rate debts
where working capital is financed by variable rate loans while long term investments are financed by fixed rate loans.
Surplus funds, if any, are placed with reputable banks and/or investment in bonds.

The Group obtains additional financing through bank borrowings and leasing arrangements. The Group’s policy is to
obtain the most favourable interest rates available without increasing its foreign currency exposure.

Liquidity risk
Short-term funding is obtained from overdraft facilities and bank loans.

38. Fair value of financial instruments
The following methods and assumptions are used to estimate the fair value of each class of financial instruments for
which it is practicable to estimate that value:

Cash and cash equivalents, debtors, creditors and short-term borrowings
The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, debtors and creditors (including related party balances which are
expected to be repaid in accordance with normal credit terms), and short-term borrowings approximate their fair
values due to the short term nature of these balances.

Related party balances
No disclosure of fair value is made for related party balances (including associated, related and subsidiary companies
and any other related parties) which are in the nature of loans as it is not practicable to determine their fair values with
sufficient reliability since these balances have no fixed terms of repayment although these are not expected to be
settled within twelve months from the balance sheet date.
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Unquoted equity investments and long term trade debtors
Other than the disclosures made in Note 13 and Note 14, it is not practicable to determine the fair values of the
remaining unquoted equity investments held as long term investments and the long term trade debtors carried at cost.
In the opinion of the Directors, the expected cash flows from these unquoted equity investments and long-term trade
debtors are believed to be in excess of their carrying amounts.

Hire purchase creditors
The fair value of the hire purchase creditors is determined by discounting the relevant cash flow using current interest
rate for similar instruments at balance sheet date.

There are no significant differences between the fair values and the carrying amounts of the hire purchase creditors.

Unrecognised financial instruments
The valuation of financial instruments in the balance sheet reflects amounts which the Group expects to pay or receive
to terminate the contracts or replace the contracts at their current market rates at the balance sheet dates.

39. Group companies
Details of the Group’s subsidiary and associated companies are as follows:

Name of Company Principal activities Percentage of equity
(Country of incorporation) (Place of business) Cost held by the Group

2005 2004 2005 2004
$’000 $’000 % %

Subsidiary companies
Bulk Trade Pte Ltd (Singapore) Bulk trading (Singapore) 1,764 1,764 100 100

Dolphin Shipping Company Ship owning and chartering 500 500 100 100
Private Limited (Singapore) (Singapore)

JPL Corporation Pte Ltd Investment holding 5,100 5,100 70 70
(Singapore) (Singapore)

Jurong Clavon Pte Ltd Engineering work 594 594 55 55
(Singapore) (Singapore)

Jurong Integrated Services Steel fabrication work 5,000 5,000 100 100
 Pte Ltd (Singapore) (Singapore)

Jurong Machinery and Marine and general electronic 2,000 2,000 100 100
Automation Pte Ltd and electrical works
(Singapore) (Singapore)

Jurong Marine Contractors Provision of contract 25 25 100 100
Private Limited (Singapore) services (Singapore)

Jurong Shipbuilders Investment holding 30,000 30,000 100 100
Private Limited (Singapore) (Singapore)

Jurong Shipyard Pte Ltd Ship and rig repair, building, 50,000 50,000 100 100
(Singapore) conversion and related

services (Singapore)
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39. Group companies (cont’d)

Name of Company Principal activities Percentage of equity
(Country of incorporation) (Place of business) Cost held by the Group

2005 2004 2005 2004
$’000 $’000 % %

Subsidiary companies
Jurong SML Pte Ltd Shipbuilding, ship repair 28,305 28,305 100 100
(Singapore) and related services

(Singapore)

Karimun Shiprepair and Investment holding 22,565 22,565 100 100
Engineering Pte Ltd (Singapore)
(Singapore)

PPL Shipyard Pte Ltd Rig building, repair and 30,276 30,276  85  85
(Singapore) related services (Singapore)

Sembawang Shipyard Ship repair and related 54,230 54,230 100 100
Pte Ltd (Singapore) services (Singapore)

Sembawang Shipyard (S) Investment holding 25,560 25,560 100 100
Pte Ltd (Singapore) (Singapore)

SML Shipyard Pte Ltd Ship repair and related 12,000 12,000 100 100
(Singapore) services (Singapore)

267,919 267,919

Associated companies
Cosco (Dalian) Shipyard Ship repair and - 15,161 - 20
Co. Ltd * Note (a) related services
(People’s Republic of China) (People’s Republic of China)

Cosco Shipyard Group Ship repair and 63,089 - 30 -
Co. Ltd ** related services
(People’s Republic of China) (People’s Republic of China)

Joint Shipyard Investment Investment holding 2,120 2,120 50 50
Pte Ltd ** (Singapore) (Singapore)

Joint Shipyard Management Managing dormitories # # 32 25
Services Pte Ltd (Singapore) (Singapore)

Jurong Marine Services Provision of tugging and 1,050 1,050 50 50
Pte Ltd ** sea transportation services
(Singapore) (Singapore)

66,259 18,331

Name of Companies Principal activities Percentage of equity
(Country of incorporation) (Place of business) held by the Group

2005 2004
% %

Subsidiary and associated companies of Sembawang Shipyard Pte Ltd
SES Marine Services (Pte) Ltd Marine services 100 100
(Singapore) (Singapore)

SES Engineering (M) Sdn Bhd * Fabrication of metal structures 100 100
(Malaysia) (Malaysia)

World Adventurer Pte Ltd Marine services 100 100
(formerly known as Sembawang (Singapore)
Shipyard Services (Pte) Ltd)
(Singapore)

OmixAsia.com Pte Ltd (Singapore) Under liquidation (Singapore) 30 30

Subsidiary companies of PPL Shipyard Pte Ltd
Baker Marine Pte Ltd Rig enhancement and upgrading services, 85 85
(Singapore) engineering consultancy and project management,

and supply of rig equipment and parts (Singapore)

Baker Marine Services (HK) Limited * Provision of rig designs 85 85
(Hong Kong) (Hong Kong)

Baker Marine Technology Inc. Engineering design, research and development, 85 85
(United States of America) *** marketing and client services support centre

(United States of America)

Chut Kee LLC Investment holding 85 -
(United States of America) (United States of America)

Sabine-PPL Industries Inc Investment holding 85 -
(formerly known as Sabine (United States of America)
Shipyard Inc)
(United States of America)***

Sabine-PPL Shipyard Inc Rig and vessel enhancement and 85 -
(formerly known as Sabine upgrading services
Shipyard Inc) (United States of America)
(United States of America)

Sabine Offshore Services Inc Inactive 85 -
(United States of America) (United States of America)

Sabine Vessels Inc Inactive 21 -
(United States of America) (United States of America)
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39. Group companies (cont’d)

Name of Companies Principal activities Percentage of equity
(Country of incorporation) (Place of business) held by the Group

2005 2004
% %

Subsidiary companies of Sembawang Shipyard (S) Pte Ltd
Kristiansand Drilling Pte Ltd Rig owning and chartering 81.82 81.82
(Singapore), Note (b) (Singapore)

Subsidiary and associated companies of Jurong Clavon Pte Ltd
Aswell (F.E.) Pte Ltd Dealers in blasting and painting equipment, 55 55
(Singapore) accessories and consumable materials

(Singapore)

Cosco Shipyard Jurong Corrosion control 22 22
Clavon Co., Ltd** (People’s Republic of China)
(People’s Republic of China)

Joint venture company of Dolphin Shipping Company Private Limited
Pacific Workboats Pte Ltd ** Ship leasing and marine surveying services
(Singapore) (Singapore)

50 50

(a) During the year, the Company has injected a net cash consideration of RMB 240 million ($47.5 million) for the 30%
equity stake in Cosco Shipyard Group Co. Ltd (“CSG”) based on the revalued net asset value of CSG. The Company’s
existing 20% equity stake in Cosco (Dalian) Shipyard Co. Ltd has also been revalued and transferred to the enlarged
CSG as part of the consideration for this 30% equity interest in CSG.

(b) Sembawang Shipyard (S) Pte Ltd (“SSSPL”) has granted an option to the minority shareholder (the “Minority
Shareholder”) of Kristiansand Drilling Pte Ltd (“Kristiansand”) (the “Call Option”) to acquire all (but not some only)
the shares of Kristiansand (the “Call Option Shares”) held by SSSPL.

The Call Option shall be exercisable at any time during the period commencing from the Effective Date as described
in Shareholders’ Agreement to the date falling 18 months after date of delivery of a jack-up rig which is owned by
Kristiansand.

The exercise price of the Call Option shall be a sum equivalent to SSSPL’s actual paid in capital plus financing costs
of LIBOR + 1.5% per annum for the period from Effective Date to date of transfer of the Call Option Shares plus
premium of 0% to 12% premium depending on the time the Minority Shareholder Exercises the Call Option.

The Minority Shareholder of Kristiansand has also been granted an option (the “Put Option”) to require SSSPL to
acquire the Shares of Kristiansand (the “Put Option Shares”) held by them.

The Put Option shall be exercisable at any time during the period commencing from the Effective Date as described
in Shareholders’ Agreement to the date falling 9 months after the date of delivery of the rig.

The exercise price for Put Option Shares shall be a sum equivalent to 90% of the Minority Shareholders’ actual paid
in capital on the date of transfer of Put Option Shares.

Name of Companies Principal activities Percentage of equity
(Country of incorporation) (Place of business) held by the Group

2005 2004
% %

Subsidiary and associated companies of Jurong Shipbuilders Private Limited
Jurong Shipping Company Inactive 100 100
Private Limited (Singapore) (Singapore)

Jurong Shipping Company Struck-off from register - 100
Beta Pte Ltd (Singapore) (Singapore)

Jurong Shipping Company Inactive 100 100
Gamma Pte Ltd (Singapore) (Singapore)

Tridex Investment Inc. *** Investment holding 100 100
(British Virgin Islands) (British Virgin Islands)

Oslo Gas I LP *** Under liquidation 33.3 33.3
(Republic of Liberia) (Norway)

Oslo Gas II LP *** Under liquidation 33.3 33.3
(Republic of Liberia) (Norway)

Subsidiary and associated companies of Jurong Shipyard Pte Ltd
Jurong Brazil-Singapore Pte Ltd Investment holding 100 100
(Singapore) (Singapore)

Jurong Shipyard Inc. *** (Bahamas) Investment holding (Bahamas) 35 35

Maua Jurong S.A. ** (Brazil) Shipbuilding, ship repair, and conversion (Brazil) 35 35

Subsidiary companies of Karimun Shiprepair and Engineering Pte Ltd
P.T. Karimun Sembawang Shipyard * Ship repair and related services 100 100
(Indonesia) (Indonesia)

Sinna Services Pte Ltd (Singapore) Inactive (Singapore) 100 100

Subsidiary companies of JPL Corporation Pte Ltd
JPL Services Pte Ltd Equipment rental services and trading in 70 70
(Singapore) copper slag (Singapore)

JPL Industries Pte Ltd Processing and distribution of copper slag 53.8 53.8
(Singapore) (Singapore)

JPL Concrete Products Pte Ltd Production of concrete products 53.8 53.8
(Singapore) (Singapore)
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(1) Salary amount shown is inclusive of allowances, CPF, all fees other than directors’ fee, and other emolument.

(2) Bonus amount shown is inclusive of CPF.

(3) Taxable benefits arising from share plans inclusive of:
(i) gains on exercise of share options during the year amounting to $2,772,000 for the Company. This amount has not been charged to the profit and loss

account.
(ii) market value of the 487,200 performance shares of $979,272 released during the year 2005 for the performance period 2002 to 2004.

In addition, the following Director and former alternate director were conditionally awarded an aggregate of 1,460,000 performance shares:

Aggregate Conditional Aggregate Conditional Shares
Shares Outstanding Released in 2005

Director, Tan Kwi Kin 1,060,000 319,200

Former alternate director, Heng Chiang Gnee 400,000 168,000

1,460,000 487,200

The actual number delivered will depend on the achievement of set targets over a 3-year period from 2003 to 2005, 2004 to 2006 and 2005 to 2007.

(4) Relates to share options granted during the year by the Company.

Summary compensation table for the year ended 31 December 2005 (Group):

2
0
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A. Directors’ Remuneration

The remuneration of directors of the Company falls within the following ranges:-
2005

$500,000 and above 2

$250,000 to $499,999 -

Below $250,000 9

11

Names of Director Salary (1) Bonus (2) Taxable benefit Directors’ Total Number of
from share Fees share option

Plans (3) granted (4)

$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 ’000

Lua Cheng Eng 62 62 140

Wong Kok Siew (deceased) - - - 10 10 -

Tan Kwi Kin 615 311 2,285 - 3,211 700

Tan Pheng Hock - - - 28 28 35

Kiyotaka Matsuzawa - - - 27 27 35

Low Sin Leng - - - 8 8 -

Tan Tew Han - - 16 76 92 140

Ajaib Haridass - - 60 67 127 100

Haruo Kubota - - 13 50 63 60

Tang Kin Fei - - - 26 26 20

Heng Chiang Gnee 228 146 1,377 - 1,751 200

Company 843 457 3,751 354 5,405 1,430

39. Group companies (cont’d)

The future price of the rig is dependent on oil prices, demand and supply of rigs, rig
utilization and charter rates, which could not be reasonably estimated. As such, the
fair value of Kristiansand could also not be reasonably determined. Accordingly, the
fair value of the call and put option associated with the Kristiansand investment
could not be reasonably ascertained.

The Group’s investment into Kristiansand as at 31 December 2005 is $120.4 million
(31 December 2004: $59.3 million) and no value is ascribed to the call and put
option.

# Less than $1,000
* Audited by other member firms of Ernst & Young
** Audited by other firms
*** These companies are not required to be audited under the laws of their country of incorporation

40. Subsequent event
Subsequent to the year end, the Company announced that it has signed an

agreement to increase the registered capital of its associated company, Cosco Ship-
yard Group Co. Ltd (“CSG”) by RMB 750 million or approximately $45.4 million. This
capital injection into the registered capital of CSG shall be made progressively over a
two-year period starting 2006 to 2007, payable in three installments. The increase is
subject to the People’s Republic of China’s regulatory approval.

41. Comparative figures
The following comparative figures relating to the previous year have been reclassi-

fied to conform with the presentation in the current year and to better reflect the nature
of the profit and loss items.

Group Company
As previously As previously

As restated stated As restated stated
$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Other long term investments - 122 - 122
Intangible assets 122 - 122 -

42. Authorisation of financial statements
The financial statements of SembCorp Marine Ltd for the year ended 31 Decem-

ber 2005 were authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution of the Directors on
18 February 2006.
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B. Interested Person Transactions

Aggregate value of all transactions
conducted under a shareholders’

mandate pursuant to Rule 920
of the SGX Listing Manual

2005 2004
$’000 $’000

Transaction for the Sales of Goods and Services
Keppel Corporation Ltd and its associates                39,628    221
Neptune Orient Lines Ltd and its associates                  1,543 1,890
SembCorp Industries Limited and its associates                  3,272 6,262
PSA International Pte Ltd and its associates           2,191 -

Transaction for the Purchase of Goods and Services
Keppel Corporation Ltd and its associates                    -   2,351
Neptune Orient Lines Ltd and its associates                    -   2,310
SembCorp Industries Limited and its associates                23,718 23,499

Management and Support Services
SembCorp Industries Limited                     250    1,000

Total Interested Person Transactions                70,602 37,533

Treasury Transactions

Placement of Funds with/(from) - as at 31 December
SembCorp Industries Limited and its associates                8,319 10,648
SembCorp Industries Limited and its associates       - (3,504)

Sale of Debt Securities
Neptune Orient Lines Ltd                    - 54,280

Aggregate value of all transactions
 excluding transactions conducted

under a shareholders’ mandate
pursuant to Rule 920

of the SGX Listing Manual
2005 2004
$’000 $’000

Transaction for the Sales of Goods and Services
Neptune Orient Lines Ltd and its associates                  1,700 -

Disposal of Investment
SembCorp Logistics Ltd                  2,498 -

4,198 -

Held by Location Description & Tenure Usage
Approximate Land Area

SembCorp Jalan Samulun Land area: 198,098m2 10 years leasehold Ship repairs including
Marine Buildings, workshops, 10 years renewal drydock, berthage

drydocks and quays & workshops

Tanjong Kling Road Land area: 491,054.57m2 10 years leasehold Ship repairs, ship
Buildings, workshops, 10 years renewal conversion, offshore
drydocks and quays engineering, shipbuilding

and rig building including
drydock, berthage &
workshops

Mendong Spring 9 units of 3-room Freehold Residential properties
apartment with built-in
area of 99m2 per unit

Hilton Tower Apartment with built-in Freehold Residential properties
At Grange Road area of 131m2

Sembawang Admiralty Road Land area: 407,664m2 5 years leasehold Ship repairs, ship
Shipyard West Buildings, workshops, 5 years renewal conversion, offshore

docks and quays engineering and rig
building including docks,
berthage & workshops

PPL Shipyard Pandan Road Land area : 118,749m2 15 years leasehold Rig repairs, upgradings,
fabrication and rig
building including
berthage and workshops

Jurong SML Shipyard Road Land area: 63,141m2 6 years leasehold Ship repairs and
Buildings, workshops, shipbuilding including
drydocks drydocks, berthage &

workshops

Tuas Road Land area : 60,760m2 14 years leasehold Shipbuilding and
Buildings, workshops, fabrication including
docks and quays berthage & workshops

P.T. Karimun Karimun Island Land area: 150,000m2 30 years leasehold Ship repair and
Sembawang Indonesia Buildings, workshops with option for 20 fabrication including
Shipyard and wharves years plus another berthage and workshops

option for 30 years

JPL Industries Jurong Pier Road Land area: 27,783m2 20 years leasehold Copper slag recycling

SES Engineering No. 15 Land area : 5,235m2 Freehold Metal fabrication
Sdn Bhd Jalan Lambak Workshop and 3-storey workshop

Kawasan office building
Perindustrian
Taman Johor
81200 Johor Bahru
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NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT the 43rd Annual General Meeting of the Company will be held on Monday, April 24, 2006 at
11.00 a.m. at 29 Tanjong Kling Road, Singapore 628054 to transact the following business:-

Ordinary Business
1 To receive and adopt the Directors’ Report and Audited Accounts for the year ended December 31, 2005.

2 To approve the payment of a final dividend of 7.0 cents per share less income tax for the year ended
December 31, 2005.

3 To re-elect the following directors, each of whom will retire by rotation pursuant to Article 91 of the Company’s
Articles of Association and who, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election:

(a) Mr Tan Kwi Kin
(b) Mr Tan Tew Han (Independent Chairman of Audit Committee)

4 To re-elect the following directors, each of whom will cease to hold office pursuant to Article 97 of the
Company’s Articles of Association and who, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election:

(a) Mr Tang Kin Fei
(b) Mr Goh Geok Ling

5 To approve the sum of S$353,832 as Directors’ Fees for the year ended December 31, 2005.
(2004: S$337,000)

6 To re-appoint Messrs Ernst & Young as Auditors of the Company and authorise the Directors to fix their
remuneration.

Special Business
To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolutions which will be proposed as Ordinary Resolutions:

7 That authority be and is hereby given to the Directors of the Company to:

(a) (i) issue shares in the capital of the Company (“shares”) whether by way of rights, bonus or otherwise;
and/or

(ii) make or grant offers, agreements or options (collectively, “Instruments”) that might or would require
shares to be issued, including but not limited to the creation and issue of (as well as adjustments
to) warrants, debentures or other instruments convertible into shares,

at any time and upon such terms and conditions and for such purposes and to such persons as the
Directors may in their absolute discretion deem fit; and

(b) (notwithstanding the authority conferred by this Resolution may have ceased to be in force) issue
shares in pursuance of any Instrument made or granted by the Directors while this Resolution was in force,

provided that:
(1) the aggregate number of shares to be issued pursuant to this Resolution (including shares to be

issued in pursuance of Instruments made or granted pursuant to this Resolution) does not exceed
50% of the issued shares in the capital of the Company (as calculated in accordance with paragraph
(2) below), of which the aggregate number of shares to be issued other than on a pro rata basis to
shareholders of the Company (including shares to be issued in pursuance of Instruments made or
granted pursuant to this Resolution) does not exceed 20% of the issued shares in the capital of the
Company (as calculated in accordance with paragraph (2) below);

(2) (subject to such manner of calculation as may be prescribed by the Singapore Exchange Securities
Trading Limited (“SGX-ST”)) for the purpose of determining the aggregate number of shares that may
be issued under paragraph (1) above, the percentage of issued shares shall be based on the number of
issued shares in the capital of the Company as at the time this Resolution is passed, after adjusting for:

(i) new shares arising from the conversion or exercise of any convertible securities or share options or
vesting of share awards which are outstanding or subsisting at the time this Resolution is passed;
and

(ii) any subsequent consolidation or subdivision of shares;

(3) in exercising the authority conferred by this Resolution, the Company shall comply with the provisions
of the Listing Manual of the SGX-ST for the time being in force (unless such compliance has been
waived by the SGX-ST) and the Articles of Association for the time being of the Company; and
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(4) (unless revoked or varied by the Company in General Meeting) the authority conferred by this Resolution
shall continue in force until the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting of the Company or the
date by which the next Annual General Meeting of the Company is required by law to be held, whichever
is the earlier.

8 That approval be and is hereby given to the Directors to:

(a) offer and grant options in accordance with the provisions of the SembCorp Marine Share Option Plan
(the “Share Option Plan”) and/or to grant awards in accordance with the provisions of the SembCorp
Marine Performance Share Plan (the “Performance Share Plan”) and/or the SembCorp Marine Restricted
Stock Plan (the “Restricted Stock Plan”) (the Share Option Plan, the Performance Share Plan and the
Restricted Stock Plan, together the “Share Plans”); and

(b) allot and issue from time to time such number of ordinary shares in the capital of the Company as may
be required to be issued pursuant to the exercise of options under the Share Option Plan and/or such
number of fully paid shares as may be required to be issued pursuant to the vesting of awards under
the Performance Share Plan and/or the Restricted Stock Plan,

provided that the aggregate number of ordinary shares to be issued pursuant to the Share Plans shall not
exceed 15% of the total number of issued shares in the capital of the Company from time to time.

9 To transact any other business.

By Order of the Board

Kwong Sook May
Company Secretary

April 7, 2006

Explanatory Notes:
Resolution 4 – if re-elected, Tan Tew Han will remain as the Chairman of the Audit Committee. Tan Tew Han is an independent Director.

Statement pursuant to Article 54 of the Articles of Association of the Company:
Resolution 9 – is to empower the Directors to issue shares in the capital of the Company and to make or grant instruments (such as warrants or debentures)
convertible into shares, and to issue shares in pursuance of such instruments, up to a number not exceeding in total 50% of the issued shares in the capital of the
Company, with a sub-limit of 20% for issues other than on a pro rata basis to shareholders. For the purpose of determining the aggregate number of shares that may
be issued, the percentage of issued shares shall be based on the number of issued shares in the capital of the Company at the time that Resolution 9 is passed, after
adjusting for (a) new shares arising from the conversion or exercise of any convertible securities or share options or vesting of share awards which are outstanding or
subsisting at the time that Resolution 9 is passed, and (b) any subsequent consolidation or subdivision of shares.

Resolution 10 - is to empower the Directors to offer and grant options and/or grant awards and to issue ordinary shares in the capital of the Company pursuant to the
SembCorp Marine Share Option Plan, the SembCorp Marine Performance Share Plan and the SembCorp Marine Restricted Stock Plan (collectively, the “Share
Plans”) provided that the aggregate number of ordinary shares issued pursuant to the Share Plans shall not exceed 15% of the total number of issued shares in the
capital of the Company for the time being.

Note:
A member of the Company entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting is entitled to appoint not more than two (2) proxies to attend and vote on his
behalf and where a member appoints more than one (1) proxy, he shall specify the proportion of his shareholdings to be represented by each proxy. A proxy need not
be a member of the Company. The instrument appointing a proxy or proxies must be lodged at 30 Hill Street #05-04 Singapore 179360 not later than 48 hours before
the time of the meeting.

Notice of Books Closure and Dividend Payment Date
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of the Company will be closed from May 4, 2006 to May 9, 2006, both dates
inclusive, for the preparation of dividend warrants.

Duly completed transfers in respect of ordinary shares in the capital of the Company together with all relevant documents of title received by the Company’s Share
Registrar, Kon Choon Kooi Pte Ltd, 47 Hill Street #06-02, Chinese Chamber of Commerce & Industry Building Singapore 179365, up to 5 p.m. on May 3, 2006 (the
“Book Closure Date”) will be registered to determine members’ entitlements to the proposed dividend. Subject as aforesaid, members whose securities accounts with
The Central Depository (Pte) Limited are credited with ordinary shares in the capital of the Company as at 5.00 p.m. on the Book Closure Date will be entitled to the
dividend.

The proposed dividend, if approved at the 43rd Annual General Meeting, will be paid on May 18, 2006.

Resolution 10

Proxy  Form
IMPORTANT
1. For investors who have used their CPF monies to buy SembCorp Marine

Ltd’s shares, this document is forwarded to them at the request of their
CPF Approved Nominees solely FOR INFORMATION ONLY.

2. This Proxy Form is not valid for use by CPF investors and shall be ineffec-
tive for all intents and purposes if used or purported to be used by them.

Dated this day of 2006. Total Number of Shares Held

Signature(s) of Member(s) or Common Seal

I/We of

being a member/members of SEMBCORP MARINE LTD hereby appoint:-

(Name)

(Address)

Name Address NRIC/Passport Number Proportion of
Shareholdings (%)

and/or (delete as appropriate)

as my/our proxy/proxies to attend and vote for me/us on my/our behalf and, if necessary, to demand a poll, at the 43rd Annual General
Meeting of the Company to be held at 29 Tanjong Kling Road, Singapore 628054 on Monday, April 24, 2006 at 11.00 a.m. and at any
adjournment thereof.

(Please indicate with an “X” in the spaces provided whether you wish your vote(s) to be cast for or against the Resolutions as set out in the Notice of Annual General Meeting.
In the absence of specific directions, the proxy/proxies will vote or abstain as he/they may think fit, as he/they will on any other matter arising at the Annual General Meeting.)

Notes:
1. Please insert the total number of shares held by you.  If you have shares entered against your name in the Depository Register (as defined in Section 130A of the Companies Act, Chapter 50 of Singapore),

you should insert that number of shares.  If you have shares registered in your name in the Register of Members, you should insert that number of shares.  If you have shares entered against your name in
the Depository Register and shares registered in your name in the Register of Members, you should insert the aggregate number of shares entered against your name in the Depository Register and
registered in your name in the Register of Members.  If no number is inserted, the instrument appointing a proxy or proxies shall be deemed to relate to all the shares held by you.

2. A member of the Company entitled to attend and vote at a meeting of the Company is entitled to appoint one or two proxies to attend and vote instead of him.  Such proxy need not be a member of the
Company.

3. Where a member appoints two proxies, the appointments shall be invalid unless he specifies the proportion of his shareholding (expressed as a percentage of the whole) to be represented by each proxy.
4. The instrument appointing a proxy or proxies must be deposited at 30 Hill Street #05-04, Singapore 179360, not less than 48 hours before the time appointed for holding the Annual General Meeting.
5. The instrument appointing a proxy or proxies must be under the hand of the appointor or of his attorney duly authorised in writing.  Where the instrument appointing a proxy or proxies is executed by a

corporation, it must be executed either under its seal or under the hand of an officer or attorney duly authorised.
6. A corporation which is a member may authorise by a resolution of its directors or other governing body such person as it thinks fit to act as its representative at the Annual General Meeting in accordance

with its Articles of Association and Section 179 of the Companies Act, Chapter 50 of Singapore.

General:
The Company shall be entitled to reject the instrument appointing a proxy or proxies if it is incomplete, improperly completed or illegible or where the true intentions of the appointor are not ascertainable from
the instructions of the appointor specified in the instrument appointing a proxy or proxies.  In addition, in the case of shares entered in the Depository Register, the Company may reject any instrument
appointing a proxy or proxies lodged if the member, being the appointor, is not shown to have shares entered against his name in the Depository Register as at 48 hours before the time appointed for holding
the Annual General Meeting, as certified by The Central Depository (Pte) Limited to the Company.

(INCORPORATED IN THE REPUBLIC OF SINGAPORE)

COMPANY REG. NO. 196300098Z

No. Resolutions For Against
Ordinary Business

1 Adoption of Directors’ Report and Accounts
2 Declaration of Final Dividend
3 Re-election of Tan Kwi Kin
4 Re-election of Tan Tew Han
5 Re-election of Tang Kin Fei
6 Re-election of Goh Geok Ling
7 Approval of Directors’ Fees
8 Re-appointment of Auditors

Special Business

9 Authority for Directors to issue shares
10 Authority for Directors to grant options and/or grant awards and issue shares in accordance

with SembCorp Marine’s Share Plans



The Company Secretary
SembCorp Marine Ltd
c/o 30 Hill Street #05-04

Singapore 179360
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